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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 (‘the Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The growth of the PRC property management market was slow during the
year as there were very few property projects completed even though the PRC
government encourages the property projects to be completed and delivered
according to their original plans and timelines. The incremental market for
property management in China has been weak since the fourth quarter of year
2021.

This year, the Group made a determined effort to transform itself and divest
its loss-making winery business and entertainment business, which were sold
to third parties on 21 August 2024 and 11 June 2024, respectively. In addition,
the Australian project was also concluded with the redemption of redeemable
preference shares from the Group in accordance with the subscription
agreement in respect of the Australian project company after all property
inventories of the project have been delivered to the property buyers at the end
of 2024. As a result, the Australian project company is no longer a subsidiary of
the Company, and the Australian real estate business together with the wine
business and entertainment business are classified as discontinued operations.
During the Year, the disposal of discontinued operations suffered a loss of
HK$138.1 million, mainly due to the unfavourable economic condition of China,
South Korea and Australia attributable to different factors.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFREHRS

The Group's land in Jeju, South Korea remains in a stagnant phase and is also
facing challenges due to the continued political and economic tensions in
South Korea that have persisted since late 2024. After careful consideration, the
Group has made a provision for land impairment of HK$73.1 million based on an
assessment by an independent valuer this year in light of the situation in South
Korea. Should a favorable opportunity present itself, the Group will identify the
appropriate time to proceed with the sale of the land in South Korea.

On a more positive note, the Group acquired 100% of the equity interests in a
property management company with the brand name “Yuehao Property”in the
mid-2023. This segment has maintained excellent performance in the past few
months, contributing HK$432.5 million to the Group's revenue, with an operating
profit of approximately HK$44.2 million.

Based on the above non-recurring sales losses, impairment and profit from
property management business, after reclassification of discontinued operations,,
the overall revenue of the Group for the Year increased by 28.1% to HK$432.5
million (2023: HK$337.7 million, reclassified as continuing operation), but a loss
of HK$227.6 million (2023: profit of HK$122.9 million) was recorded. Total loss
attributable to owners of the Company (the "Shareholders”) was HK$182.1
million (2023: Loss of HK$82.3 million). Basic loss per share was HK$5.68
cents (2023: loss of HK$2.56 cents). As at 31 December 2024, the Group
had total assets and net assets valued at HK$1,673.2 million and HK$1,418.9
million respectively.

£ B 582 B N BY £ st {73 2R TE 1 0 T BR 0 7R i
B P ARBER0UFFRESHERKE
ke AEEBERLTER CRAELBIGEMT
i BENBERIERMELERF LR ERE
BIEBT -MAGEKE AEERBERFERD
EERE Lo

S—EEEHEAEENR2023FREXWE—H
MR NRRYE Y EEIE R T B100%ED » Z
EHENBE—ERERBHE BEEERATR
4325B BB UANM2BBEBTHNE XN

HEM LEREENHESR RENYEEEE
B2R B KBHERIEEBNEY ~EBERN
BRI S I MN28.1%E 44325 BB BT (CE_=
F B AFEERNRI/AEE BT BNREY
27 6BBATZBE (CEI=FKE1288
B7t) o AABKRE (TRER)) BHEBEEAR182.18
BARAT(CE=F | BR3IEEAET  EREX
B51E5.688 1 (T2 T=4F | 1825681 -RZZ
THAE+ A=t —H AEEABEERFEED
AA1,6732BEBITKI4189BE BT

NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2024



The proceeds from the recent disposals are expected to be utilised in accordance
with the proposed uses outlined in the announcements published by the
Company. The primary focus will be on strengthening the Group’s remaining
core businesses, which are vital for long-term sustainability and profitability.
Additionally, the funds will be used to enhance the cash flow and general
working capital of the Group, ensuring a solid financial foundation for future
operations. The Company has been monitoring the latest market developments
and carefully evaluating its business strategies while remaining adaptive to the
rapidly and continuously changing business environment. It has been actively
seeking potential investment opportunities but has not identified any suitable
targets as at the date hereof. Should any lucrative investment opportunities
present themselves, the Company would carefully assess them and consider
seizing such opportunities, taking into account the interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole, with the objective of maximising their returns.
Further announcement(s) will be made by the Company as and when necessary.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the

support and trust of our shareholders and business partners as well as the
dedicated efforts of all our employees.

Ma Chenshan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Group's operating results for the Year were contributed by the (i)
development and operation of integrated resort and cultural tourism in South
Koreg; (i) development and operation of real estate in Australia (discontinued
in December 2024); (iii) production and distribution of wine in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") (discontinued in October 2024); and (iv) operation
of entertainment business in South Korea (discontinued in June 2024); and (v)
provision of property management service in the PRC.

Revenue

Revenue for the Year increased by 28.1% to approximately HK$432.6 million
(2023 restated: HK$337.7 million), mainly due to the completion of the disposals
of the winery business in Mainland China, the real estate project in Australia,
and the entertainment business in South Korea, the Group's revenue for the Year
mainly came from the property management business (2023: HK$337.7 million).
The revenue from the property management business was included in the
Group's revenue for the whole year. While in 2023, after the Group acquired the
property management business, its revenue was included in the Group's revenue
from May to December, so the revenue for the Year increased to a certain extent.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year increased by 62.8% to approximately HK$118.6 million
(2023 restated: HK$72.9 million), mainly due to the increase in the gross profit
generated from the property management business to approximately HK$45.7
million (2023: HK$72.9 million). The gross profit from the property management
business was included in the Group's gross profit for the whole year. While in
2023, after the Group acquired the property management business, its gross
profit was included in the Group's gross profit from May to December, so the
gross profit for the Year increased to a certain extent.

Other Revenue and Loss

Other loss increased by 368.9% to approximately HK$25.6 million during the Year
(2023 restated: other revenue HK$9.5 million), mainly due to the loss on the sale
of part of the lands in South Korea.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased to approximately HK$0.7 million
during the Year (2023 restated: Nil), mainly due to the promotion expense
generated from the development and operation of integrated resort and
cultural tourism in South Korea. With the completion of the disposals of the
winery business in Mainland China, the real estate project in Australia, and the
entertainment business in South Korea, the related selling and distribution
expenses were included in loss for the period from discontinued operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly consisted of management
staff salaries, office rental, professional fees and operating expenses of the
property management business. The administrative and other operating
expenses increased by 28.1% to approximately HK$100.1 million during the
Year (2023 restated: HK$78.1 million). After the Group completed the disposals
of the winery business in Mainland China, the real estate project in Australia,
and the entertainment business in South Korea, the related administrative and
other operating expenses were included in loss for the period from discontinued
operations. The administrative and other operating expenses from the property
management business was included in the Group's expenses for the whole year.
While in 2023, after the Group acquired the property management business, its
expense were included in the Group's expenses from May to December, so the
administrative and other operating expenses for the Year increased to a certain
extent.

Loss For The Year From Discontinued Operations

The Group incurred a loss for the year from discontinued operations of
approximately HK$138.1 million from the disposed wine business in Mainland
China, the disposed real estate project in Australia, and the disposed
entertainment project in South Korea. The restated loss from discontinued
operations in 2023 was HK$125.7 million.

Impairment loss on Property, Plant and Equipment

With reference to the impairment assessment of the property, plant and the
equipment of a development property project in Jeju District, South Korea, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$73.1 million was recognised during the
Year (2023 restated: Nil) as the estimated fair value of the the property, plant and
the equipment was less than the carrying amount of the project.

Profit/loss before Taxation

During the Year, the Group recorded a loss before tax of approximately HK$95.6
million (2023 restated: profit of HK$10.8 million).

Taxation

Taxation during the Year mainly comprised current income tax expenses of
approximately HK$13.9 million (2023 restated: HK$12.0 million), over-provision
in prior year of approximately HK$0.4 million (2023 restated: HK$3.8 million)
and deferred tax credit of approximately HK$19.6 million (2023 restated: HK$0.2
million).

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

Taking into consideration the abovementioned factors, loss after tax for the
Year was approximately HK$227.6 million (2023: loss of HK$122.9 million). Loss
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$182.1 million
(2023: HKS$82.3 million). Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the
Company for the Year was HK$5.68 cents (2023: loss of HK$2.56 cents).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash and Borrowings

The Group's sources of fund were mainly generated from cashflows from
its operating activities and proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries. As at 31
December 2024, the Group recorded a increase in cash and cash equivalents by
77.3% to approximately HK$357.8 million (2023: HK$201.7 million).

As at 31 December 2024, total borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) decrease
by 98.7% to approximately HK$0.8 million (2023: HK$59.9 million). This is because
after the disposal of the wine business in Mainland China, its bank loans are
no longer included in the Group's borrowings. The Group's borrowings carried
interest at 4.6%, mainly denominated in Korean dollar(s). In view of the Group's
cash and bank balances, funds generated internally from our operations and the
unutilised loan facilities available, we are confident that barring any unforeseen
circumstances, the Group will have sufficient resources to meet its debt
commitment and working capital requirements in the foreseeable future.

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, our total capital expenditure amounted to approximately
HK$52.5 million (2023: HK$402.7 million) which was mainly used for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment in mainland China. For the Year 2025, we have
budgeted approximately HK$20.0 million for capital expenditure mainly on
construction of the development project in Korea.

Inventories

Our inventories are primarily of finished goods. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group’s inventories decreased by 87.2% to approximately HK$27.8 million (2023:
HK$217.4 million). Finished goods decreased by 24.4% to approximately HK$27.8
million (2023 restated: HK$36.7 million) and finished goods turnover ratio of the
property management service (being average closing finished goods divided by
cost of sales) was 27 days for the Year (2023: 28 days).

Balance Sheet Analysis

As at 31 December 2024, total assets of the Group decreased by 27.0% to
approximately HK$1,673.2 million (2023: HK$2,290.5 million). Total assets were
composed of current assets of approximately HK$642.8 million (2023: HK$869.1
million) and non-current assets of approximately HK$1,030.4 million (2023:
HK$1,421.5 million). The decrease in total assets was primarily due to the
decrease of intangible asset in the disposal of the entertainment business in
South Korea, the impairment of the construction in progress of the development
property project in South Korea, and the inventory sold under the real estate
project in Australia during the Year.

As at 31 December 2024, total liabilities, which included current liabilities of
approximately HK$219.3 million (2023: HK$498.1 million) and non-current
liabilities of approximately HK$35.0 million (2023: HK$98.7 million), decreased
by 57.4% to approximately HK$254.3 million (2023: HK$596.7 million) mainly
because of the decrease in other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities
of the disposed subsidiaries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

"SEE'EE ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ*ﬁ'

As at 31 December 2024, our total equity was composed of owners’ equity of
approximately HK$1,419.3 million (2023: HK$1,443.5 million), mainly due to loss
attributable to owners of the company for the year of approximately HK$182.1
million and translation exchange difference of approximately HK$25.0 million,
and non-controlling interests decreased by HK$100.2% from HK$250.3 million in
2023 to negative HK$0.4 million in 2024, mainly due to the disposal of real estate
project in Australia.

The Group's current ratio as at 31 December 2024 increased to 2.9 (2023:1.7) as a
result of the less decrease in current asset than that in current liabilities. Gearing
ratio, representing total borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) divided by total
equity, decreased to 0.1% (2023: 3.5%) as a result of the disposal of subsidiaries.

Trade receivables turnover ratio (being average trade receivables divided
by revenue) for the Year increased to 115 days (2023: 54 days) as the trade
receivables of the property management business had a longer credit period of
180 days.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 9.7% (2023:
2.1%) of the Group's total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was 2.3% (2023: 1.0%). The Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 12.9% (2023: 20.1%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue
attributable to the Group's largest customer was 4.6% (2023: 6.4%).

None of the Directors, their close associates (within the meaning of the Rules
(the "Listing Rules") Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange)
or the Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in the five
largest suppliers or customers of the Group during the Year.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

During the Year, the Group has been granted subsidies in an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$0.7 million (2023 restated: HK$1.3 million) from the
respective local governments for subsidising the Group’s technical development.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the Year (2023:
Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no assets pledged (2023:
HK$55,029,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the below section headed “LITIGATION UPDATE"in respect of
the outstanding legal proceedings against the Group, The Group had no other
material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

NZEZWE+ B =+—H BfAZEEREE
141903888 (TE2=F 1144358858 7T)
Z2HBEANED FERARARTEE ABEERE
BN I BEEBTUKA0EEATHREER
EEERFEREERNEMEBEEMA-_S =
FEM2503 BB BER/I002%0ZE_ S _MEMNE
04 BB 2 IEEHIM#ER

R_EBE_NFE+A=+—H> AN RBEERD
mEEJ#’J\ﬁA/m@J,%\%’ZK%I%ZML@JHZ:K.ﬁ'ﬁtEHDi
29(_7_ F117) cBELEE BER (R

—=LE) K?L/(%M% 5) AFABZEEMMEE1%
(:7_—E 3.5%) o

ER-BERYESERBEFEEHRER 180
B 5 ERTUBER (T E 5 BRI R IR E)
BMENSH (TEZ=%F :54H) °

FTEHERRER

FR AREEB R AFIER (S A= E 42 RERE. 7%
(CB-=%F:21%) » &AM F%“Fﬁz$*ﬁ:%“§’ﬁf£$
EEBRERE2IN (T2 = 1.0%) c REEH
ZHAREFRMLAEEZUZR2.9% (_7_: :
201%) P BRARFE ZHEREMAEBBUEL6%
(ZE =4 164%) °

FABEF REZEDHMBEAN (EERMZFIE
Z EHRA (TEMWRA) SRR BESMA &
BARABBEHITRANU L) RAFNBFENARE
EELAMERAER BN B D -

8L 476 B
Py AEERRM S B ES S L0 HEET

(ZE2EZ=F8% 138887 2@ UEKE
AEEE Z SMiFE o

HQI§\

EFTRETRVERZERRE CT =4
) -

BERR

ATE_NE+ "B+ —RB AEEEEERE
(ZE =4 : 55,029,000 7T) °

HARERF

BT THFARTER ) —FEBEANERRER
ZAERAFTEEN AEBN ST WE+
B=+—HBK_E_=ZF+_B=+—HuEH

thEARHAEE

NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2024



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES

The Group's revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are denominated in HKS,
RMB, AUD, Canadian dollar(s) and South Korean Won.

The functional currency of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC is RMB whereas
the functional currencies of the Group’s subsidiaries in South Korea, Australia
and Canada are KRW, AUD and CAD respectively. There is a natural hedging
mechanism in place during the course of its respective business operation
and the impact of the foreign exchange risk is low, therefore no financial
instruments for hedging purposes are considered necessary. To enhance overall
risk management, the Group will review its treasury management function from
time to time and will closely monitor its currency and interest rate exposures
in order to implement suitable foreign exchange hedging policy as and when
appropriate to prevent related risks.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are directly
related to the underlying business of the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 11 June 2024, the Group entered into the share and rights transfer agreement
with an independent third party pursuant to which the Group conditionally
agreed to sell and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire 72% of the
equity interest in Megaluck Company Limited (the “Target Company”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, at a cash consideration of KRW 5
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$284 million). After the disposal was
completed on 24 June 2024, the Target Company ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company, and its financial results, assets and liabilities ceased to be included
in the Group's consolidated financial statements. Details of the transaction are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 11 June 2024.

On 21 August 2024, the Group as vendor entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party pursuant to which the Group
conditionally agreed to sell and the purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire
the entire issued share capital of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and
the holding company of our winery business, Huaxia Winery Holding Company
Limited (the "Disposal Company”) at a total cash consideration of RMB130 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$142.4 million). Upon completion on 31 October
2024, the Disposal Company and its subsidiaries have ceased to be subsidiaries
of the Company and the financial results, assets and liabilities of the Disposal
Comany and its subsidiaries ceased to be included in the Group's consolidated
financial statements. Details of the transaction are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 21 August 2024 and the circular of the Company dated
21 October 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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In addition, the relevant supplemental subscription agreement, supplemental
loan agreement, and supplemental total-return-swap agreement for the Opera
Residence (the “Australian Project’) in Sydney, Australia matured on 29
November 2024 and 19 December 2024 respectively, details of which are set
out in the announcement and the circular of the Company dated 29 November
2022 and 27 February 2023 respectively. The Group recognized the completion
of the Australian Project, its total return and disposal of the subsidiary through
the redemption of the preference shares held by the Group in Macrolink Australia
Investment Limited.

On 20 December 2024, the Company’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Beijing Yuehao Property Management Co,, Ltd, as the buyer, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third-party seller, pursuant
to which the seller agreed to sell and the Group agreed to acquire a property
located in Beijing Private Enterprise Headquarters Base, Wailangying Village,
Taihu Town, Tongzhou District, Beijing for use as the headquarters office of a
company providing property management services in Mainland China, for a cash
consideration of RMB45 million (equivalent to approximately HK$47.9 million).
Details of the transaction are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 20 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures by the Group during the Year.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no important events after the Year
and up to the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no significant investment with a value
of 5% or more of the Group’s total assets.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND EMOLUMENT
POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed a total of 1,567 (2023: 1,688) full
time employees. The Group's emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and are reviewed annually. The Company
has a share option scheme for selected participants as incentive and reward
for their contribution to the Group. The Group also provides medical insurance
coverage and provident fund schemes (as the case may be) to its employees in
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

LITIGATION UPDATE

During the Year, there was no further update on the litigation of the Company.
Please refer to page 14 of the Annual Report 2023 of the Company for the details
on the material litigation of the Group.
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MA CHENSHAN
Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Ma Chenshan, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company and the chairman of the Board on 30 December 2019. He is the
authorised representative, the chairman of the nomination committee (the
‘Nomination Committee”) and a member of the remuneration committee
(the "Remuneration Committee’) of the Company. Mr. Ma is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He holds a bachelor degree in Chinese
Literature from Shanxi University. From July 1998 to December 2003, he was
a reporter of CCTV. From January 2004 to May 2006, he served as the deputy
director of All China Federation of Supply and Marketing Cooperatives —
Audio-visual Center. From June 2006 to January 2009, he was an editor for
journals of China Cooperative Times. From February 2009 to October 2011,
he was the deputy president of China Cooperative Times and the executive
deputy director of All China Federation of Supply and Marketing Cooperatives
— Audio-visual Center. From November 2011 to December 2017, he served
as the general manager in the manager department, and the director in
each of the Group Office, the distribution department and the photography
art department of Guang Ming Daily. From January 2014 to May 2016, he
was a member of the Standing Committee of the Guangyuan Municipal
Committee of Sichuan Province and the deputy secretary of the Party Group
of the Municipal Government. Since January 2018, he has been the director
of Macro-Link Holding Company Limited (“Macro-Link Holding"), one of the
beneficial shareholders of the Company. Mr. Ma is now the chairman and the
director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co., Ltd. (‘Macrolink
Culturaltainment’) which is a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 000620), and also a director of Macro-Link International Land Limited
("MIL") which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Macrolink Culturaltainment and
the controlling shareholder of the Company.

WANG GENGYU
Executive Director

Mr. Wang Gengyu, aged 38, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company since 13 June 2024. Mr. Wang is currently the chairman of Beijing
Huaruan Yingxin Asset Management Co, Ltd. He is disclosed as the defacto
controller, the chief executive and the director of Macrolink Culturaltainment
Development Co., Ltd. which is a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000620). He is also a director of MIL, the controlling
shareholder of the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Macrolink
Culturaltainment.

Mr. Wang is experienced in the strategic mergers and acquisitions, equity
investment and asset management business in information technology, medical
health and cultural education industries. He has led and participated in a number
of corporate mergers and acquisitions and IPO projects in the technology
field. Mr. Wang was deeply involved in the research and preparation of the
financial part of the country's “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan” in his working times
and was a specially invited expert on many key topics for regulatory agencies.
He concurrently serves as the vice chairman of the Guokang Pension Finance
Research Institute, the deputy secretary-general of the China Pension Finance 50
Forum, the director of the Mainland and Hong Kong and Macao Economic and
Trade Exchange Promotion Association, and the deputy secretary-general of the
Small and Mediumsized Banks Development Forum.
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Mr. Wang worked in the Research Bureau and Market Department of the Head
Office of the People’s Bank of China; Haitong International and other financial
institutions. He was a postdoctoral fellow in finance at the Institute of Financial
Studies of the People’s Bank of China, a visiting scholar at George Washington
University in the United States. He has a doctorate in management and a
bachelor degree in law from Renmin University of China, and a master degree in
finance from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

ZHANG JIAN
Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Jian, aged 51, was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 25 February 2004. He is a member of the nomination committee and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company. He serves the director
of Sai Lun Tyre Group Ltd. (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 601058) and
Sichuan Hongda Co, Ltd (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 600331). He has
many years of experience in investment banking and corporate finance. He holds
a bachelor degree in law and economics from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a master degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

HANG GUANYU
Executive Director

Mr. Hang Guanyu, aged 58, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 8 June 2015. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Hang holds a master degree in business administration from
Asia International Open University (Macau). He also holds Chinese Securities
Practising Certificate and Chinese Career Manager Qualification Certificate. From
January 2007 to June 2008, Mr. Hang was the director of UBS Securities Co,, Ltd.
He now acts as the vice-president. Mr. Hang is also a director of MIL.
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ZHAO BIN
Executive Director

Mr. Zhao Bin, aged 42, was appointed as an executive director of the Company
since 13 June 2024, and he holds a bachelor’s degree and is a senior accountant
professional. From July 2005 to May 2011, he worked in the real estate sector of
Macrolink Group and held various key positions in the financial department; from
June 2011 to March 2013, he served as deputy financial director and director of
Inner Mongolia Macrolink Real Estate Co,, Ltd,; from April 2013 to October 2015,
he served as the executive deputy director of the audit department of Macrolink
Real Estate Co, Ltd,; from November 2015 to January 2018, he served as the
financial director of Macrolink Commercial Management Co,, Ltd,; from February
2018 to January 2021, he served as the deputy general manager and financial
director of Beijing Macrolink Hengye Property Development Ltd. He has served
as financial director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co,, Ltd. since
March 2021 and also the vice-president since June 2024. He also a director of
MIL.

LIU YUZHEN
Executive Director

Mr. Liu Yuzhen, aged 40, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company since 13 June 2024 Mr. He is the chairman of Beijing Yuehao Property
Management Co,, Ltd, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the chairman of several of its subsidiaries. The Company’s brand “Yuehao
Property”has national first-class property management qualifications.

He joined Macrolink Group in 2015, a large modern enterprise group covering
multiple industries including cultural tourism, chemicals and materials,
mining and petroleum, finance and investment, and comprehensive sectors.
In Macrolink Group, he served as deputy office director and director of the
administration service center, and later transferred to Beijing Yuehao Property
Management Co,, Ltd.

Mr. Liu obtained his diploma in law from Shijiazhuang Army Command College
in June 2012. He has served in the Central Guard Bureau for more than ten years
since 2002, and has long been responsible for major meetings at the Great Hall of
the People, major state affairs and foreign affairs activities, and visits to China by
foreign heads of state and dignitaries. He has won third-class merit many times,
and has been successively named as an outstanding individual, an outstanding
member of the Security Bureau, an advanced individual in the Olympics, and an
outstanding contributor to the 17th and 18th National Congress.
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TING LEUNG HUEL, STEPHEN
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA, CTA (HK),
FHKIoD, aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 25 February 2004. He is the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee of the Company and the Remuneration Committee, and a member
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ting is an accountant by profession and has
over 40 years of experience in Accounting, Auditing and Management. He is a
non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (stock
code: 116) and holds independent non-executive director in four other listed
companies, namely Tongda Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 698), Computer
and Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 46), China SCE Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1966) and Dongyue Group Limited (stock code: 189).

CHOW ON KIU
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Chow On Kiu, aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 13 June 2024. Mr. Chow On Kiu graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts in Social Sciences. Mr. Chow
worked at the Chase Bank before joining the Sun Hung Kai Company Limited
(stock code: 86) in 1974. In 1979, he founded Sun Hung Kai (China) Company
Limited to engage in trade and investment in China. He founded Tian An
Development Co, Ltd. in 1985, and Tian An China Investments Co,, Ltd. in 1987,
where he concurrently served as the managing director. Tian An China was the
first listed company in Hong Kong to fully engage in China investments. He had
participated in China Hotel in Guangzhou, Union Friendship Tower in Shanghai,
Shenzhen Tian An International Building and projects & constructions in Beijing,
Tianjin, Xi'an, Wuhan, Xiamen and other places in China.

Mr. Chow joined the Wharf Group in 2006 and was the director and vice
chairman of the company since July 2011. He was appointed as the first vice
chairman in March 2015. He was also the chairman of Wharf China Estates
Limited and was responsible for the group’s evelopment property business in
the mainland China. He served as a non-executive director and vice chairman
of Greentown China Holdings Limited from March 2015 to July 2015. He retired
from the Wharf Group in May 2022. Mr. Chow has served as an independent
non-executive director of Hong Kong Economic Times Group Co, Ltd. (stock
code: 423) since April 2005 and retired in December 2021. He is serving as a non-
executive director of Greentown China Holdings Limited (stock code: 3900) since
31 December 2024

TRIE

BIAERITES

T REES E > MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKIoD > 715% » 1R20045F 2B 25 H EZ X4
KABBIUFERNTEE -HABZEZE G RFNE
BEIF TARLEEGZE - TAEAExT
A AR AABENTFLR - HRABEE
EEERERAR BRMDAIE 116) ZIERTESE
ROUE EMRABZEBIIERITES  DABES
EZERBRAE BRI 698) BB AMKER
EIRAT RMDMAIE : 46) - PRERTRERAT
(BB 1SE - 1966) REREEBABRAT BRHDA
gE 1 189) o

BZE

BIJERITES

BRBIRE > 745 12024 F6 B 13 EZEAERA
BB TESF BEEEENRETEARSZ 1L
RlExat SERAERT BR1974EMAR
BEARAT RPRSE: 86) TIE> L H1979F Al
AR E (PE) BRAE O RETHEZ RS-
W98 FRIMAZERBIRAR > 1987FMILK
ZHRAKREERAD RIBESHKE X2HhE
EEAEREENETEAREN LHRGE B28
BEMN B KBS LBHEKE RNIKRZEE KX
ERFELR X2 AL - RE BESHNEBEEE

=l
A% ©

B ER2006FEMANEEER B2011F7AHEH
FABEEREIEFE  R2015FE3/8REEAE—
BlEBE BAANEATHRMEZERERERADNE
B aEEREERTEAMNERYEEE K
EF2015F38 E2015F7 8 HIEAEH P REZER AR
NEWIERNTESREIERE - HR2022F58% A
BEREMB R FEEM2005F4FRRETEBLE
EHREEBRAR RHMAHE 1 423) ZBILIEH
TEE 20215128 R E B 2024F 12831 HEE
EEZIMPEER B R AT BR7H A5 3000) 23
HiTESR-

NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2024



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WEN YI
Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Wen Yi, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 13 June 2024. Ms. Wen Yi holds a bachelor’s degree in
economics from Zhengzhou University and a master's degree in business
administration (EMBA) from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.

Ms. Wen has over 20 years of experience in the media, culture and education
sectors. She served as director, producer and deputy director of the urban
channel of Henan TV Station from 1999 to 2011, director of the literary and art
department of Henan TV Station from 2011 to 2013, and director of the Cultural
Department of Henan TV Station in 2013. From 2013 to 2016, she served as the
chairman of Henan Oak Real Estate Co. Ltd., and from 2016 to present, she serves
as the chairman of Executive Education (Hong Kong) Co. Ltd.

Ms. Wen currently also serves as a director of the Senior Management Education
Project of the School of Economics and Management of the University of Hong
Kong, a member of the Hong Kong Arts Festival Development Committee, a
member of the Hong-Kong-based member of the Henan Province’s Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC), vice president and director
of the Hong Kong Henan Friendship Association and an executive director of
the China Overseas Friendship Association and the Henan Overseas Friendship
Association.

NG MO CHUN
Company Secretary

Mr. Ng Mo Chun, aged 40, is the company secretary and the authorised
representative of the Company since 18 September 2020. He is a fellow member
& an authorized supervisor of potential CPA of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a member of of Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, a member of Hong Kong Company Governance Institute (Formerly
known as Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered
Governance Institute (Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators)
with ESG reporting certification qualification and obtained the dual professional
qualifications of Chartered Secretary and Corporate Governance Professional.
He holds a bachelor degree in business administration (accounting and finance)
and a master degree in economics from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ng has
worked in a Big-4 international professional services firm, a luxury chain hotel
group, a regional airline group and a PRC property developer, accumulating
over 17 years of experience in accounting, financial management, mergers and
acquisitions, capital financing and regulatory & compliance matters of listed
companies.

Prior to joining of the Company, he has held the financial controlling and
company secretarial positions for China New City Commercial Development
Limited (stock code: 1321) from January to November 2019.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in (i) development and operation of integrated resort and
cultural tourism in South Korea; (i) development and operation of real estate
in Australia (discontinued in December 2024); (iii) production and distribution
of wine in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") (discontinued in October
2024); and (iv) operation of entertainment business in South Korea (discontinued
in June 2024); and (v) provision of property management service in the PRC.
Details of the principal activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries
of the Company are shown in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance is set out as below:

Overview

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 4 to 7 of this
annual report.

Key financial and business performance indicators

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using key financial
and business performance indicators comprising revenue, gross profit margin,
current ratio, gearing ratio and capital adequacy levels is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion & Analysis” on pages 8 to 14 of this annual
report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to environmental conservation. We have adopted
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") policy, leading us in pursuit
of sustainable business operation. With the implementation of various
environmental initiatives and practices in our business segments, the Group
strives for effective air emissions control, proper waste management and
wastewater treatment, optimising resource efficiency and building climate
resilience, in order to minimise the adverse impacts on the environment
and continually improve our environmental performance. The Group also
ensures that all our businesses operations strictly comply with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations. For further details of the ESG initiatives,
practices and performance of the Group, please refer to the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”on pages 65 to 105 of this annual
report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with such requirements that
could have a significant impact on the conduct of our business and our
prospects. Non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations could result
in sanctions being levied against us, including fines, censures and suspension
which could adversely affect our reputation, prospects, revenues and earnings.
Accordingly, the Group has been allocating staff resources to ensure ongoing
compliance with rules and regulations and the new regulatory and reporting
standards. We also maintain cordial working relationships and communication
with local governments and relevant departments.

During the year, the Group's principal operations are carried out in South Korea,
Australia and the PRC while the Company’s shares are listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). As far as the
Directors are aware, there was no material impact on the Group resulting from
non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations.

The Company has complied with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571) ("SFO"), the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622),
the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs and other relevant
rules and regulations during the year. Details regarding the measures and
policies taken relating to the property management business in China and
the compliance with applicable laws and regulations are set out in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 65 to 105 of
this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

During the year under review, the Group's businesses, financial conditions, results
of operations or growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group's businesses. The principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set out below. This is not an exhaustive
statement of all relevant risks and uncertainties. Matters which are not currently
known to the Board or events which the Board considers to be immaterial may
also have a material adverse effect on our businesses, financial conditions, results
of operations or growth prospects.

Risks related to our general operation
) Global economy and macro-economic conditions

The Group is exposed to the fluctuation of the global economy as well
as the industries and geographical markets in which it operates. Any
significant change in the level of economic growth in the global or
regional economy could adversely affect the Group’s financial conditions
or results of operation. In addition, if any event arises which materially and
adversely affects the social environment of the markets where we operate,
such as the pandemic, it may cause a significant impact on our ability to
operate business in a normal manner. Such event may cause disruptions
to our normal business activities and suspension of our business
operation temporarily.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

Risks related to our general operation (Continued)

(ii)

Currency fluctuations

The Group is an investment company with diversified businesses in
Australia, South Korea and Mainland China, and is exposed to potential
currencies fluctuations in those countries in which the Group operates.
The results of the Group are recorded in Hong Kong dollars but its
various subsidiaries may receive revenue and incur expenses in other
currencies. Any currencies fluctuations on translation of the accounts of
these subsidiaries may therefore impact on the Group’s financial position
or potential income, asset value and liabilities. The Group has not yet
engaged in any financial instruments for hedging purposes. Instead,
the Group will closely monitor potential currencies and interest rates
exposures in order to implement suitable foreign exchange hedging
policy where necessary to minimise the related risk.

Risks related to our entertainment busines (discontinued in June
2024) in Jeju, South Korea

@

(ii)

Economic trends

Market demands for entertainment are influenced by the economic
conditions in the relevant regions or countries. Our entertainment
business is particularly susceptible to the economic condition in China
where a significant number of our customers come from. Unfavourable
economic condition could cause decline in customer spending on
entertainment and thus reduce demand for our services, which could
adversely affect our revenue, results of operation and cash flows.

Regional events

Our entertainment business is sensitive to the willingness of the
customers to travel as all of them are non-local. Regional events, including
those resulting in travellers perceiving the area as unstable, regional
conflicts or an outbreak of hostilities or war or diseases, may cause severe
disruption on international travel, which would result in a decrease
in visitors to Jeju, South Korea and thus, may affect the results of our
operation. For risk mitigation and diversification purpose, the Group has
adjusted the development strategy to invest in countries which are more
politically stable with degree of certainty in financial return.

Risks related to our real estate business (discontinued in
December 2024) in Sydney, Australia

()

Property market risk

The real estate business of the Group is highly dependent on the
performance of the property market it operates. Any property market
downturn in the country generally or in the city and region in which
the Group's property project is located, or the lack of suitable land banks
or reserves for project development could adversely affect the Group's
business, results of operation and financial conditions.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

Risks related to our wine business (discontinued in October
2024) in the PRC

(@

(ii)

(ii})

(iv)

v)

Macroeconomic environment

Our wine business may be affected by the volatility and uncertainty of
local and global macroeconomic conditions, particularly the changes in
domestic economy and local customer preferences. The unfavourable
factors and market uncertainty affecting China's consumer market may
result in reduced demand for our products and thus, leading to lower
revenue and increased inventory pressure. It is therefore necessary for the
Group to diversify its investments and to adjust its business model and
operation approach to adapt to the change.

Government policies

Given the government policies to restrict ostentatious consumption and
impose stringent control over government spending on entertainment
and gifting, the markets for high-end winery products plunged. We have
been developing new and innovative products, managing manufacturing
and operating in a more scientific way, and adjusting our product mix so
as to adapt to the market shift caused by the effect of such policies.

Intense competition

With fierce competition brought by e-commerce and imported products,
challenges in wine industry remain. By enhancing brand awareness and
producing better quality products, we intend to differentiate ourselves
from our competitors and maintain leading position in our major markets.

Reputational risk

We rely on brand reputation and brand image to maintain a leading
position in the market. Should there exist any negative publicity
concerning our brands or products or in the industry in general, whether
true or not, it may degrade consumer confidence and in turn have a
material adverse effect on our business and operational results. It is
important that we continue to uphold the brand value, corporate image,
product safety and maintain high business ethics.

Food safety risk

Food safety risk can arise in every step along the entire supply chain, from
plantation, raw materials storage, production process, to wine delivery,
storage and sales. Without efficient control measures to monitor and
trace the entire production process, food safety risk may give rise to
material impact on our business. Food safety incidents may bring negative
information dissemination and cause considerable damage to corporate
reputation.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

Risks related to our property management business in the PRC

(iif)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

We may not be able to obtain new or renew existing property
management service contracts on favorable terms, or at all

Our future growth may not materialize as planned and is largely affected
by changes in China's economic, political and social conditions and
government policies

We derive a majority of our revenue from providing services to properties
developed and/or owned in and around Beijing (and collectively our
largest customer)

We may not be able to collect service fees from our customers, which may
result in impairment losses on receivables

We may experience intense competition and be unable to compete
effectively. We generally charge our clients on a lump sum basis and
therefore we may not be able to effectively predict or control the costs of
providing our property management services. Increased staff costs and
subcontracting costs may harm our business and affect our profitability

We are vulnerable to changes in the regulatory landscape of China’s
property management services industry and the regulatory environment
of China’s real estate industry

We may be involved from time to time in legal and other disputes and
claims arising from our daily operations

We face risks associated with hiring third-party subcontractors to perform
certain property management services and value-added services, and
risks associated with failing to detect and prevent fraud, negligence or
other misconduct by our employees, third-party subcontractors or other
third parties

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group's success also depends on the support from key stakeholders which
comprise employees, customers, shareholders, media, business partners and
suppliers. Such relationships are further discussed in the section headed “1.3
Stakeholder Engagement” in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 70 to 71 of this annual report.

Future business developments

An indication of future development of the Group’s business is presented in the
section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 4 to 7 of this annual report.

RESULTS
The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 111.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).
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CHARITABLE DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 238 to 239.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 12
June 2025 to Wednesday, 18 June 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose
of ascertaining shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company (the 2025 AGM") to be held on Wednesday,
18 June 2025. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2025 AGM,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong by 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 11 June 2024.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 115
and note 36 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company did not have any distributable reserves.

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

There was no equity fund raising by the Company during the year, nor were
there any unutilised proceeds brought forward from any issue of equity securities
made in previous financial years.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ma Chenshan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Gengyu

Mr. Zhang Jian

Mr. Hang Guanyu

Mr. Zhao Bin

Mr. Liu Yuzhen

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Chow On Kiu
Ms. Wen'Yi
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws"),
Mr. Ma Chenshan, Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Hang Guanyu will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
2025 AGM. None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2025 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 15 to 19 of this annual
report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service and employment contracts, no other contracts, relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
Group's business were entered into or existed during the year.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the Company,
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year, nor had there been any contract of significance entered into between the
Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
except the related party transactions disclosure at the page 32-33 of this report,
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provides that the Directors shall be indemnified by the Company
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which shall or
may incur by reason of any act done or omitted in the execution of their duties.
The Company has maintained directors'and officers'liability insurance during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of Mr. Ma Chenshan, Mr. Wang Gengyu, Mr. Hang Guanyu and Mr. Zhao Bin
is the director and/or senior management of Macrolink Culturaltainment
Development Co, Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with
stock code 000620, which is involved in the development and operation of
residential and commercial real estate and cultural tourism businesses in the PRC
through its subsidiaries.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their respective
associates had any interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

The above-mentioned competing businesses are operated and managed by
companies with independent management and administration. In addition, the
Board is independent of the boards of the above-mentioned companies carrying
on the competing businesses. Accordingly, the Group is capable of carrying on
its businesses independent of the competing businesses mentioned above.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
(@) Interests of Directors

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

A= Ny

W=
(a)

HE

EE¥EGD

RZZE_WE+_B=+—H BFRER
AEXFETHAERAATDREAEEZE (E
& BB L5 RIS IEMEXVER) 2 BR5 8RR
DRESEHDERALHENEQATRIEES &
EIEBEI U BEEZECMANER R
KA WBREBELHRAFHLETETAES
ETEERZNEESR) (MZ%#SFE)) BS
THERA B RBIANERRXBNT

REQBRMG RERRKRBNEE

No. of shares/underlying shares held in the Company

28

FRFA A AERG, ERRHEE

Interest in

Name of Directors

EENt%

Mr. Zhang Jian

Nature of
interest

e tEE

Beneficial owner

RIS BmESA
Mr. Hang Guanyu Beneficial owner
mmuFiEE BmEAA

Interest in
shares

ARt

underlying Approximate
shares percentage of
pursuant to issued share
share options  Total interests capital
RIS A A 1
5 AE R HERITRE
Liabig s 1 B4 B
7,850,400 7,850,400 0.24%
7,850,400 7,850,400 0.24%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

b ECIREESN ) B = 2024128318 mAE
EERRSTHRAERENRALATRETMA
AR (ERRESRIAEEAISEXVED B
B EHERDRESTHREIRRAES
RABRBES RBPERGAEIVREEE
HESRMAT RN EEERI XA RIRE
ST BN AN KB R TR AR
FAB o
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)
(b) Interests of substantial shareholders

As at 31 December 2024, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the Company) had,
or were deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Name of Shareholders Nature of interest

[Pt

Macro-Link International Land Limited Beneficial owner

MEHEREMBRAT BmEEA
Macrolink Culturaltainment Controlled corporation
Development Co, Ltd. ZEEAE

MEMEREZRRNBRAT

MACRO-LINK International Investment Beneficial owner

Co, Ltd.
MEMERREBRAT BmEBA
Macro-Link Industrial Investment Limited Controlled corporation
MEMBERERRAT SEEE
Macro-Link Holding Company Limited ~ Controlled corporation
MEMIZRBRAT ZEEE
Mr. Fu Kwan Controlled corporation
BELE REEE
Beneficial owner
BmEEA
Cheung Shek Investment Limited Controlled corporation
EAREBRAA SEEE
Ms. Xiao Wenhui Controlled corporation
HXZxt SEEE
Beneficial owner
BmEBA

S ()

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
5

FERREDR
RIE_NME+"B=+—H BESFF
o UTAL BFEHAEARBDEETHAER
5N AR B RD T ARRA R 17 A SR R Bk
ERBESMAERMNEXVEFE2R3IDER
ERMAERB KRB PARENCEHNEAT
RIEBFRAERMEBMFAFTEZE
MARREZIKE

REQBRMG RERRKRONGEE

Approximate
No. of shares/ percentage of
underlying issued share
shares held capital
FR¥sRE1R HERITRA
HERA R 17 B B RS I=Radan
1,757,450,743 54.79% 1,2
1,757,450,743 54.79% 2
215,988,336 6.73% 3
215,988,336 6.73% 4
215,988,336 6.73% 24
215,988,336 6.73% 4,5
10,000,000 031%
215,988,336 6.73% 5
215,988,336 6.73% 5
6,010,000 0.19%
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

(b)

Interests of substantial shareholders (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

These shares are held by Macro-Link International Land Limited which is a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co,, Ltd. whose issued
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 000620.

Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co., Ltd. whose issued shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 000620 is the ultimate
beneficial owner of the Company but no shareholder holds more than 33% of its
shares.

These shares are held by MACRO-LINK International Investment Co, Ltd. which
is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Macro-Link Industrial Investment Limited.

Macro-Link Industrial Investment Limited is wholly owned by Macro-Link
Holding Company Limited which in turn is owned as to 93.40% by Cheung Shek
Investment Limited, as to 2.83% by Mr. Fu Kwan and as to the remaining 3.77% by
five individuals.

Cheung Shek Investment Limited is owned as to 59.76% by Mr. Fu Kwan (who
has been granted 10,000,000 share options on 31 March 2017 under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 23 August 2012 (the “Share Option
Scheme"), as to 33.46% by Ms. Xiao Wenhui (who also has a personal interest in
3,010,000 shares of the Company and has been granted 3,000,000 share options
under the Share Option Scheme on 31 March 2017), as to 3.36% by Mr. Zhang
Jian and as to 3.42% by an individual.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements. Details of the outstanding share options during the year
ended 31 December 2024 are as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
5

RERRtEst &
MR BB RN RS BREN 2 BE—
ToME+ A=+ BIEEEERITEBRE
ZEBWRMT :

Number of shares issuable under options

RIgERET X TRGEE
Exercisable Outstanding
price  Outstanding Lapsed asat Lapsed  Outstanding
per share asat during 31.12.2023 during asat
Name of category of participants Date of grant Exercise period HK$ 1.1.2023 theyear  and 1.1.2024 the year 31.12.2024
N
ZEC-=f
ZH 1
=t+—B% ZEIME
“EoNE +ZA
—A—H =t+-R
SEEML KR T RATHE T RATHE
Directors
BZ
Mr. Zhang Jian 4.7.2016 47201610 3.7.2026 20381 7,850400 - 7,850,400 - 7,850,400
RERE
Mr. Hang Guanyu 4.7.2016 47201610 3.7.2026 20381 7,850400 - 7,850,400 - 7,850,400
Other employees or participants 4.7.2016 47201610 3.7.2026 20381 44,158,500 (2,943,900) 41,214,600 (17,633,400) 23,551,200
HitEEHSHE 3132017 313201710 3032027 20000 13,000,000 - 13,000,000 - 13,000,000
Total 72,859,300 (2,943,900) 69,915,400 (17,663,400 52,252,000
4zt
Exercisable at the end of the reporting period 72,859,300 69915400 (17,663,400) 52,252,000
REREHRATE
Weighted average exercise price 20313 20381 20310 20381 20286

METHITEE

Note: None of the above granted share options have any vesting periods or
vesting conditions and they were all fully vested on the respective dates of
grant.

During the Year, none of the above share options were exercised or cancelled.
The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
as at the date of the annual report was 52,252,000 Shares, representing
approximately 1.63% of the total issued share capital of the Company.

et o U EERHERET R B EITEASITRES
wEREEASRESE-

AEER EMREEEERITEREH -HE
AEFRBE BIRBRESSIHBTHRMER
#552,252,0008% > (A A B B EITIR AN ARRELT1.63% ©
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT
SECURITIES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debt securities, including debentures, of the Company
or any other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities (including the sale of treasury shares)
during the Year. As at 31 December 2024, there were no treasury shares (as
defined under the Listing Rules) held by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group during the year are set
out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements. The transactions in
paragraph (a) fall under the definition of “continuing connected transaction”
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Except for the continuing connected
transactions summarized as below, all of the related party transactions were fully

exempted from disclosure under the de minimis rule.

On 22 March 2023, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary Sichuan Silkroad
Data Technology Co, Ltd. and the Company’s controlling shareholder Macrolink
Culturaltainment Tourism Development Co., Ltd. and/or its associates, signed
the contract regarding the continuing connected transactions for the property
management service income, rental office space fees and security and guard
service fees for three years ending 31 December 2025, the relevant resolutions
have been passed at the Company's special general meeting held on 15 May
2023. Details of the annual caps and incurred amount in the current year
are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements. Macrolink
Culturaltainment Tourism Development Co., Ltd. and/or its associates have
ceased to engage Sichuan Silkroad Data Technology Co,, Ltd. for the provision
of security and guard services from 1 April 2024 and the Group have since been
providing the security and guard services by itself for the relevant properties.

For all definitions and details of the transactions, please refer to the
announcement and circular of the Company on 22 March 2023 and 28 April
2023 respectively.

EFBERMABHEFTZHER
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FIEWBARABNEMNEMEANBRZ RN TE
B (BEES MED R -

AR 7 14 S0 15
B ECPTMBES HE S MEFF=+—
B L4 B > A A B R 5] 31 5 77 E R A R A M 155

=3
% ©

BE -BOXHLEFSATZ LHES

FARRADXEEANBLADMERE - HEXNE
EARBER LHES (BEEFR) 102024512
A8 ARREREEAERFR-

FERR %

FEERFEARBESRZ ZFBRHNIGEEMH
WARMIEE47 - EHMEFARRR S Z () B LR
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been entered
into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  onnormal commercial terms or better; and

(3)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transaction
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information”and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group above
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation
to the above connected transactions (including continuing connected
transactions).

EVENTS AFTER THE PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no important events after the Year
and up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Good corporate governance has always been recognised as vital to the Group's
success and to sustain development of the Group. We commit to attain and
maintain high standards of corporate governance to enhancing shareholders’
value and safeguarding interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. The
Board has implemented corporate governance code appropriate to the conduct
and growth of the Group's businesses.

Since the second half of the Year, the roles of board chairman and the general
management were separated, the Company complied the principles of good
corporate governance and complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Part 2 of Appendix
C1 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman), Mr. Chow On Kiu and
Ms. Wen Yi.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal control and risk
management systems of the Group, and financial reporting matters including a
review of the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2024. The
Audit Committee was content that the accounting policies of the Group are in
accordance with the current best practice in Hong Kong.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws of
Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to shareholders by
reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
were audited by CCTH CPA Limited (“CCTH") whose term of office will expire
upon the 2025 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of CCTH as the auditor
of the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the 2025 AGM.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information which is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
Ma Chenshan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE PURPOSE, STRATEGY AND
CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board defines the purpose, values and strategy of the Company and
considers that the Company's corporate culture is aligned. The Group is
committed to creating value for consumers, and to delivering attractive and
sustainable returns to the Shareholders. Despite the ever-changing operating
environment, the Group places strong emphasis on workplace safety, employee
relations and the efficient use of materials, energy and resources, promoting a
culture of ethical conduct and integrity. A healthy corporate culture is important
to good corporate governance which is crucial for achieving sustainable long-
term success of the Group.

ESG-RELATED MATTERS

The Company adheres to improving internal sustainability governance,
strengthening the management and control of corporate development’s impact
on the environment and society, and creating value for our stakeholders. The
Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s ESG strategy and reporting,
and oversees the overall ESG governance of the Company. In particular, the
Board conducts a regular review of the Group's ESG-related matters and
considered, among others, (i) the adequacy of resource, staff qualification and
experience, training programmes and budget of those relating to Group’s ESG
performance and reporting; (i) the changes, since the last annual review, in the
nature and extent of significant ESG risks (if any); and (iii) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of ESG risks. For further details, please refer
to the Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Good corporate governance has always been recognised as vital to the Group’s
success and to sustain development of the Group. We commit to attain and
maintain high standards of corporate governance to enhancing shareholders’
value and safeguarding interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. The
Board has implemented corporate governance code appropriate to the conduct
and growth of the Group's businesses.

Throughout the year, the Company has applied the principles of good corporate
governance and complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”") as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1
of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules.

Upon specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors, confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who, because of such office or position, are likely to
possess inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company's business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and
is collectively responsible for promoting success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. All Directors should make decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company, including the
approval and monitoring of all operating policies, business strategies, financial
budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those which may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company’s company secretary (the “Company
Secretary”) with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the executive Directors and/or senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions or commitments entered into
on the Company's behalf.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge its
responsibilities.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
as set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code including, among other
matters:

To develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance;

To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and employees; and

To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board has reviewed the
Company's corporate governance practices and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code.

Composition

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The function of the Board is to guide the management
to ensure the interests of the Shareholders and other stakeholders are
safeguarded.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse board
to enhance the quality of its performance. The size and composition of the Board
are reviewed from time to time with reference to the board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) adopted by the Company, taking into account the scope
and nature of operations of the Company, to ensure that the necessary balance
of skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company and facilitate effective decision-making.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprised the following members:

Name of Directors

EFUR

Mr. Ma Chenshan

Positions

B iz

Chairman/Executive Director/Chairman of

Nomination Committee

BELLE FERTES REEEEER
Mr. Wang Gengyu Executive Director
EFEFRE BITES

Mr. Zhang Jian Executive Director
RESAE BITES

Mr. Hang Guanyu Executive Director
MEFRE BITES

Mr. Zhao Bin Executive Director
IR St BITES

Mr. Liu Yuzhen Executive Director
B EEKE BITES

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

T REERE

Mr. Chow On Kiu

Independent non-executive Director/
Chairman of Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee

BUIERITES FNEEER
BREEELIR

Independent non-executive Director

BziETE BILJFMITES
Ms. Wen Yi Independent non-executive Director
XEz+ BILJFMITES

ax

ﬁ:\,\E-/I:I

BEFET®
AR &)
N-E-—HF+-A=+—R EEEHEUTHE
4R

Date of first Date of last
appointment to re-election at
the Board general meetings
BREZES RIE—RK
EEgHE A EEE
B B HA EERREA
30/12/2019 8/6/2022
13/06/2024 -
25/2/2004 13/06/2024
8/6/2015 13/06/2024
13/06/2024 -
13/06/2024 -
25/2/2004 8/6/2023
13/06/2024 -
13/06/2024 -

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having sound
industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning experience
and expertise relevant to the business operations and development of the
Group. All executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors come
from diverse background with varied expertise in finance, legal and business
fields. Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 19 of this
annual report. The Company has maintained an updated list of Directors
identifying their roles and functions on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Save and except that Mr. Ma Chenshan, Mr. Wang Gengyu, Mr. Zhang Jian, Mr.
Hang Guanyu and Mr. Zhao Bin are the senior management of Macro-Link
International Land Limited and/or Macrolink Culturaltainment Development
Co, Ltd. as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management’, there is no relationship (including financial, business, family, or
other material/relevant relationship(s)) among the Board members.
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EEERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures
for the appointment of new Directors. A person may be appointed as a member
of the Board at any time either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the
Board upon recommendation by the Nomination Committee. The procedures
for Shareholders to propose a person as a Director are accessible from the
Company's website.

Each of the Directors has accepted a formal appointment by the Company for a
period of three years and subject to retirement by rotation. According to the Bye-
laws and the code provision of the CG Code, all Directors (including executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, the Board may appoint any Director(s)
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board.
Any Director(s) so appointed shall hold office only until the following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code also stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and be subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in August 2013 which sets out its
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. The Board Diversity
Policy has been published on the Company's website for public information.

The Company recognises the benefits of board diversity and endeavours to
ensure that the Board has the appropriate balance and level of skills, experience
and perspectives required to support the execution of its business strategies and
sustainable development. According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company
seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Company will also take into consideration factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee has set measurable objectives (in terms of gender,
age, skills and experience) to implement the Board Diversity Policy. Such
objectives will be reviewed from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and the progress made towards achieving those objectives will be ascertained.
The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate,
to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
diversity of the Board and considered that the Company has achieved the
measurable objectives of the Board Diversity Policy in terms of age, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of services.

The composition of the Nomination Committee is in compliance with the
changes to the CG Code which came into effect on 1 January 2022, including the
requirement for listed issuers with a single gender board to appoint a director
of a different gender before the end of the 3-year transition period, and the
Nomination Committee will continue to review the composition of the Board
regularly.

The Company will continue to take gender diversity into consideration during
recruitment and increase the female proportion at all levels over time with the
ultimate goal of achieving gender diversity, such that there is a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to the Board in the future.

As at 31 December 2024, the gender ratio in the workforce (including senior
management) of the Company of female and male are 49% and 51%, which the
Board considers to reflect that gender diversity in the workforce of the Group.
The Board has not identified any challenges for maintaining gender diversity in
the workforce so far.

Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) in December
2018 which sets out the process and criteria for identifying and recommending
candidates for election to the Board. The Nomination Policy has been published
on the Company's website for public information.

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any proposed
candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing member(s) to the
Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider (including but not limited to)
the following criteria (the “Criteria”) in assessing the suitability of the proposed
candidate:

a. Character and integrity;

b. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,
accomplishment and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

C. Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service;

d. Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

e Potential contributions that the individual can bring to the Board in terms
of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender diversity;
and

f. Compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under Rule

3.10(2) and 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of independent
non-executive Director.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for appointment as
additional Director or to fill any casual vacancy on the Board in accordance with
the following procedures:

The Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems appropriate
in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from
existing Directors, recommendations from personnel agents or as
proposed by shareholders with due consideration given to the Criteria;

ii. The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems appropriate
in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks and third-party reference checks;

iil. The Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written
resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board
for appointment;

V. The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of the
selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of a
remuneration package of such candidate;

V. The Remuneration Committee will make a recommendation to the Board
on the proposed remuneration package; and

vi. All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the signing of the
consent to act as Director (or any other similar filings requiring the
relevant Director to acknowledge or accept the appointment, as the case
may be) and filing of the same with the Companies Registry of Hong Kong
and/or the Companies Registry of Bermuda.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, three new executive directors and
two new independent non-executive directors were appointed. In compliance
with Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules, (i) Mr. Wang Gengyu, Mr. Zhao Bin and Mr.
Liu Yuzhen, who were appointed as a Director on 13 June 2024, obtained the
legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 4 June 2024, and
each of them has confirmed that he understood his obligations as a director of
a listed issuer; and (i) Mr. Chow On Kiu and Ms. Wen Yi, who were appointed as
Directors on 13 June 2024, obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of
the Listing Rules on 6 June 2024, and each of them has confirmed that he/she
understood his/her obligations as a director of a listed issuer.

Board Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings should be held two times a year at half-year intervals
for reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance, and
considering and approving the overall operating strategies and policies of the
Company. The Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-level
decision on a particular matter is required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Meetings (Continued)
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board held 10 meetings, among
these there was one meeting for independent non-executive directors only. The
attendance records of the Directors are set out below:

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

Executive Directors
HITEE

Mr. Ma Chenshan
BELLE
Mr. Wang Gengyu
FEFRE
Mr. Zhang Jian
RESE

Mr. Hang Guanyu
mEFiEE
Mr. Zhao Bin
It

M. Liu Yuzhen
Bl ErEfE

Independent non-executive Directors
BUIFBMITEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
TRIESRE

Mr. Chow On Kiu

BEBRE

Ms. Wen Yi

XE&gt

EXEA®mS

EEg®
EECTEEZ B
EEXNUREFLERRE @)
HE_Z=_NE+_A=+-—HILEE B2

ToRgHE HAIRBRERBIUIFRITES- "F
REHEEHF 2O

Written
Resolution
EmRE

HERYEERY

4/4 3
4/4 3
3/3 3
4/4 3
3/3 3
3/3 3
5/5 3
3/3 3
3/3 3

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days
before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given. Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The meetings are structured to allow open discussion. All Directors participate in
discussing the strategy, operational and financial performance, internal control
and risk management of the Group.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Meetings (Continued)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors'inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves
conflict of interests on a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered
and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Bye-laws
also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such
Directors or any of their close associates have a material interest.

Independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business and
financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the Board.
Through serving on Board committees and active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of
interests, all independent non-executive Directors make various contributions to
the effective direction of the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

In compliance with HKEx's Code Provision B.2.3 of Part Il of the Corporate
Governance Code (as set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules"))
regarding the re-election of the independent non-executive directors, one of
the Company’s three independent non-executive directors have been in office
for more than nine years, and their re-election decisions should be deliberated
and approved by shareholders in the form of independent resolutions, with
explanation of the reasons why the board (or nomination committee) believes
that the director is still independent and should be re-elected, including the
factors considered, the process by which the board (or nomination committee)
made this decision, and the content of the discussions. The Company will seek to
pass such resolutions at the Annual General Meeting to be held in June 2025.

In compliance with the above code provision B.2.4, it is estimated that after the
end of 2024, only one independent non-executive director on the Company's
board of directors will have served for more than nine years.

The independence of each independent non-executive Director is reviewed
annually by the Nomination Committee based on the definition of
independence defined in the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee is
satisfied as to the independence of Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Mr. Chow On
Kiu and Ms. Wen Yi, each of whom has fulfilled all the criteria for independence as
stated in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (Continued)
Mechanism to Ensure Independent Views from Directors

During the year, the Nomination Committee also reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of mechanisms to ensure independent views and input
are available to the Board. Taking into account the following channels, the
Nomination Committee considered that the Company had in place mechanisms
which remain effective to ensure a strong independent element on the Board.
To ensure independent views and input from any Director, the following
mechanism is established by the Board:

1. Independence Assessment

Each of the independent non-executive Directors shall provide a
written annual confirmation of independence to the Company on their
compliance with the independence requirements as set out under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee shall assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors upon
appointment and annually to ensure they can continually exercise
independent judgement.

2. Composition of Board

Currently, approximately 66.7% of the Board members are executive
Directors while approximately 33.3% of the Board members are
independent non-executive Directors respectively, which is in compliance
with the requirement of the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the
Board are independent non-executive Directors.

3. Board Proceedings and Decision Making

At least 14 days’ formal notice of regular Board and Board Committee
Meetings will be given to all Directors, and all Directors are invited to
include any matters for discussion in the agenda. By at least 3 business
days in advance of every regular Board and Board Committee Meeting,
Directors are provided with the meeting agenda and the relevant board
papers containing complete, adequate and timely information to enable
full deliberation on the issues to be considered at the respective meetings.

All Directors are required to declare their direct/indirect interests, if any,
in any business proposals to be considered at the meetings and, where
appropriate, they are required to abstain from voting on any Board
resolution concerned.

Independent non-executive Directors should attend all regular meetings
of the Board and Board Committees on which they serve. They should also
attend general meetings of the Company to acquire understanding of the
views of the shareholders.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Mechanism to Ensure Independent Views from Directors

BEET®
BEREEBEIERENIES @

4. Remuneration of Independent Non-executive Directors 4. BIUIFERITERREHM
Independent non-executive Directors receive fixed fee(s) for their role as BUERTESMEEFRAEEEIRESTE S
members of the Board and Board Committees and no equity-based or EgREWNETHEE BERBILIERN
incentive based compensation program is granted to independent non- TEERTENRESE N ZB Bt
executive Directors as this may lead to bias in their decision-making and FRERARERRNELEARARTREEER
compromise their objectivity and independence. B REI-

5.  Access to Professional Advice and Up-to-date Information 5. ERSBEEERRRIEA
The Company Secretary provided induction pack and orientation program REMENEZTTMENMABRASREAR
for all new recruits to the Board. Such program would familiarise the newly Bl RFRBEIIREE EEEEESHES
appointed Director with the nature of the business, the corporation’s AESTHRAEBREE A B KRS NERZES
strategy, the internal control and corporate governance practices and RbEEABHEMBREURESHS- ZT§
policies, and directors' duties and responsibilities. Subsequent information RHERARESREEENSE USHMNEH
packages are regularly provided to the Directors to keep them abreast of EREHEBAAERSHEBREERE 7@
their responsibilities and infuse them with new knowledge relevant to the R8T o
Group's current business and operating environment.
To facilitate proper discharge of Directors’ duties and responsibilities, all REEEYBBTESHES 28EE (B1F8
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are entitled UIFHITES) ERSKRRAAMWERBIE
to seek advice from the Company Secretary as well as from independent XEENER  BEHRAQEKIE-
professional advisers at the expense of the Company.

6. Independent Views and Inputs Treasured and Valued 6. EEMEEMNBILHERER

During the Board and Board Committee meetings, the independent non-
executive Directors are encouraged to express freely their independent
views and inputs in an open and candid manner. The Chairman also
encourages questions and challenges from Directors, in particular
independent non-executive Directors and their comments and concerns

are closely followed up by the management.

In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman schedules a meeting
annually with independent non-executive Directors without the presence

of other Directors to discuss the affairs of the Group.

The Company Secretary is required to prepare minutes that record not
only the decision reached but any concerns raised or dissenting views
expressed by Directors. Draft versions of the minutes are circulated to
all Directors for their comment and confirmation before it is finalised for
records. Minutes of all Board and Board Committee Meetings are available

for Directors'inspection.

REFEREFETZESSE0H BB
IFRITEEUAHBHMNAAXBEAKRER
BUBHEBRR - ERTEZBES (LHES
IIFMITES) REKER  BEEERERY)
REHERREERE -

MREFETIHRIN FRETESFEREBIIIFEHR
TEEER— XU EAEMESHENZE
et A EEEFR -

AR EAMUE B DIFEREIR
EREFRUNEAREATAER 0
RBEEIRS RO BEFER LS
REAEBERNRNERRER FEE
FOREFUERCGRNGHRHTM
EEEE

The implementation and effectiveness of the above mechanisms have been
reviewed by the Board on an annual basis and the Board believes these measures
would allow the Directors to contribute effectively and independent views and

input are available to the Board and the Board Committees.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Supply of and Access to Information

The management supplied the Board with adequate and sufficient information
through financial reports, business and operational reports, in a timely manner, to
enable them to make informed decisions.

The management also provided Directors with management accounts and all
relevant information giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's performance, position and prospects on a regular basis to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 of
the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers’ liability insurance
for the Directors and officers of the Company in respect of legal action against
them arising from the performance of their duties. The insurance covers directors’
and officers’ liability, company reimbursement, legal representation expenses and
securities claims.

Continuing Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of his responsibility as a Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Group. The Company regularly
reviews the business development of the Group. The Company Secretary from
time to time updates and provides written materials to the Directors on the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to
ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

Every newly appointed Director, if any, will be provided with a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction so as to ensure he has appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of his duties and responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and the relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors have complied with the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on
continuous professional development by participating in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
providing the Company their records of training for the year ended 31 December
2024.The training attended by the Directors during the year are as follows:

EXEA®mS

BEFET®
REANREER
*IEL%F’]%%ﬁkTNﬁ“%Ei MR B

ETHABEERTONER UERSFFEA
%‘}9%7@0

EEETEMRNESRHEERERMAERE
B #IARARRAERRE RARASNAERS
AR BEFERSEFRE LHHEAISE3.08
HRITREZHE -

EERERBEZEEREREE

TRBEREEFRERBERBESBZEFZRS
BEEEERE AEREMNBITRBAEEZE
REF-FERBRAZEEFASBRBESET 2F
BN EZRAEEBRAKRESRE

FEEEEE
REEFRBEFAESNETRETURERH
AEBEBTHRERNER A AR TR
SENEBER - AAMEFRRAETEMRIEM
EEME ARER EHRAREMBEREGRE
NERMERE BRSEZTETERFTESFLEES
B o

BRMEESE WA SESE2E  EXRTSHEE

REZREER BREEERAEEEBURL
TRARBREAREZBERTE

%%E‘L?ﬁ% E. ATRABCIAMFERTEEREE

BRGSO 2EBERBEXER DUERKEMN
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EEERRS

THE BOARD (Continued) EE5T @
Continuing Professional Development (Continued) HIEEYEXE )

Corporate governance/updates on laws,
rules and regulations/finance/business

TEER RMER

HMARER, B 8%

Attended seminars/

Director Read materials trainings
2 REME  HEMsE 5
Executive Directors

HITEE

Mr. Ma Chenshan v v
BELRE

Mr. Wang Gengyu 4 v
FEFRE

Mr. Zhang Jian v v
RESE

Mr. Hang Guanyu 4 v
MEFAEE

Mr. Zhao Bin v v
L

Mr. Liu Yuzhen v v
B E=kE

Independent non-executive Directors

BUIFRITEE

Mr.Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 4 v
TRE&RYE

Mr. Chow On Kiu v v
BZBRE

Ms. Wen Yi v v
XE&z+
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVE

The roles of chairman and chief executive are separated and Mr. Ma Chenshan
currently performs the Chairman role while Mr. Zhang Jian is the general
manager.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, details of which are as
follows:

Nomination
Committee

RBWEET

Mr. Ma Chenshan
BELRE
Mr. Wang Gengyu
FEFEE
Mr. Zhang Jian
RESE

Mr. Hang Guanyu
mEFHEE
Mr. Zhao Bin
L

Mr. Liu Yuzhen

B FrEkE
Mr.Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
TRIERE
Mr. Chow On Kiu
BZRE it
Ms. Wen Yi
X&z+

EEE)

ESEIRRERSE
FAFBHEFEIRRTEEHZME BRI
SERIEEG IR MRREEABEE.

EXERET
EFERIU=-ZMEEEE DHRRELEED  FH
ZEGREZRZES UBERARFAZEEEHE
BB s BU T

Committee membership
ZEENE

Remuneration
Committee

HHNEEE

Audit Committee
BREEE

C Chairman of the relevant Board committees
M Member of the relevant Board committees

The written terms of reference of each of the Board committees, which set out
the committees' major duties, are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expenses.

C HHEFZEETE
M HHEFZEENE

HINEEEITEHEZREFLETTHMERS
B T8 AR B R i 2 PR Ak o

EFZEEEREERETRE £ EEXT
REBENBERASKBUEXAER  BAHEIRF
S fite
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EEERRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
(M

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 31 July 2005 with specific
terms of reference setting out the committee’s authority and duties. The
Nomination Committee comprises two executive Director namely Mr.
Ma Chenshan (Chairman), Mr. Zhang jian and three independent non-
executive Directors namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Mr. Chow On
Kiu and Ms. Wen Yi.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among other matters, the
following:

to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service) of the Board annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify and nominate qualified individual for appointment as
additional Director or to fill Board's casual vacancy for the Board's
approval as and when the circumstances arise. In identifying
suitable individual, it shall consider individual on merit and against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive

Directors and to review the independent non-executive Directors’

annual confirmations with respect to their independence; and
make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate Governance
Report;

to regularly review the time required for the Directors to perform
their responsibilities and to assess if they are spending enough
time to fulfill their duties;

to make recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the chairman and chief
executive; taking into consideration the Company’s corporate
strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
needed in the future;

to ensure that on appointment to the Board, Directors receive a
formal letter of appointment setting out clearly the key terms and
conditions of their appointment;

to review the Board Diversity Policy as appropriate and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, the progress on achieving the objectives and
disclose the Board Diversity Policy or a summary of the same and
its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually;

BEELZET ®

(1)

RHZEEG
ARABNZERRFLA=1+—HRIES
Zag WiIRARHMELE FIEET#
DEBE -RREETEMBAITESSE
BULE (EF) REAEUR=RFIIF
HITESRHNTREXRE BZBEERXE
LR

RLZEEERE HTPEH WT:

SERNEFENRE ABCERK
HZ ot (BEBRRIMR - F&
ERBEER FHER K- AN#H
RRBER) > WIRA QBB ERE
MEFERHE[ANERE;

ERERAEYERELCERES
NEERMEEFNEHESTTHRE
THRUBEEGRHE - RYBEBES
ANER @EBARALIZRERER
W RN EBREFENEZTIEZ
B

AZBUFRATERTZBILERES
BUFHATESHEBIMEMELZ
FERER, TE(RERERRS)TIKE
REHER

EBESERTEXMBEZRE I
FEFRERTANHRHEREETE
REARBIZEXRERHBREE
RE-AH KB ERZTLES E%é
IRETEFEEFTHITE (LHE
ERITHEY) 2 EREEEEEgIR
HEE

BREFTEZEFRIEXNZEE
2 ETMBRITABEREENIERM
RARAF

BEBRNESETNESTIEER; LR
NEFESRTHEERMSIER A 5
EEEMEREE , ASFE(EEE
ABRE)PREEFENESTEER
FEHBMERIBFER
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(M

Nomination Committee (Continued)

to review the policy for the nomination of Board members which
includes the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted by the Nomination Committee to identify, select and
recommend candidates for directorship during the year and make
disclosure of such policy in the Corporate Governance Report
annually;

where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, it
should set out in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general
meeting:

- the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the
reasons why it considers the individual to be independent;

- if the proposed independent non-executive Director will be
holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship,
the reason why the Board believes the individual would still
be able to devote sufficient time to the Board;

- the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

- how the individual contributes to the diversity of the Board;
to do such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its duties conferred on it by the Board; and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may

from time to time be prescribed by the Board or imposed by the
Listing Rules or applicable laws.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended
31 December 2024. Following is a summary of works performed by the
Nomination Committee during the year under review:

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board,
and made recommendations to the Board;

reviewed the board diversity policy and the nomination policy;

W B Xk AR QB € FERS 2024
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) BEELZET ®

(1)  Nomination Committee (Continued) 1) REBZEEE @
reviewed the independence of independent non-executive BMNSBUFNTESZEIE &
Directors; and
made recommendations to the Board on the retirement and MEBEBENRARDREFAFEARE LigE
re-appointment of Directors by rotation at the annual general BREREANEESRHESR-
meeting of the Company.
The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out REEZEEGEMEZHBEBRIEINOT !
below:
Name of members Number of meeting attended/Number of meeting held
REH% HERSYS FERH
Mr. Ma Chenshan (Chairman) 11
EELLE ()
Mr. Zhang Jian 0/0°
REBARE
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 1/1
TRERE
Mr. Chow On Kiu 0/0"
BBkt
Ms. Wen Yi 0/0"
XEaz+
* Since Mr. Zhang, Mr. Chow and Ms. Wen were appointed on 13 June 2024, they * ARAE S BERERXLZTR2024F68138 A
did not attend the last meeting which was held before their appointments. WRE W2 ELMA —RE&e
(2) Remuneration Committee 2 FHMEET

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 July 2005 with
specific terms of reference setting out the committee’s authority and
duties. The Remuneration Committee comprises two executive Directors
namely Mr. Ma Chenshan and Mr. Zhang Jian and three independent non-

ARBNR _ZZEHFELA=+—B ML
Ze% Wi RERHELE FIEETH
DEBE -#MEETEMBATESSE
BURERREEEUAR =ZBBIIFNTE

executive Directors namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman), Mr. ENTRIEBAE (FF) BLBRERNE
Chow On Kiu and Ms. Wen Yi. MM
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for, among other matters, rMEZEeRE EPEB 0T
the following:
to advise the Board on and to review the remuneration policy MEERBREERE ZHMNB KRG

and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior BHEEFRHEERMEERET ;
management;
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration MEEFEEZENITEZTRERE

packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

EBENFNTS

MEFEERIFNTEFTHF
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(2)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

to approve compensation payable to executive Directors and
senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors or misconduct;

to address and deal with such other matters as may be delegated
by the Board from time to time;

to ensure that no Director nor any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

to assess performance of executive directors and approve the
terms of their service contracts; and

to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

EFZEE®w

(2)

EXEA®mS

HFNEEE @

ERERINTFROESTAREE
Bl & A S A% LE EL S S = E RV AR

>

m‘nﬁ

BERBEREFEZTRATAREMK
fRENERBIEEREE

RIERBAEEGTIRHEENEMSE
B
BRETNEFSNHEAHREASH
H#M 2 RRBERE

FEHTEFEUNRAEERBE SR ;
P4

ERE/RHERR EHRAFE 7S
BRI BIREE

HEAE

The Directors are paid fees in line with market practice. The Group EEEINZHVEREMHER - AEEEK
adopted the following main principles of determining the Directors’ MUTFERAEBETEEWS -
remuneration:

Emolument Policy

No individual should determine his own remuneration;

Remuneration should be broadly aligned with companies with
whom the Group competes for human resources; and

Remuneration should reflect performance and responsibility with
a view to attract, motivate and retain high performing individuals
and promoting the enhancement of the value of the Company to

ERENALT N EEEEME

MEBRAERFDANERZAT
REAAE ;5 &

|

B <2 B S PR R IR B B B 0 RELAIR 51~ B8
Bkt BREHBZ AL MU RIEER
BRABHRRZEE.

its shareholders.

In addition to the basic salaries, a share option scheme has been adopted FREAF I ARBTRE SR ANEE I ST
for rewarding good performers as well as retaining talented staff for the O MAEEZHELRERERIBMESE
continual operation and development of the Group. TR A o

=T R EEE N
EHFHRERE EERN) ZHHA LU
T&M :

Remuneration Paid to Members of Senior Management

Details of remuneration paid to members of senior management
(excluding the Directors) fell within the following bands:

Number of individuals

Remuneration band

REHES AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2
T 1,000,00078 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1
1,000,001 7T 21,500,000% 75

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2

1,500,001 7 75 22,000,000 7T
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
(2) Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Remuneration Paid to Members of Senior Management
(Continued)

Particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix D2 to
the Listing Rules are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements as set out on pages 173 to 176 of this annual report.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2024, during which it conducted the annual review for the
remuneration packages of the Directors, and made recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration package of the senior management.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set
out as below:

Name of members

EFZEEw

(2)

HFNEET @
THFESREERNITM &)

RiEEHRBMEED2BEF K BEREESMN
ERBESHFN - ALEEFHBHNEERS
1738176 B e M HIRERME100

BEZMFE+_A=+—HLEEFE #H
MEEERT—RER NELHEFNH
M BETFERN  UHSREEENH
M EmESTRLER-

HMEZEEEEREZHEBREINMT

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

e

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
TRIESRE (FE)

Mr. Ma Chenshan

BEWLEE

Mr. Zhang Jian

SREESTAE

Mr. Chow On Kiu

B&Eit

Ms. Wen Yi

X&Eg+

HERE FEREK
1/1
1/1
0/0*

0/0*

0/0*

Since Mr. Zhang, Mr. Chow and Ms. Wen were appointed on 13 June 2024, they
did not attend the last meeting which was held before their appointments.

(3) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 31 July 2005 with specific terms
of reference setting out the committee’s authority and duties. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors namely
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman), Mr. Chow On Kiu and Ms. Wen
Yi with Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditor.

* RREE BRERX L TR2024F68 1387
WERE WM 2B MAI— R &

BZEEg

AABN _EERFLA=+—HRIER
5% WiIRARHELE FIEET#
NEBE -BREEEHR-RBIFANTE
ENTRERE (XF)  BEBELERNE
LT EPTREXEREBETZXER
HEE AR EIREENE R
EREZEEMERFRTREIBZEUMZ
AIEB A
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(==

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

3)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The main duties of the Audit Committee include, among other matters,
the following:

(@)  to review the financial statements and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, internal audit, compliance or
external auditors before submission to the Board;

(b)  to review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors;
and

(0  to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year ended 31 December
2024. Executive Directors and the external auditor of the Company joined
the discussion at the relevant meetings. Following is a summary of works
performed by the Audit Committee during the year under review:

reviewed the 2023 annual results and 2024 interim results of
the Group and related announcement including the related
disclosures, integrity of financial reporting and the accounting
policies adopted by the Group prior to the submission to the
Board's approval;

reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control
and risk management systems of the Company;

considered the independence and the appointment of the external
auditor; and

reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance procedures,
internal control and risk management systems of the Group.

BEELZET ®
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
(3) Audit Committee (Continued)

The Board has not taken any different view from that of the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2024 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out below:

Name of members

EELEF ®
3) BZZEZEE #
%Hgﬁ@ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ : b 91 B A B 2
BB BRERBAESTEER -

ARBBE_ZEMNF+"_RB=+—HLF
EZFEXECHERZETER-

BERZZEEEMEZHEFREIWT

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

RE % HEREZERH
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman) 2/2
TRIEBSEE (EF)
Mr. Chow On Kiu 1/1%*
Bk e
Ms. Wen Yi 1/1%*
XELZ+

* Since Mr. Chou and Ms. Wen were appointed on 13 June 2024, they did not * RBEERXZTR2024FE6B 130 T HWEE

attend the last meeting which was held before their appointments.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration paid/payable to
the Company’s external auditor, CCTH, in respect of their audit and non-audit
services (if any) is set out as follows:

Type of services

BR#EER B!

Audit of annual financial statements

BIZFEMBHRE

Non-audit service

IFEZRT

BAMFIIRBESMAI —R&E &

1% B B i B
BE_B-_NE+-AS+—HLEEE RBRE
FBEARH (NA) BN ELEATZIERR
bR E KB FHEEFIM T

Fees paid/payable
RFFERRIEN, &

HK$1,530,000
1,530,00078 7T

HK$354,000
354,000/ 7T

The Audit Committee reviewed the independence of CCTH and has
concluded that it is satisfied with their professional performance, and therefore
recommended to the Board that CCTH be re-appointed as the Company's
auditor at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EZZECEEHPEREZBU M IAAEHSE
ERBELARE ALEBEFERNEERRAE
RE LBEBARERBRARRE ZIZEEM -
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statement of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment for the Group's
performance, position and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of CCTH, being the external auditor of the Company, reporting
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor's Report”on pages 106 to 110.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The main objectives of the risk management and internal control systems are
to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as
reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group in managing its risks across business
operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists of the
Board, the Audit Committee and the management. The Board is responsible for
assessing and determining the nature and extent of risks in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives and to ensure that adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems have been established and maintained. The Board
also has the overall responsibility for monitoring of the design, implementation
and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted effective risk management policies to
provide guidelines in identifying, evaluating and managing risks. On an annual
basis, the management will identify and assess the risks that may adversely affect
the Group's objective and operations, then a set of criteria will be used to identify
and prioritise the risks. Risk mitigation plans for those risks considered to be
significant are then established and risk owners are assigned accordingly.

In addition, the Group will also engage independent professional advisor(s) to
assist the Board and the Audit Committee with ongoing monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems where necessary. Deficiencies in the
internal control systems will be identified and recommendations are proposed
for improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies will be reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board on a timely basis. Then, rectification plan will
be established and risk owners will be assigned to ensure prompt remediation
actions are taken.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk management report and internal control report are submitted to the Audit
Committee and the Board at least once a year. The Board will perform annual
review on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to:

- the changes in the nature and severity of significant risks since last year’s
review;

- the Group's ability to cope with its business transformation and changing
external environment;

- the scope and quality of management’s ongoing review on risk
management and internal control systems;

- result of internal audit work;

- the extent and frequency of communication with the Board in relation to
result of risk and internal control review;

- significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related implications
during the year (if any); and

- the financial reporting and status of compliance with the Listing Rules by
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board was not aware of any
significant internal control or risk management issues that would have an
adverse impact on the financial position or operations of the Group. The Board,
through the review of the Audit Committee, considered that risk management
and internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, also satisfied itself that the accounting
and financial reporting of the Group are adequately resourced with staffs of
appropriate qualifications and experience.

The above risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complied with requirements of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and the Listing Rules in relation to inside information during the year. The Group
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. Before the information is fully disclosed to
the public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If
the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is committed to
ensure that information contained in announcements are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a material fact
in view of disclosure of inside information in a balanced, adequate and effective
way. The procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of
inside information are as follows:

the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules, the Disclosure Guidelines and its own

policy;

the Group has implemented and disclosed events or matters on fair
disclosure by non-exclusive distribution of information to the public
through channels such as financial reporting, public announcements and
its website;

the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and

the Group has established procedures for responding to external
enquiries about the Group’s affairs so that only the executive Directors,
company secretary and other person duly authorised by the Board are
authorised to communicate with parties outside the Group.

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLE BLOWING
1. Anti-Corruption Policy

The Company is committed to high standards of business integrity, ethics,
honesty, fairness, impartiality and transparency in all its business dealings
at all times. The Company strictly prohibits any form of fraud or bribery,
and is committed to prevention, deterrence, detection, reporting and
investigation of all forms of fraud and bribery.

Up to the date of this report, the Company has set out the Anti-Corruption
Policy for the basic standard of conduct which applies to all directors
and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and related third
parties. It provides guidance to all employees on acceptance of advantage
and handling of conflict of interest when dealing with the Company's
business. Our business partners including suppliers, contractors and
clients are also encouraged to abide by the principles of the Policy.

Details of the anti-corruption policy are contained in the section headed
"Anti-corruption”of the ESG report on page 88 in this annual report.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLE BLOWING
(Continued)

2. Whistleblowing Policy

Up to the date of this report, the Company has adopted arrangement
to facilitate employees and other stakeholders to raise concerns, in
confidence, about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The Board shall review such arrangement
regularly,
necessary, and considers and provides appropriate follow-up action.

conduct independent investigation on these matters if

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Mo Chun was appointed as the Company Secretary by the Board on
18 September 2020. He plays an important role in supporting the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that the Board policy and
procedures are strictly followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
All Directors may have access to the professional advice and services of the
Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures of the
Board meetings are observed and providing the Board opinions on matters in
relation to the compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr. Ng Mo Chun has undertaken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, including his active participation and in-depth facilitation in
the professional forums in Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Hong Kong Company Governance Institute (formerly known as Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of effective communication with the
shareholders and investors. The Company communicates with its shareholders
and investors through various channels including publication of interim
and annual reports, announcements, circulars and publications which are
all available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
Corporate communications issued by the Company have been provided to the
shareholders in both English and Chinese versions for better understanding.

Designated executive Director(s) and senior management maintain regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast
of the Company's developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong or email at
investor@newsilkroad472.com for any inquiries.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

In order to provide shareholders with information about the Company, to
enable them to engage actively with the Company and exercise their rights
as shareholders in an informed manner, the Company has a ‘shareholders
communication policy” which is available on the Company’s website. The
policy is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure its effectiveness. During the
year, the Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the shareholders’ communication policy through discussions amongst Board
members during board meetings. The Company has reviewed communication
activities and engagement with Shareholders conducted in 2024 and was
satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy which allowed Shareholders to engage actively with the
Company.

At general meetings, each substantially separate issue has been considered by
a separate resolution, including the election of individual Director. The chairman
of the Board, chairmen of the respective Board committees, senior management
and the external auditor are normally available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, one general meeting was held. The 2023 annual general
meeting was held on 13 June 2024. The attendance records of the Directors are

set out below:

Directors

e

Executive Directors
HITEE

Mr. Ma Chenshan
BELRE
Mr. Wang Gengyu
FEFRE
Mr. Zhang Jian
RERSE

Mr. Hang Guanyu
MEFAEE
Mr. Zhao Bin
L

Mr. Liu Yuzhen

B Em=5kE

Independent non-executive Directors
BUIFHITEE

Mr.Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
TRIESRE:

Mr. Chow On Kiu

BZBRE

Ms. Wen'Yi

X8t
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Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HERY FER

11

0/0*

11

11

0/0*

0/0*

11

0/0*

0/0*

*

Newly appointed directors during the annual general meeting this year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

Constitutional Documents

Pursuant to the Consultation Conclusion on Listing Regime for Overseas Issuers
published by the Stock Exchange in November 2021, the Stock Exchange has
revised the core shareholder protection standards under Appendix 3 to the
Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2022. Listed issuers are required to make
necessary amendments to their constitutional documents by the second annual
general meeting following 1 January 2022 to bring the constitutional documents
to conformation with the revised Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has made the relevant Proposed Amendments and the proposed
adoption of the Amended Bye-Laws became effective upon the approval of
the Shareholders by way of passing a special resolution at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 22 March 2023.

A consolidated version of the Memorandum of Association and the Bye-laws is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Dividend Policy

Policy on payment of dividend is in place setting out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration,
payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to its shareholders.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. The
declaration and payment of dividends shall be determined at the sole discretion
of the Board after taking into account the Company’s financial performances,
working capital requirements, future prospects and other factors, and subject
to the Bye— laws and all applicable laws and regulations of Bermuda. The
policy shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to the Board for approval if

amendments are required.

The policy has been published on the Company’s website for public information.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Procedure for shareholders to convene a special general meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the voting right at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to request a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself/themselves may do so in the same manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued) R ZEF @
Procedure for shareholders to put forward proposals at general BRRRKEASIREEZNRER
meetings

Shareholders can submit a requisition to move a resolution at general meetings RREARBARE—H/N\—FEQTE IREER%E
pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The number of shareholders S ER AE FERRARRE  IREZERFAEREAHK
necessary for a requisition shall be: =

either representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights ~ + HERHERZBEREZ S & LRANM

of all shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at ERRENERAEPR DRI+ 2 —WK
the meeting; or =SI=1)
not less than 100 shareholders. . AADFL100% BRER ©

The written requisitions must: ZEREMNAE

state the resolution, with a statement not more than 1,000 words with - FIABRIRZEZE  ER— B A2 51,000F 8

respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the RilE > NEEMZEBZ RAEZMBNNE
business to be dealt with at the meeting; BEREESTZRERNE LEIEBNER

be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of several documents in~ « EH EEERALEZZE (JEEHR—LHU L
like form each signed by one or more requisitionists); and RATEZZNZHEERANXH) ; &

be deposited at the head office of the Company in Hong Kong for the - ERXERNBEABENER  TEA EE)\Z%’L\\

attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the BME WBEEH RERRBINIE RN ZiA

meeting in case of a requisitionist requiring notice of a resolution and not REEEZEHZBITAIALR 61@%3}15\_% ;

less than one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition. B EREMIE /R CBIBREZEERTAIA
DR VER IR E

With respect to proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures can B RAIR QB SRR FTIEH N & AT AFuL o
be accessible on the Company’s website.
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Shareholders enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board in writing with contact
details, including registered name, address, telephone number and email
address, to the Company Secretary as follows:

Address: 15/F, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2591 9919

Fax: (852) 2575 0999

Email: investor@newsilkroad472.com

Any matter in relation to the transfer of shares, change of name or address, loss
of share certificates should be addressed to the Company's Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer agent as follows:

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
IRIE ~

1.

HERERKRS

REPORT OVERVIEW

1.1

About the Report

We are pleased to present the annual environmental, social
and governance ("ESG") report (“the Report”) of New Silkroad
Culturaltainment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December
2024 (the "Reporting Year"). The Report summaries the Group’s
commitments, policies, approaches, initiatives and annual
performance in ESG, in creating values for the environment, people
and the community as well as maintaining responsible operations
to foster the sustainable development.

Reporting Standard and Reporting Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide as set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), as well as adhering to the ESG reporting
principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. The
application of the reporting principles is elaborated as follows:

1. HREWME
1.1 BARAERSE
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Materiality & 2%

Following an ESG stakeholder engagement exercise and a
materiality assessment, this Report is structured based on
the materiality of ESG issues of the Group. The Board and
management review these sustainability issues annually
to ensure that stakeholder's opinions are reflected. The
results of the materiality assessment process is set out in the
section headed "Materiality Assessment”in this Report.
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Quantitative 215

This Report discloses relevant ESG key performance
indicators ("KPIs") and quantitative information of the various
business segments of the Group. Quantitative information is
further accompanied by descriptions where appropriate.
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1. REPORT OVERVIEW (Continued)

1.1

About the Report (Continued)

Reporting Standard and Reporting Principles
(Continued)

Balance

The Report impartially describes the Group's performance
for the Reporting Year, to avoid selections, omissions, or
presentation formats that may inappropriately influence a
decision or judgment by the report reader.
RERENEMIM T REBAREFEENES > DU
TR AE I8 Bt 7 B 5 3B E R R TE SUHIETAYEEE -
BRERImAET o

The Report has complied with the ‘comply or explain” provisions
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide. With the exception for the
provisions that the Group considers to be inapplicable to our
business operations or where partial disclosure is provided,
together with explanations in the corresponding section as well
as the index of ESG Reporting Guide at the end of the Report. The
Report has been reviewed and approved by the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”).
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Consistency —E 1%

This Report follows methodologies that are consistent with
previous years. Due to the change in the Group's business,
the reporting scope has been modified for this year.
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1.

HEREREE

REPORT OVERVIEW (Continued)

1.1

1.2

About the Report (Continued)

Reporting Scope

The Report covers the core business segment on provision of
property management service in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") of the Group. This report excludes wine production and
distribution business in the PRC (discontinued in October 2024)
and the development and operation of real estate in Australia
(discontinued in December 2024). The latter business segment only
contributes around 5% of the total revenue of the Group in the first
half of 2024.

Unless otherwise stated, the Report covers the Group’s ESG policies
and strategies as well as its environmental and social performance
during the Reporting Year. For information of the corporate
governance, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on page 35 to page 64 of our 2024 annual
report.

Contact and Feedback

The Group continues to work towards sustainable growth
through communicating and cooperating with its stakeholders.
You are welcome to share your views with us by email at
enquiry@newsilkroad472.com. For more information about the
Group's ESG initiatives, please also refer to our website at www.
newsilkroad472.com and its annual report.

Governance Structure

The Group has formed a three-level top-down and bottom-up
governance structure consisting of the Board, the ESG Taskforce
Group and the department units for management on ESG issues
and performance.

The Board actively participates in planning sustainability strategies
and leads the direction of the Group in long-term sustainable
development. The Board oversees the overall ESG strategies,
management approaches and all ESG matters of the Group,
including ESG risk management, action plans and related targets
setting and initiatives. The Board proactively engages in providing
strategic guidance on the ESG-related risk identification and
material ESG issues, and regularly reviews the progress and
achievement on ESG objectives and targets. The Board is also
responsible for approving ESG report submitted by the ESG
Taskforce Group.
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1.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RE ORT :

REPORT OVERVIEW (Continued)

1.2

Governance Structure (Continued)
The ESG Taskforce Group is authorised by the Board and composed

1.

HEBE =

1.2

BRIE - HBKREA

ERWRE &

RIE-HERE E. AEENMIESEFER

of the company secretary of the Company and representatives B HARNANRABMEREERDEL
from the Human Resources and Administration Department, HANERATEHIS MBEH - BEE
Finance Department, Quality Management Department, Operation B EEHMARENR KARAESR

Department to advise all ESG matters and implementation of
ESG measures the Group from different perspectives. The ESG
Taskforce Group assists in establishing ESG strategies, identifying
and analysing the significant ESG risks and opportunities in
investment strategy and risk management with associated impacts
on the Group, as well as setting and monitoring relevant targets
and initiatives with actions plans in line with the determined
ESG strategies. Moreover, the ESG Taskforce Group monitors the
current market trends and development, industry practices, and
norms in respect of ESG related issues, the activities of stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment of the Group and the

FEENFAERE - HEREREER
BRE L EREREMEMRES-
R -#HEREREE/NARBGIER
i%i HEREBRE HARDTRE

REREBREEPHERRE £Ek
ERARBRREBUREAEEBIER
%Z?-;E’jiffE?%EEEEE’HaiE HERE
ARBEEEREREMERREET
FEtd oM RIBE-HERERER
NNEERENTHSBBERER TEIE
DI RIRIE ~ 1 & K B AR BRI R

annual ESG reporting disclosure. The ESG Taskforce Group shall H RO E2REHRAERNEEN
meet and report the findings and recommendations of ESG FEURFEIRE - HEREARER
performance to the Board on a regular basis. BE-RE - HEAERES/NEETEH

BHEZHR TAEFERERR -1HE
RERBEUBBEERRE -

EBMBUEERTRE - HERER
HE/NMAFFRAENIRE - EREBE
BiTE 8 LIRBEEHENEEMNE
ERAREETERERKERENR -

ZHMBEURBRFNES ‘E@J&E
ML Hﬁl%%ﬁ/‘iﬁiﬁﬁ&%i
HHERIRE e REARE jts‘c
PR AR E -

The department units are responsible for executing ESG-related
action plans decided by the ESG Taskforce Group and monitoring
progress and achievements against the determined targets
and initiatives in daily operations. They carry out the activities
of stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment, collect
relevant ESG data for reporting disclosure and performance review,
and coordinate the preparation of the Report.

The Board is tasked with overseeing environmental, social, and governance (ESG) issues,
including the development of related approaches and strategies.

BEEENEBRERERE - HERER BRE HEKRER & BEFIEHE
B 75 7E A R BE /

The ESG Taskforce Group is responsible for aiding the Board in carrying out various day-to-

ESGiéiikf;:;zouP day management tasks related to ESG issues.
BAm BN B HEREARRMEARRYES T NTEBEEN LB REAEEE
Gl BN E B ERER -

/

Functional Each functional department is tasked with implementing the various measures related to
ESG issues as formulated by the Group.

BRI BN TEBMRFIENSRIRE & R ERRERRER -

Departments

B AEERFI

/
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B REARE

1. REPORT OVERVIEW (Continued) 1. HREWE =
1.3 Stakeholder Engagement 13 FHESHE

In order to facilitate the long-term business growth and RRERAEFEREANSIRIE 1S
improvement of ESG management, our Group maintains constant REAREE ANEHRHES T#Tﬁ%ﬁ?—r?—r
communication with various stakeholders. We provide a wide- BEB - BMREMHEZNEREEHRRF
range of channels for effective communication with various NEETENER OREERF-EE-
stakeholders, including customers, employees, government and BRREEHE - REERREHE
regulators, investors and shareholders, suppliers, business partners, EERBH ERR AR I FHM
media, and the public. By doing so, we are able to properly address AZEMATEHEMVEREER
their needs, concerns and expectations associated with our RE- e REAMENHEBER M
business development and ESG issues. AR HRE o
Communications with key stakeholders BIERFMERR

Stakeholders Group

Fr&AR

Communlcatlon through face-to-face/WeChat/Telephone

BMIE BRERETER

OO0 . I\/\eetlngs
oo - BR
Customers - Customer satisfaction survey
=R - BRREERE

Employees’ performance appraisal

- BINBEXEZ
0.9 - Training
ﬁ . s
« Internal meetings
- REER
Em%oj)éees + Team building activities
HZEEE
Recreational games
PRI 2 B

r
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1. REPORT OVERVIEW (Continued) 1. HEWE =

Meetings

S

- Site visit
. BB
« Suppliers assessment process
Suppliers - HEEFERE
e « Questionnaire

BEHE

o - Communication during daily operations
BEERNER
Meetings

=3
2%

Other business partners

Hz=mB 8
Annual general meetings
KRBERS
+ Other shareholders meetings
olo - HREREEER
[_‘Q‘j - Annual reports and interim reports
- FERSMPHRS
Investors and shareholders e " A, SO
JL = Eﬁ_ ay * ?
B AR | e
Company website
NCIFEV

Communication during daily operations

PN BB HE
Visits and inspection
SR
BT 8 3= B 1 R - Regular statutory reporting
Government and authorities - TEHEAERS

Social public welfare activities

. N
A NinEE)
I_ll lV"\l - Face-to-face communications
[ - EHENEE
Community
1@
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RIE - LB RER/KRS

1.

REPORT OVERVIEW (Continued) 1. REWE »
14 Materiality Assessment 1.4 BEEM%TME

According to the reporting principle of “Materiality’, we conducted
a materiality assessment to identify the ESG topics that are material
to the Group and our stakeholders so as to direct the formulation of
ESG strategy and reporting disclosure.

BPRBEIEEN MRERAETE
ST LB H A EE KR FIE
MEMEBEENRE HEKRERZH
B REMEEIRRE B REAREKS
ERBRERENTTM -

Process of materiality assessment SENTHNER

Identification of
relevant ESG topics

HAERIRIR - HERE

o

Review of materiality
matrix and material
ESG topics

BMAEEMERREX
RIE-HERERHEE

Response to material
ESG topics

EHEXRRE - HERE

P 1

Importance to the Stakeholders
HAUHEEAANEE S

Based on the Group's existing businesses, the requirements of ESG reporting guidelines, and
industry ESG management priorities, potential ESG topics were identified.
REAERRAES RIFE-HEREBRSIEIREUARTERE - HEKRER
BEEN HBTRE e REREE-

Considering the business operations, industry development trends, ESG related standards and
guidelines, together with the material ESG topics identified last year, we then reviewed and
updated the materiality matrix with ESG topics that are material to the Group.
ERIANEHLE - TEERBY VRIF LB RELEMRERES Uk E—F
EHBENENRF - HEREAHE HMEBRRENIENAEREEREX
NIRBE - EREARENEE B

According to the materiality of ESG issues and key concern of our key stakeholders, we
determined the focus area of ESG management as well as the direction of the reporting
disclosure.

RBRE - HEREARENEENRFERMHENIEN BERE - HER
EANEEENHE R RERES M

Materiality Matrix
EEMER

Moderate Importance High Importance

hEEN

®
24
®

BEZE

® ® o

Low Importance

\1&@%1&

v

Importance to the business operation of the Group

HAEEZEENERMN
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1. REPORT OVERVIEW (Continued) 1. HREWE @
14 Materiality Assessment (Continued) 14 BEEMTE @

Environmet Operational Practices

IRIR SEEM

01 Energy efficiency 17 Product and service quality
BER N Em&RBEER

02  Greenhouse gas emissions and management 18  Customer health and safety
AERASBI KR EIE ERRERREZE

03  Response to climate change 19  Protection of customer data privacy
FEE RAREE R R ERAAR

04  Airemissions 20  Customer satisfaction
BER B ERmEE

05  Waste management 21 Supply chain management
EEEY)EE HAEEEIE

06  Wastewater management 22 Sales, advertising and marketing practices and compliance
BEKEIE THE R R EHEA R AR

07  Water management 23 Intellectual property rights protection
AkERE R ot R 5B EE e

08  Materials consumption 24 Anti-corruption and business ethics
R L FE REFKREEEE

09  Green procurement 25 Anti-competitive behaviour
SRR RERZFEITH

Employment And Labour Practices Community

& 1% 5% TIEA G

10 Employment rights and benefits 26 Community investment
EE#a HEERE

11 Employee recruitment and retention
ESRERRE

12 Employee engagement
BEER

13 Diversity and equal opportunities
Ltk TERS

14 Occupational health and safety
BERRREZE

15 Employee training and career development

EEEIIRB %R

16 Elimination of child and forced labour

HABE T RaFIZ T
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RIE - LB RERKS

1. REPORT OVERVIEW (Continued)

14

1.5

Materiality Assessment (Continued)

Based on the result of materiality assessment and the reporting
principle, the disclosure of the Report is mainly focused on the
issues categorised as being of high importance. The Group
considers providing the overall management approaches on such
ESG issues categorised as being of moderate importance and low
importance of the Group in order to provide the overall picture
to stakeholders in ESG management. The Group will continue to
review the existing ESG strategies, policies and objectives so as to
optimise the ESG performance and reporting disclosure in pursuit
of continuous improvement.

Our ESG Management

The Group acknowledges that a robust approach to ESG
management not only drives sustainable business growth but
also enhances our competitive edge, delivering lasting value to
both our stakeholders and the organisation as a whole. To this
end, we have developed a comprehensive ESG policy that serves
as a roadmap for implementing initiatives and practices aimed at
promoting sustainable development. Our strategy centers on four
critical areas — environmental stewardship, employee well-being,
responsible business operations, and community engagement — to
ensure a sustainable and prosperous future for all.

Community
engagement

HESH

<>

=

Responsible
business
operations

BREENEHES

Environmental
stewardship

IREMEE @

1.4 BEEMFMNG @
BEESEEMHTHENERARERA  ARE
NEEFEEPRRSEEENZE -AEH
BAMNPEATPEEERBEEEENIRIE
HEREAEEREHEREE L UEF
NERHBE - HEREAEES ENERE
B AERRBEESTRENRE T K
BRAKE BENBER BRIFESEMEL
BRIE- HERERBEI KBRS ZIHE-

15 RIE-HEREREE
FEERRAREVIRB - HERELE
BTMEEEFAIRENEBR R R TREE
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Employee well-
being
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ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP

We prioritise environmental protection across all levels of our Group's
operations. By integrating environmental considerations into every
aspect of our business activities and decision-making processes, we
aim to achieve sustainable development. In compliance with applicable
environmental laws and regulations, such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC (P EE A R HFBIRIFE(RE%), we have implemented
a range of environmental management measures designed to prevent
and minimise potential environmental impacts across our business
segments. These measures cover areas such as air and greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions, water and land discharges, and the generation of both
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not identify any material
violations of relevant environmental laws or regulations related to GHG
emissions, water and land discharges, or waste management.

Our Achievement of Receiving Recognition on our
Environmental Protection

Recognitions

L
o

ALY R

AR ERETRE S
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RIRERE
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EEEEER L EER

ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management
System certification

1SO 140012015 IB1E B IBE A 05

2.1 Air Emission Management

Our administrative department conducts regular inspections
of vehicles to ensure that air pollutant emissions remain within
acceptable limits. Additionally, the property management team
at each project site monitors air emissions from sources such as
air conditioners and electricity generators to verify that they are
functioning correctly and comply with relevant standards.

Due to the above measures, we have been maintaining a relatively
low level of emissions. We aim to achieve the target of maintaining
or reducing the total emissions intensity in the next reporting year,
on the basis of that in 2024.

ISO 50001:2018 Energy Management

System certification

ISO 500012018 BETR EIRAE 5358

21 ERHERER

HAVTHEPIERREE  UERF
ERSRYECTEZNEERN - U5
SEEEMMENYEEERREEE
MR EBHRENBERIN UZERSE
BEBUNEHEBARE-
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IR15

2.2

‘HHERELAHRS

Waste Management
Wastewater

We did not produce wastewater in the ordinary course of business.

2. ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Waste Management (Continued)
Waste and Others

Office and other general waste is produced during the ordinary
course of business. Each property management office develops
a general waste management log to record the type of general
waste, quantity, collector name, and treatment, etc,, and reports to
the appropriate regulatory department. The property management
office sets out guidelines for renovation garbage. Property owners
are required to follow guidelines for handling renovation garbage.
Office waste is recycled or further processed by third party
collectors. The details of waste handover are recorded in writing.

In view of the above measures, we have been maintaining a
relatively low level of waste generation. We aims to achieve the
target of maintaining or reducing the total waste generation
intensity in the next reporting year, on the basis of that in 2024.

Use of Resources

Our Group strive to optimise our operations’ energy efficiency,
water consumption, and materials use by taking different initiatives.

Energy efficiency and GHG Emission Management

In our business operations, GHG emissions primarily stem from
indirect sources such as purchased electricity. Given the close
link between GHG emissions and energy consumption, we
have implemented a range of energy-saving measures aimed at
improving energy efficiency across our business sectors. These
efforts are designed to reduce our carbon footprint and address the
challenges posed by climate change.

A Annual Energy Consumption Planning and Monitoring:

Each property management department’s engineering and
maintenance team develops an annual energy consumption
plan by the end of each year, based on the current year’s
energy usage and the specific operational conditions of
the property. An “Annual Equipment and Facility Energy
Consumption Plan” is established to guide the process.
Monthly monitoring and analysis of energy resource
consumption are conducted to identify any discrepancies
between actual and planned usage. When deviations occur,
prompt investigations are carried out to inspect and address
issues with energy-consuming equipment and pipelines.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP (continued)
2.3 Use of Resources (Continued)

Energy efficiency and GHG Emission Management
(Continued)

A

.

Monthly Energy Reporting and Behavourial Oversight:

Each property management department is responsible
for tracking monthly energy usage within their respective
areas. Energy consumption data is allocated across projects,
compiled into detailed reports, and submitted to the finance
department for overall statistical comparison. The data is also
shared monthly with the quality management departments
of each company and the headquarters’ operations
management center. Regular inspections are conducted
to ensure compliance with energy-saving measures and to
monitor employee behavior, with corrective actions taken
prompitly in cases of non-compliance.

Energy Management Audits and Accountability:

Energy management is integrated into the performance
evaluation framework through the “Branch Operations
Management Balanced Scorecard,” which includes specific
energy control assessment criteria. Specialised energy
management inspections are conducted in accordance
with established policies and project-specific conditions
to identify and address inefficiencies, such as energy
waste from leaks or overuse in public areas. Notifications
regarding excessive energy use or lapses in on-site energy
management are issued, and follow-ups are conducted to
ensure corrective actions are implemented.

As a result of these efforts, we have successfully achieved 1SO
50001:2018 certification for our Energy Management System,
underscoring our dedication to continuous improvement in energy
efficiency.

We aim to achieve the target of maintaining or reducing the total
energy consumption intensity in the next reporting year, on the
basis of that in 2024.

W B Xk AR QB € FERS 2024
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2.

ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP (Continued)

2.3

24

25

Use of Resources (Continued)
Water efficiency

Our engineering department performs regular maintenance on
water facilities to prevent leaks and maximise water efficiency.
Our safety department also conducts regular checks on property
owners'water usage practices. In order to increase water efficiency,
we will promote water saving techniques to our property owners.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not encounter any issue
in sourcing water that was fit for purpose for the business of the
Group.

We aim to achieve the target of maintaining or reducing the total
water consumption intensity in the next reporting year, on the
basis of that in 2024.

Packaging materials

Due to our business nature, we did not generate packaging
materials.

The Environment and Natural Resource

We continuously monitor our wastage management and energy
efficiency. There was no significant impact of our operations on the
environment or natural activities.

Response to Climate Change

In response to the global push for a transition to a low-carbon
economy and the national commitment to achieving net-zero
emissions by 2050 or 2060, the Group recognises the critical
importance of addressing climate change to better anticipate and
respond to potential climate-related impacts. With the increasing
severity of recent natural hazard events, the Group understands
the urgency of addressing climate risks that could affect our
stakeholders and operations. To this end, the Group has identified
the following potential climate risks:

Physical risks

Acute risk: The increased severity of extreme weather events
(e.g. frost, snowstorm and hail) may cause damage to our
assets, further interrupt our operation and increase the
operating cost.

Chronic risk: The chronic stressors (e.g. flooding caused
by rising seawater level, precipitation or heatwave) may
impact the yield of vines and increase the insurance
and maintenance cost of the properties. Such risks can
contribute to the increased operating costs and reduced
revenue from decreased production capacity and/or lower
sales.
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP (Continued) 2. REEEEB @
2.5 Response to Climate Change (Continued) 25 EHREEEE
Transition risks EREE
Policy risk: The latest implementation of carbon-pricing . BERE . R BN E BE
mechanisms increase GHG emission costs, raising operating IR = R E RS BE AR A& - 18 7]1]
cost and posing a potential risk of financial instability. FES =N Y sl N = O
}_L’KDD o

Market risk: Higher demand for environmental-friendly and . MZRRE  EREFEHEEE
low-carbon goods and design services may be resulted BHIRRERE @ AT R
due to the shift in customer preferences. Moreover, limited BRI o kLI KAERB R &
natural resources and higher transportation cost caused by RIEMERARXREBMIE NS ER K
increasing climate-related weather events may increase the K EFPIAEE I IR MR AR o

cost of raw material.

The Group will take into account the recommendations of Task KEBERERERREEBMBEETEF
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) to enhance NA(TCFD)N 3% > 158 B AR P T
the governance processes and integrate the consideration of HeaFEEERARRIEENE BESE
the climate-related risks and opportunities into our future risk R RS 5T o I oh » REBBE )
assessment. In addition, the Group will keep closely monitoring the BRI R MR ME R UM EH R R
new national policies and regulations as well as the market actions BIENMIBTE URERMNESHE
in response to climate change and their associated impacts related T BERRGEUARER TN EET
to our financial capital, assets and revenues and the operational i k=Realsnpicleal=2-"

control of our business activities.
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EMPLOYEE WELL-BEING

As a Group, we strongly believe that the talent of our employees is vital to
our sustainable development. The Group adheres to the people-oriented
management philosophy, which promotes a fair, inclusive, and safe
working environment for our employees, as well as compliance with local
employment laws and regulations, including but not limited to Labour
Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on the
Protection of Minors, Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour,
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") (Cap. 57) and Minimum Wage Ordinance of HKSAR (Cap. 608).

Our Achievement of Receiving Recognition on our
Dedication to Employee Well-being

Recognitions

3.1
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Employment Practices and Labour Standards

The Group has established comprehensive human resources
policies and management measures across all business segments
to effectively manage labour-related matters. These policies,
outlined in documents such as the “Employment Standards and
Human Resource Management Policy,” the employee handbook,
and employment contracts, clearly define key areas including
compensation structure, employee benefits, recruitment
and promotion processes, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunities, anti-discrimination practices, and procedures for
handling work-related injuries. These measures are designed to
safeguard the rights and interests of employees.

In each business segment, the Human Resources Department is
responsible for overseeing the implementation of these policies.
Additionally, the department conducts briefings and training
sessions to ensure that new hires fully understand and are aligned
with the organisation's policies and practices.
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EMPLOYEE WELL-BEING (Continued)

3.1

Employment Practices and Labour Standards
(Continued)

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group offers standardised remuneration package to
employees. Benefits to full-time employees include paid vacation
leave and family leaves (e.g, marriage leave, maternity/paternity
leave and compassionate leave), medical insurance coverage
and provident fund schemes, accommodation allowances and
educational subsidies etc. We have implemented standard working
hour system for most of our employees, while some employees
in special positions may be arranged irregular working hours.
In addition, we have implemented different kinds of family-
friendly measures to support employees in fulfilling their family
responsibilities. For instance, we offer marriage leave for at least
three days and condolence leave for five days in the PRC, which
enable them to manage their time on work and family.

The Group reviews the employee remuneration and benefits on an
annual basis, with reference to the prevailing regional market level,
industry benchmarking and employees' individual performance,
such that they are rewarded with fair and competitive
compensation. Employees with excellent performance may be
awarded salary adjustment, promotion and/or discretionary bonus
in recognition of their contribution.

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

Adhering to the principle of openness, fairness and selection of
merits, the Group has formulated respective recruitment and
performance review management procedure in each business
segment to standardise the process in recruitment and promotion.
We select suitable candidates based on factors, such as their work
experience, professional qualifications, merits, competencies and
interview performance, in order to continually attract and retain
talents. Employees are only dismissed for fair reasons such as non-
renewal of employment contract, lack of competence or violation
of company policies. The Group considers each dismissal and
resignation seriously and exit interviews may be conducted with
the employees so as to provide the Group with feedback to reduce
turnover in the future.
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3.

EMPLOYEE WELL-BEING (Continued)

3.1

Employment Practices and Labour Standards
(Continued)

Diversity, Equal Opportunities and Anti-
discrimination

As an organisation, we value the uniqueness of each of our
employees to create a workplace that is synergistic and innovative.
We aim to maximise our human resource potential by bringing
together talents from different cultures, backgrounds and levels,
creating a diversified platform that allows our employees to
succeed. We strive to bring together talents from a range of
backgrounds, levels and cultures. The Group is committed to
providing equal opportunities in our employment practices
and creating a corporate culture with inclusiveness, trust and
respect. Any form of harassment, as well as any discrimination
on the ground of age, gender, race, ethnic origin, marital status,
disability or religious belief in the workplace or in the process
of recruitment, promotion, performance review and transferal
are strictly prohibited. The Group has strictly complied with all
relevant laws and regulations regarding anti-discrimination, such
as Sex Discrimination Ordinance of HKSAR (Cap. 480), Disability
Discrimination Ordinance of HKSAR (Cap. 487), Race Discrimination
Ordinance of HKSAR (Cap. 602) and Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance of HKSAR (Cap. 527) during the Reporting Year.

Labour Standards

The Group respects human rights and protects the legitimate
interests of our employees. We strictly forbid the use of child labour
and forced labour in the workplace. During the recruitment process
and upon employment, we examine the identity document,
work visa and qualification of the applicants and successful
candidates to ensure that they meet the legal requirements for
working age and are eligible to work locally. All employees sign the
employment contract with the Group and follow the obligations
and requirements under the employment consensually. If any
practice of child labour or forced labour is discovered, the Group
will investigate the case thoroughly and dismiss the relevant
employees immediately. The Group has abided by the relevant laws
and regulation, such as Employment of Children Regulations of
HKSAR (Cap. 57B) and Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour of
the PRC. There was no non-compliance case during the Reporting
Year.

Employee Profile

As of 31 December 2024, we had 1,429 employees all located in
the PRC. The overall employee turnover rate was about 34% in
2024. The breakdown of the number of employees divided by
gender, age and employment type are shown below.
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EMPLOYEE WELL-BEING (Continued)

3.2

Occupational Health and Safety

Creating a healthy and safe working environment is essential to
the success of our business and the well-being of our employees.
We have implemented internal health and safety policies and
management procedures designed to protect employees’ health
and safety by systematically identifying, preventing, and addressing
potential risks.

During the Reporting Year, the Group fully complied with local and
national regulations, including the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance of the HKSAR (Cap. 509), the Work Safety Law of the PRC,
and the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases. There were no reported instances of non-compliance
with relevant safety and health laws or regulations during this
period.

Below are the statistics for work-related fatalities, work injury cases,
and lost days due to work injuries over the past three years:
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Our property management business strictly implement the
national laws and regulations such as the Work Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Fire Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases. We
formulate and regularly promote the compliance of the Company's
Work Injury Response Measures, Work Manual and other systems
and standards, and operate in strict accordance with the law and
regulations.

We consistently evaluate our policies and improve our standards to
maintain full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
concerning workplace conditions and protection against
occupational hazards. Additionally, we monitor workplace incidents
to detect potential risks that could threaten employee health and
safety. Our goal is to eliminate all workplace hazards and accidents
by implementing improving measures in case of incidents.
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EMPLOYEE WELL-BEING (Continued)

33

Development and Training

We believe that fostering employee development is a key driver
for the Group's sustainable growth. To equip employees at all levels
with the essential skills and knowledge required to excel in their
roles, we offer a range of universal on-the-job training programs,
covering areas such as occupational safety and health, corporate
culture, and management systems. Additionally, tailored internal
and external training sessions are provided based on employees’
specific job functions and position levels.

For example, staff in the property management business
participated in safety seminars, fire safety training, and drills, while
employees in other roles received specialised training relevant
to their responsibilities. These targeted programs ensure that
employees are equipped with the professional expertise and
industry-specific knowledge necessary for their roles.

To assess the effectiveness of these initiatives, training performance
evaluations are conducted after each session. During the Reporting
Year, the total number of training hours reached 49,229, with an
average of 34.45 training hours per employee. Notably, 100% of
our workforce actively participated in these training programs,
reflecting the Group’s commitment to continuous learning and
professional growth.
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RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS OPERATIONS

We strive to provide customers with quality services, striving to enhance
their customer experience, gain high customer satisfaction, and maintain

4. BREENEHEE
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BEEE ESEELHEE LRESR

good relationships with them. To ensure sustainable business operation FREFMAG AREAREBNIFELSE RN
and success, we must maintain high ethical standards in our business I RPN BERETATHSSEERE.
practices.
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4.1 Product and Service Excellence 41 BEERKRTE

At the heart of our property management business lies a steadfast
commitment to delivering exceptional products and services
that meet the evolving needs of our clients and stakeholders.
We prioritise quality, reliability, and customer satisfaction in every
aspect of our operations, ensuring that we consistently exceed
expectations.

Our approach is rooted in implementing well-defined processes
and adopting best practices to enhance service delivery across
all areas, including environmental hygiene, safety management,
tenant relations, and operational efficiency. By fostering a culture
of continuous improvement, we strive to innovate and refine our
services to provide added value to property owners, tenants, and
partners alike.

Through this dedication to excellence, we ensure that our property
management solutions not only maintain the highest standards
but also contribute to creating safe, sustainable, and thriving
environments for all stakeholders.
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RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS OPERATIONS
(Continued)

4.1

Product and Service Excellence (Continued)
Customer Feedback and Complaint Handing

In our property management business, customer feedback plays a
pivotal role in shaping our commitment to service excellence. We
strictly adhere to relevant laws and regulations, including the Law
of the People’'s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer
Rights and Interests (AP ZE A R HEFEDH & & # i Rs&/% ) and
the Regulation on Realty Management of the People’s Republic of
China (B EIEH), to ensure that our services meet legal
standards and prioritise the rights and interests of property owners
and customers.

We place great importance on listening to the voices of property
owners and customers, viewing their input as an opportunity to
enhance our service quality. By promptly addressing feedback
and refining every step of the service process, we strive to
respond effectively to their needs and maintain open, transparent
communication. This proactive approach has enabled us to
consistently improve satisfaction levels among property owners
and customers.

During the Reporting Year, we received only minor complaints
related to our services, reflecting our ongoing efforts to deliver
reliable, high-quality property management solutions.
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4.

RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS OPERATIONS
(Continued)

4.2

Business Integrity

The Group is committed to upholding the highest level of business
integrity throughout the operations in protecting the interests
of both stakeholders and the Group. We have complied with
the relevant laws and regulations, such as Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance of HKSAR (Cap. 201), Criminal Law of the PRC, Anti-
money Laundering Law of the PRC, Anti-Unfair Competition Law
of the PRC etc. During the Reporting Year, there was no reported
violation case of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Anti-corruption

Stipulated in “Anti-Corruption Policy” and “Corporate Code of
Conduct’, the Group outlines the standards of behaviours for
employees regarding business ethics, anti-corruption and anti-
bribery, conflict of interests and data confidentiality to ensure that
our businesses and operations are of high ethical standard. For
instance, all employees are strictly prohibited to offer or receive any
forms of advantages (e.g, gifts, entertainment and commissions
etc) from our customers and business partnerships. A whistle-
blowing mechanism is in place for the employees and external
stakeholders to report any kinds of malpractices and suspected
misconduct through our reporting channels. The Group protects
the identity of whistle-blower and keeps the reported information
confidential. Internal investigation will be undergone to verify
the reported case(s) and remedial actions will be taken where
necessary based on the result findings of the investigation.

The Group maintains regular anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering training session for the staff to raise their awareness on
corruption-prone areas and potential traps in business activities.
During the Reporting Year, the Board members attend a total of 6
hours training related to anti-corruption.
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RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS OPERATIONS
(Continued)

4.2

Business Integrity (Continued)
Data Privacy

The Group prioritises data privacy and confidentiality, recognising
these as essential to building trust with stakeholders. We strictly
comply with relevant laws and regulations, including the
Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of China, Regulations on
the Protection of Computer Software, Measures for the Registration
of Computer Software Copyright, and Mobile Internet Privacy
Policy. Additionally, we have implemented robust internal policies
and procedures to safeguard sensitive information.

Employees are bound by our Corporate Code of Conduct
and prohibited from disclosing confidential or proprietary
information—including trade secrets, customer data, and personal
information—without proper authorisation. Stringent processes
guide the collection, storage, and handling of sensitive data,
supported by administrative, physical, and technical measures to
prevent unauthorised access or breaches.

Personnel managing confidential information are required to
sign a Confidential and Non-Disclosure Agreement, ensuring
they understand their obligations. Any breach of these policies is
subject to disciplinary action and legal consequences. During the
Reporting Year, there were no known violations of privacy-related
laws or regulations that significantly impacted the Group.

Protecting Intellectual Property Rights

We strictly adhere to key intellectual property and confidentiality
laws, including the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Rules
for Implementation of the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and the Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China.

To safeguard intellectual property rights, we have established an
IT Policy and Procedure that prohibits employees from installing
unauthorised or illegal software on company systems. This ensures
the protection and proper use of intellectual property while
maintaining a secure and compliant work environment.
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4.

RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS OPERATIONS
(Continued)

4.3

Supply Chain Management

We value close collaboration with a diverse range of suppliers, as
they bring added value to our business. To ensure transparency and
fairness, the Group has implemented a Tender and Procurement
Management Policy that promotes open competition and outlines
stringent procedures for selecting suppliers based on integrity,
reliability, and quality. During the Reporting Year, we engaged 43
suppliers, all based on the PRC.

Supplier selection involves rigorous qualification assessments,
including evaluations of service quality, corporate background,
legal compliance, certified quality systems, after-sales services, and
pricing. Preference is given to local suppliers with strong labor,
environmental, and safety management practices or those offering
environmentally friendly products, aligning with our commitment
to minimising adverse impacts on society and the environment.

To manage environmental and social risks in our supply chain,
we incorporate specific expectations into tender documents and
contracts. Regular performance assessments, including on-site
inspections and audits, ensure consistent quality and compliance.
Suppliers failing to meet our standards or violating laws and
regulations are required to rectify issues promptly or face removal
from our approved supplier list. All 43 suppliers were subject to
these practices during the Reporting Year.
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Group recognises the importance of giving back to society and is
committed to making a meaningful impact through active community
engagement. During the reporting year, our employees dedicated a total
of 33,495.5 hours to voluntary work, reaching countless individuals in
need and creating a lasting positive influence within the local community.
Through their efforts, our volunteers have contributed to building a
stronger, more resilient society.

Our community engagement initiatives focus on three key areas:
promoting diversity, community care, and health promotion. These
efforts not only address critical societal challenges but also reinforce our
commitment to fostering a better future for all.

Celebrating Children’s Day together with our community by
organising workshops for kids

HERE)

IRIE

HtES2H
AEBFACIEEENEEN TR AREB
BN E2HELERENTE RREE
B HMWE THIZA T33495 5 N\RHED
TE - EMTEHRAREN A LEEMTE
FRIETHANEEEE - BBMMANES
BPMETAEY —EERe - BEHENT
EHMHT SRk

HFIMHES ERREER —[ERREEE 8
EZTb BMEHENRERE -2FENT
EREMRESRTEE TFAEREIFIND
FRE ARG E =4 R IRBYEKFE ©

RREBNIHAMERERERN

Celebrating Children's Day together with our community
by organising workshops for kids

HutE—EARERR I BERNZERN

Celebrating Dragon Boat Festival with residents

by making rice dumplings
HEROKRTFHNSRFTEH

WMo B XK AR 2B & FERS 2024
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6. ESG DATA TABLE 6. RIFE-HEKREARHER

Environmental KPI data

RIBRRIENIEREE

Greenhouse gas emissions

BERBHEK
Scope 1 tonnes 35.82 93.08
CHET) DR
Scope 2 tonnes 17,210.90 1821531
CHETY) Ui
Removals from newly planted trees tonnes (338.89) -
B E R MOBER mA
Total tonnes 16,907.83 18,308.39
w5t g
Intensity tonnes/no. of staff 11.83 1139
BE W BT AH
Air emissions
BESRHFI
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 29.69 17349
K[EEH) (NOx) T
Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg 0.03 0.52
IREEYD (SO0 T
Particulate matter (PM) kg 2.66 16.33
FERIY) (PM) T
Use of resources
BERAE
Direct energy
E#ER
- Diesel MWh - 6.58
i HKEBF
- Gasoline MWh 130.51 333.05
—AUH HKEBF
Indirect energy (Electricity use) MWh 30,178.67 31,937.23
BEER (AES) HKEBF
Total energy consumption MWh 30,309.18 32,276.86
HBREFE KRB
Intensity MWh/no. of staff 21.21 20.03
BE HEE,ETAH
Water use m3 605,225.92 762,243.70
FAkE TR
Intensity m3/no. of staff 423.53 451.96
BE IFHKBETIAE
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6. ESG DATA TABLE (Continued) 6. BRIF-HERER/FER @

Social KPI data

HERREN SRR
Total employees number 1,429 1,648
BERAH N

Total employees - by gender
EEME—HMHE D

Male number 728 839
B4 A#
Female number 701 809
e A#

Total employees - by age
EEMB—HERED

<30 number 109 145
A#

30-50 number 987 1,158
A#

> 50 number 333 345
A#

Total employees - by category

EEMH—HERHE D

Junior number 1,158 1,351
AR A
Middle number 157 181
FR AR AR
Senior number 9 20
= AR A
Temporary/contract/seasonal staff number 105 96
R &H, SEMET N ¢

Total employees - by geographical region

BEAH-HMEER S

Hong Kong number - 5
£ A

Mainland China number 1,429 1,643
FREIP A

Employee turnover rate % 34.3 339
EEMALLER

Employee turnover rate - by gender

fEEMALLR—1RE R85

Male % 31.0 296
B
Female % 37.7 384
egs
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6. ESG DATA TABLE (Continued) 6. RIFE-HERERBER @

Social KPI data

HERIREMISREE

Employee turnover rate - by age

BEMRKLEE—IEFHRED

<30 % 57.8 531
30-50 % 27.2 334
> 50 % 47.7 275

Employee turnover rate - by geographical region

BERKLEE -t ER S

Hong Kong % N/A 20.0
EHH

Mainland China % 34.3 340
el Enpeu)

Occupational safety and health

WELZIHER

Number of fatalities number 1 -
FETAH A

Number of injuries cases number 4 29
THEHE ER

Lost days due to work injuries day 194 809
RTEERINTIEEH SE-

Percentage of employees trained % 100.0 99.8

ZilEEB DL

Percentage of employees trained - by gender

ZillEE B2t — It B 5

Male % 100 99.5
BH
Female % 100 100
g
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6. ESG DATA TABLE (Continued) 6. RIFE-HERELRHER &

Social KPI data

HERIREMISREE

Percentage of employees trained - by category

S Bt —RERE 5

Junior % 100 99.9
AR
Middle % 100 100
FR4R
Senior % 100 85.7
= AR

Average training hours completed per employee - by gender

54ES RSN TR 2 — IR 8 5

Male hours 34.34 294
B4 PIN:=
Female hours 34.57 30.5
g INEE

Average training hours completed per employee - by category

5B S SIS TR 2 — RER 8 5

Junior hours 38.44 300
AR N
Middle hours 29.18 29.1
FR4R N
Senior hours 15.00 326
= AR NS

Number of suppliers - by geographical region

HEMEE —EtES 5

Mainland China number - 100
FR [ A 3t ]

Hong Kong number 43 21
EH5H ]

Overseas number - 4
i=El ]

Product and service quality

EmRRHZEEE

Number of complaints received number 116 -
wEERHEE ER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt number - -

practices brought against the Company or

its employees during the Reporting Year
RREFEHARFNEESERELEEENEST

SREMRIEE

At
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE BRI ERERKRSIESIDA
INDEX BHEs5|
ESG Reporting Guide Section
(RE - ERERKEZIET) =71
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements
55 1 BB AT
Governance Structure A statement from the board containing the following elements: Section 1.2, Section
ERWRIE HERSFLNER BERHFAE NIAS ! 1.3, Section 14 &
Section 1.5
(i) adisclosure of the board's oversight of ESG issues; F1.28 551 38~
() BREEZGHRR - HIREASENEE F1AE KR FE1.580

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including the
process used to evaluate, prioritise and manage material ESG-related issues
(including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and

(h EFEMNREBE - HEREAETESHRER  SFETFE  BEXREE5
REBSENRE - HEREREANSER (BEHFTAEEN
R ) N ; &

(ii)  how the board reviews progress made against ESG- related goals and targets
with an explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.

(il EFFUNARIRE - HERE /BB REER  LARBEMN
fAIEAEEIT N R BRIE
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Y
THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE MR (RE - ERERKRSESDA
INDEX (Continued) BFsl @&
£SG Reporting Guide Section
(REHEREBHEIS5) 7]
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements
5 1 BEARE
Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the following Reporting | Section 1.1 &
PER IR A Principles in the preparation of the ESG report: Section 14
B RRERAMIRR e RERRESHNAREA TIERRE EAREE )
581480

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to identify and the
criteria for the selection of material ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder engagement
is conducted, a description of significant stakeholders identified, and the process
and results of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

EEM  RE - HELERREEEE (HIEERRE - HaRERE
ZAREREREERAWED (HINETABETRNEZA EF
ANBEZERFHENELARETAFTNESENBRERER

Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or
calculation tools used, and source of conversion factors used, for the reporting of
emissions/energy consumption (where applicable) should be disclosed.

B1b : BRIERSINE RERER WER) FrANRE - HE RE
SHETETANERD MR ERNEREA RN RIRE FIRE -

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any changes to the
methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant factors affecting a meaningful
comparison.

—HM  BTARTRE M EREAREPIRERST H A RRREN
BENEE WA) EMEMEES BRILRNEREE -

Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and describing | Section 1.1
PEREE the process used to identify which entities or operations are included in the ESG | Z81.18f

report. If there is a change in the scope, the issuer should explain the difference
and reason for the change.

BRI B RERRSNIEREE R EM LT RS EHR
ARBE-#HEREARENIBE - GERRBEFPINE 17T AERE
TR ZBEREEREA -
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE f
INDEX (continued)

\l:g

t

BES| =

ERXF(IRIE - HERERHKSHESIA

A. Environment
A. IBIE

A1 Emission

A1 B

ESG Reporting Guide Section
(IR HERERIREIET) =71]

facility).
B EE) RERMEE E@E2) RERBHRE U E) & ER)
BE WUSESEU BERMHE) °

Al General Disclosure Information: Section 2
(@ the policies; and E=PACl]
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRBRRERBH RIS RELERERBESEEYN
— R EE
(@ BUR; &
b) BTFHETABEAZENBRERERROINER
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emission data. Section 6
R E IS IRAL. 1 BEM R e AR R BE R B © EJo)5i]
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in | Section 6
RAEAESIEIZEA12 tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | 25687

KPI A1.3
RSB ARAIEIRA1 3

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

FREABESEEYEE UUEE) kK WER) ZE MUSESE-
BIEXRME) ©

Due to the nature
of our property
management
business, no
hazardous waste is
produced.

HREMESE
ES Yl =nin
BEEREEE
¥po

KPI A14
R SR AR ANIE1RAL 4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

PRELEREEEYRE CUIWEE kK NER) BE MMUSESH-
BIERMHE) o

Due to the nature
of our property
management
business, non-
hazardous waste
that we generated
is minimal.

BEREMMEE
BEBNME
KPP EERE
EEEEYIB AT

=
=°

i RIEA EREEEEYNT & RIS ILARE B IR mEE]
BB RTINS B

KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Section 2.1
RASRAB I IRALS HIPTET ILAVBEN 2 B 1R e R E RIS L B AR PR EREN A 2 R o F2.180
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a | Section 2.2
RASRARIEIRA16 description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. F2280
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE ARE - 1t R ERHKRETIEE)D A
INDEX (Continued) @%é‘l @)
ESG Reporting Guide Section
(IBI5 \ H B R ELREIST]) =

A. Environment (Continued)

A. IRIE (&)

A2 Use of Resources

A2 ERER
A2 General Disclosure Section 2.3
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw | 552387
materials.
— e
BREAER (BIEER KR EAMBEME) BBEE
KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in | Section 6
RSB A NIEIEA2. 1 total (kWh in 000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). | Z56Ef
RENASMERRE,/ REEER B mooh B2iEE UTFETR
REtE) REBE IS ESE M SERMTE) °
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | Section 6
REBRABMIEIRA22 facility). EL350]
BEABREE MUSESEN - BERMHE) o
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. | Section 2.3
RS AN IEIRA23 HIPRET I AYRE R E A et B IR R A i B3E L2 B ARPERERAY 25 B8 552380
KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, | Section 2.3
BRI A WISIEA24 water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 552380
B RECGE AR LI BB MURFTET LN AR w B R R A&
B BRI P BR o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, | Section 2.3
A SR AR SIS IEA2S with reference to per unit produced. E238
SpmPrABEMHNEE UEHE) &k (ER) BEEBGESE-
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I&iﬁ. ﬁ‘iﬁ& A*ﬁ [
THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE BRFr(RIE - B RERRGIESIDA
INDEX (Continued) BEI @
ESG Reporting Guide Section
(BIE B RELRLEISS)) =

A. Environment (Continued)

A. IRIE (&)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 IRIERRAER

A3

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

— e

BRET AHIRBE R RABREMEARFENEER

Section 24
SB24H0

KPI A3.1
REEAEWIEIZA3

A4 Climate Change

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.
HEBEHHRIERRARAERNEATEREEKNEEERTZEN
1780

Section 2.4
2480

Ad RIZEME
A4 General Disclosure Section 2.5
—RiREE 252,580
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
HA R EH BRI EEHETAELETENEAREERETNEK
Bﬁ o
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and | Section 2.5
RE A WIEIEA4. 1 those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. 52560

BEEERAIEEHETAEERENEARBGEREE  REHT
@JO
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (continued)

BEA(RBE - HERERKRSEIEEIDNA
BES @

ESG Reporting Guide Section
(RIE-HERERKEZIET) =71]
B. Social
B. #%
B1 Employment
B1 {E{#
B1 General Disclosure Information on: Section 3
(@) the policies; and 380
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— AR EE
BERFTNRRRE BB RS TEHE - RA-TERE 2L K
e #53 LURe L R I8 S @ 1 B9
(@ BUR; &
) BFHEFETABEAZENBRBEERROINEG K
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical | Section 3.1
REBRAA IR region. 318
R B EEE s FiAER RS D HNESMBE -
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Section 6
RASRAS R IS1RB1.2 MR FE AR Rt e8| DR EE MR EE - 6
B2 Health and Safety
B2 RERARE
B2 General Disclosure Information on: Section 3.2
@ the policies; and 55328

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

—MRIRE
BRRERHRZE2TFREAMERESEHEEEEN
@ BE; &

b BTHETABEAXENERMERRRANER -

KPI'B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Section 3.2 & Section

RASRAS RIS 1RB2. 1 AT THAAB R Z- 6
583280 K 5860

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Section 3.2 & Section

RSB NIS1RB2.2 AILGEETIFRE- 6
553280 K 586N

KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are | Section 3.2

RERAANIERER23 implemented and monitored. SE3.260

P R AR RV 2R (R ER B 22 2 48 T MURABRAIT RREE R 5 7% ©
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE B

INDEX (continued)

\l:g

t

BES| =

ERXF(IRIE - HERERHKSHESIA

B. Social (Continued)
B. & &

B3 Development and Training

B3 B R i3

ESG Reporting Guide Section
(IR HERERIREIET) =71]

BRI REEERE D SR EETME B FIIRE -

B3 General Disclosure Section 3.3
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at | £53.3&7
work. Description of training activities.

— e
ARIR A EB BT LRI S IR 38 ke b SRRV BUER o i atIT 15 B

KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. | Section 6

R SRR IEIER3.1 senior management, middle management). 1350
RENREEER WeREERE -PREERE ADNZIREET D
tbo

KPIB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee | Section 6

RERAANIEIER3.2 category. EL350]

B4 Labour Standard
B4 & T#HI
B4 General Disclosure Section 3.1
Information relating to: %3187
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—AR I EE
BRARGIEE T EsaHI% T
@ R &
b) BTFHEFETABEATENERERRIRFINER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and | Section 3.1
R S4B SIS 1ER4.1 forced labour. B31E
RSB E AR AT LB o B T Ks8I 55 T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Section 3.1
RSB IS5 1RB4.2 MR IRER B R HIR B BB U PTEREXAY 2 B SB3.1H0
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INDEX (Continued) BES| =
ESG Reporting Guide Section
(IBI5 \ H B R ELREIST]) =

B. Social (Continued)
B. & &

B5 Supply Chain Management

it FESE B I8
B5 General Disclosure Section 4.3
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 554380
—BRE
FIEHEENIRIE RS BREEE -
KPIB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Section 4.3
AR AB RIS 1RBS. 1 it e E DA HEREE o 54380
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers | Section 4.3
RO ENIE1EB5.2 where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and | 554380
monitored.
Hit 5 BB AR RV IE R - m ERITERE AN MHEREE - UKk
AT R F %
KPIB5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the | Section 4.3
e S AR S 1EB5.3 supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. 4380
5 B A (R SR B EIR B IR Ao tt & R AV IE 6] LURABRE8AT
KB E 5% ©
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products | Section 4.3
R A I 1ER54 and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and | 55438
monitored.
MR MR RS BIRARERKRBNIEG » LURBRAINT R
BER ke
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE BRFr(RIE - B RERRGIESIDA
INDEX (Continued) BES| =
ESG Reporting Guide Section
(BIE B RELRLEISS)) =

B. Social (Continued)
B. & &

B6 Product Responsibility

B6 EME(E
B6 General Disclosure Section 4.1
Information relating to: 408
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
— AR EE
BRIFTEHERMRBNEREZS -BE - RERMBEEUREN
FER
(@ BUR; &
) BFHEFETABEAZENBRBEERROINEG K
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and | No product is
R SRR IE1ER6.1 health reasons. produced in
EEREEXERESTRZEEERIERMARIWNE DL our property
management
business.
RMREEIEE
BAREERME
o
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are | Section 6
RERR AN IE1ER6.2 dealt with. EL350]
HERARN E R KRB E U R EH 5 -
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property | Section 4.2
RSB NI51RB63 rights. SB4.280
Fi B AE TE S AR IE R E B B RVIE G
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Section 4.1
RASR B 515864 B E SR ERERERLBIER - F41H
Recall procedures
are not applicable
for our property
management
business.
B FFERR
BOHNMEER
EFo
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are | Section 4.2
RS AN IE1ER6.5 implemented and monitored. F4.280
HHE E B RHRIE R AAREES LU BRAMIT R R 54
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INDEX (continued)

BES| =

B. Social (Continued)
B. & &

B7 Anti-corruption

ESG Reporting Guide Section
(IR HERERIREIET) =71]

B7 R&E5
B7 General Disclosure Section 4.2
Information relating to: 554,280
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—BRE
BRAR LEEARS ~ R~ IRFF AR B8R0 ¢
@ BR; &
() BFHEFETABEAZENBREERROINE K
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against | Section 6
R BRAAMIEIER7.1 the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the | 5680
cases.
REREHARHET AR ESERE T EEENESHNEGEMB K
BN
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they | Section 4.2
RE AW IE1ZR7.2 are implemented and monitored. 4.8
P SR R R RIZT  URBARITRERE S %
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Section 4.2
RA SR A F51RB7 3 HmEERETRENREFE- 554280

B8 Community Investment

B8 it ERE
B3 General Disclosure Section 5
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities | 55873
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities' interests.
—AR I EE
BREUHEZERTREENMTHEREMNRREER TG E R
&) AR o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour | Section 5
RA S AE IS 1ERS. 1 needs, health, culture, sport). 58
FIERERE WHEE BRESFE - FIERBR -XEC-BEH) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Section 5
RASRAB RI51RBs.2 AEIHIBFAEFAER WS EEE) E=L-i]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BB EN RS

CCTH CPA LIMITED
PIEXREEEMAIRLQE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Silkroad
Culturaltainment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 111 to 237, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

A IRARAE
2RRE
(REREZMATZHRAE)

BER
EZEBEABINE NN EB7EMMHEXIRERA
8 (TEA8)) RERBRAR MiETEEE) MR
BMBRR ZERAMBRREENR - -NF
+TZA=T—HNGEEMBRRNR - BEZBLE
ENGERER GRolRmhkEMEEEEER R
ERDEPRKFEEREMER  UREEMHR
KW QEERGSHHRER

EERB R ZEROMTREAEBRES B
AE((EBEMAE) RHNEBMHREER
(TEEMBREER) EEMAFMRIR S5
ER 2 -_NE+_B=+—HMHGREHHRIR
ERBEZBEFENGAEVHRERFEEEREER
B UERREBRAAKAMNKEREL SRR

ERNER
ESCRBEBESHMAERMHHNEREER
(TEBBEER)) ETBt - EEURFTERK
ENSEEARE ZUAMB RS M BRERK
ENSME BOPEL - RESBEHA LT TR
EgstenEEThL (PR - EFEBUN BE
B> UTERTTRTNEMBXEREE 55
B EEMERSHNEFRIEEREREEMNAES
WEF S RIEHRER

FISEE T FE
HRBEAFTEARBESNREHEHERNG
BHMBERENBAELEEATENSTE-ZEEH
IESENGEMBRAAHASRFETRE
MAEHZEFFTREXEBIER -

NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Key audit matter

B ER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BET RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENEMAIREMRESEEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life

BREAEHZHERELEEZRENG

Refer to note 18, 19 and the accounting policies in note 3.2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

E2W G A M FEIRRM 18 19% M sE3 2 Z 5HE R ©

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
asset with indefinite useful life which are allocated to the CGU of
property management business as a key audit matter because of
the significance of the balances to the consolidated statement of
financial position as a whole and the significant degree of judgement
made by management in the assessment process.
EEROREYEEBEBREEL BN ERERFH
ZHERBEE ZHETEHN AEREEZER RAR
ERHERRAVBERRARZEESEREEEN T GERE
RIEH Z BARHIE -

Determining whether the goodwill and intangible asset with
indefinite useful life is impaired requires management’s estimation
of the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the goodwill and
intangible asset with indefinite useful life have been allocated. The
recoverable amount calculation requires the management of the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGU, which includes key assumptions for cash flow projections,
including yearly growth rates of revenue, profit margin, discount
rate and management’s expectation of market conditions. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.
EERRCAFHNBMERBENEERSRENEEZEIE
EBstERERFRNEERBETLEEESENREESL
BUNAIREIEE THAINEIEEER SEREEEL
STREELBURMAELNARRREE RS BFREREHE
AIMBIRER  BFERGEFERE EMN T BREREIE
B HRNTER - MERRRREREEN TR OIS
FEXRERE

As set out in note 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
the carrying amounts of the goodwill and intangible asset
with indefinite useful life is HK$308,346,000 and HK$50,425,000
respectively at 31 December 2024.
WUMERE M ERRMF 18 RIOFTE RS ZME+A
=t+—H BEREHAERNHERRTEEENREAEBED A
308,346,000 7T 52 50,425,0007 7T, ©

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of goodwill
the intangible asset with indefinite useful life included:
EERBEREAFHNEEREREENREBETEETH
BFaE !

We understood the entity's key control in relation to the
impairment assessment of the goodwill and intangible asset
with indefinite useful life including the process of preparation
of the future cash flow projections and key assumptions
adopted by management in the cash flow projections;

EEETHREREEREATHNEERBLEER
BT ERES > BERERRESRETRANBG
BREBEENRRSRERAP NN ERRR ;

We evaluated the competence, capability and objectivity of
the independent valuer engaged by the management;
ELEMEEERZRNE L GEMNER 551Kk
FHRE

We evaluated the appropriateness of the key assumptions
in the cash flow projections, including yearly growth rates
of revenue, profit margin and management’s expectation of
market conditions by reference to the historical performance,
future business plan of the Group as well as industrial trends;
E£EE2%E EEENBERE RREBFTBEIKRIT
EBD IR NERANERERRNES L 81F
Wt FIEREHEA KRR EEEHTRAITERS ;

We obtained the sensitivity analysis performed by
management and assessing the extent of impact on the
recoverable amount; and
EEERSEERBETHSRE D MW EH U
CETTERE ; &

We reviewed the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

EFEERGAVBRROVBMKE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
WIAZHENHR S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Hth & w

EAFEEANHMENEE HthERaEFR
FBER EFOEGAMBRRRESRILHA
B BT R & o

EEHRAEMBREANERLEREEMER &
LENRAEEEREATEARIZBER o

B REMBREAMS SN EEAREEM
B HMEEBEMENET RV BRENE
EHEBFBRTAERNBERAEANT HEDS
BEEAERRA -HESENERTHIERAE
MENBEARBERRL EEFTREAMEE -5
It BEEEBREERNEE

E%%% i S EHREKRAE
=1F

i 4

#2
ARIERY

BERREFRAEERBEEBIFAMATEMBNSE
BUYHBBREEAREBRAFIIIRERERH
wEEEMAFHIKRGESMBERE REFER
BUERNARAREE UAERRESVHRED
AR EEFHRME R B AERERLL

ERBEEVBREE EFAETE EEERF
BIEENEN TEERBR THRERFELSE
BNEE UARERFEEEA TS ER [RIFE

FARFE BEEFEIELEE JHEAME
BREVBER SR

BEEEREAERTEE EEEMBTHREBERE
BEE-

NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2024



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and, obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

B BET RS

?Z%&Emﬁt%%ﬁ%éﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬂ@%
E=
EENERAEERGRAVMFRARSFEHR
HEFHERMENNERBRRARE G IERE
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HEAHAESFERNZBENRE Rtz S EH
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IRB AR - FERAMR M ] ARG SR E L
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
WIAZHENHR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for purpose of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 March 2025

Lau Tat Ki
Practicing certificate number PO8160

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F, Tower 2,
Kowloon Commerce Centre,

No, 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
e IEm

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_B=+—HIEFE

2024 2023
—EmE — ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(RESE]e))
(&%)
Continuing operations FHERE 2%
Revenue Wi 5 432,571 337,740
Cost of revenue Wz Al A (313,940) (264,853)
Gross profit EH 118,631 72,887
Other revenue, gains and losses, net E AU~ e Ko B5 1873 5E 7 (25,580) 9512
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHMAZ (685) -
Administrative and other operating expenses THREMSERS (100,086) (78,110)
Fair value loss of investment property KEYEEEEFEE 17 (121) (266)
Impairment loss on property, LY EN =Y
plant and equipment ERTE 15 (73,054) -
Impairment loss under expected credit loss TREAEEBEEA T
model, net (recognised)/reversal (WD) HElEEBIE R (14,567) 6,978
(Loss)/profit from operating activities KEEFREZ (B18) 9 (95,462) 11,001
Finance costs PSR AR 11 (130) 227)
(Loss)/profit before taxation bRIZAT (B538) /& F) (95,592) 10,774
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigiik e, () 12 6,097 (7,988)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing FHEREERZ
operations FR (§518) HF) (89,495) 2,786
Discontinued operations RIS R
Loss from discontinued operation RIEREETE B8 8 (138,115) (125,730)
(227,610) (122,044)

BN ERZ SR BREZ—HD -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPRERENSIVE INCOME
rofEmMcEMEERTR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZT_MNFE+_"_FA=+—HILFE

2024 2023
“EE B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss for the year FNEE _ (227,610) (122,944)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hith2mikss  (§518)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: FEEM D BEEEmkzES
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans rH@E%‘EE?F'J BEEE g 202 (1,103)
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: BJSEEM P HEBmRZEH -
Exchange differences arising from translation ?@§/§9F¥?&F$Z PER =R
of foreign operations . (25,025) (31,275)
Reclassification adjustments for foreign operations FRHEBINEFRER
disposed of during the year B EAE (31,883) =
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FRNEMEMEEE
net of income tax NBRPAISHR (56,706) (32,378)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEEERE (284,316) (155,322)

2024 2023
“EmE —E=
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000

B 5 FAT FET
(Restated)
(F7)

Loss for the year attributable to owners of

the Company AABEA NBISFEAEE
— from continuing operations —REFECEES (42,667) 6,473
— from discontinued operations —RERIERE TS (139,450) (88,728)
(182,117) (82,255)
Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling  FEFEHI R i (L E A 518
interests
— from continuing operations —RBFFESEET (46,828) (3,687)
— from discontinued operations —RER ISR 1,335 (37,002)
(45,493) (40,689)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: WP RERGEEBEEE :
Owner of the Company KRR A (237,996) (112,808)
Non-controlling interests FEFEEI R (46,320) (42,514)
(284,316) (155,322)
Total comprehensive loss EHEEBE
— from continuing operations —QEQ}%% %%%‘%f% (121,176) (149,785)
— from discontinued operations —RER IS (163,140) (5,537)
(284,316) (155,322)
(Loss)/profit per share AR (B18) HFl 14
For continuing and discontinued operations FBRARILEERET
Basic (HK cents) EA& (B (5.68) (2.56)
Diluted (HK cents) B8 CB) (5.68) (2.56)
For continuing operations FERE R
Basic (HK cents) Eax () (1.33) 0.20
Diluted (HK cents) #58 GBI (1.33) 020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial —~ BEMIMisE AZEEEMERER 2 —2D
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
nv-R j‘%‘k)‘:lﬁ ;Rie

it = )=y o =

As at 31 December 2024 K=

2024 2023
& — ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#&T FHET
Non-current assets JERENE E
Property, plant and equipment MR EREE 15 517,885 742,604
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 1,064 47,902
Investment properties KEYZE 17 8,261 8,541
Goodwill e 18 308,346 314,261
Intangible assets BB E 19 135,786 243,245
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEVME - BEREZEZ
plant and equipment FETFRIE 36,384 37,082
Deferred tax assets FERIBE E 37 22,658 27,816
1,030,384 1,421,451
Current assets RENE E
Inventories FE 20 27,796 217,388
Completed properties held for sale FEREBITY= 21 - 173315
Trade receivables B 7 EUERFR 22 136,563 135,943
Prepayments, deposits paid and FENRIE B ZE K
other receivables HpEWER1E 23 120,676 139,883
Contract costs BHIR A 24 - 755
Short-term loan receivables FEWFZEAE ™R 25 - 55
Cash and cash equivalents ReKRIAEEREER 26 357,768 201,745
642,803 869,084
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade payables B 5 RAIRM 27 87,942 126,616
Accruals and other payables FE 5T B F K & (IR IE 28 52,388 212,903
Contract liabilities EHBE 29 47,699 62,240
Amounts due to related parties FE T RAEE 75 XK 30 18,647 17,389
Loans from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries KB AR IEITEHIREER 31 796 2,931
Bank borrowings — due within one year IRITER——FEREIE 32 - 56,953
Lease liabilities == 33 1,111 11,933
Tax payables FE(THRIE 10,736 7,121
219,319 498,086
Net current assets MENEERE 423,484 370,998
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERTEER 1,453,868 1,792,449
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iRa MBI

As at 31 December 2024 M_E_WE+_A=+—H

2024 2023
“E-mE ===
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bd5E FHET FHET
Capital and Reserves A R (it
Share capital [N 35 32,076 32,076
Reserves B 36 1,387,248 1,411,447
Equity attributable to owners of KABHEB A
the Company [E(h IR 1,419,324 1,443,523
Non-controlling interests FEFEHI R (419) 250,266
Total equity g 1,418,905 1,693,789
Non-current liabilities JERENEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 33 = 36,719
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBE & 37 34,963 57,987
Net defined benefits liabilities EREEN B EFEE 39 = 3,954
34,963 98,660
1,453,868 1,792,449

The consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 237 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2025 and are signed

on its behalf by:

Ma Chenshan Zhao Bin
E=W Fh N
Director Director
EE EE

HERBINEBTENGEUBEREIN _E_AF=
BTN AEESEERHERBENZE LA TIAL

RREFEHEZ

BN ERZ SR BREZ—HD -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
n‘/-F * FA_&'%D%@JE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NFE+_B=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
KAREE AEEER
Share Non-
Share Share option  Translation Statutory Merger Other  Accumulated controlling

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests
ik Fl220 i3
R iR E{E [ 1] ER HE E Hftfats 2HER et it

Asat 1 January 2023 RIEZ=%F-F-H 32076 2275710 25495 (19761) 35949 (203631) (27843) (561,664) 1556331 283.8% 1810227
Loss for the year EW%?E - - - - - - - (82255) (82259) (40689) (122944
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREMPESE
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans THEN B E e - - - - - - - (653) (653) 50) (1,103)
Exchange difference arising from BRERINEBELL

translation of foreign operations ERER - - - (29900) - - - - (29900) (1379 (31275)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAFEER - - - (29900 - - - (82908) (112808) (42514) (155322)
Capital injection from non-controling interests ~ JEEHIM B - - - - - - - - - 45205 45205
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholder ~ FFERRARTRATARE - - - - - - - - - (6,341) (6341)
Lapse of share option BRELY = = (1181) = = = = 1181 = = =
As at 31 December 2023 and RIEZ=%

asat 1 January 2024 +ZA=+-Ak

RIZZME-F-H 32076 2215710 24314% (49661)* 35,949% (203631)* (27843 (643391)* 1443523 250,266 1693789

Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (182,117) (182,117) (45,493) (227,610)
Other comprehensive income: Hit2E R
Remeasurement of defined benefits plan BRI EENIE - - - - - - - m m 91 202
Release of translation reserve upon LENBARRRZ

disposal of subsidiaries ERGHE - - - (31,883) - - - - (31,883) - (31,883)
Exchange difference arising from HEENEBELZ

translation of foreign operations ERER - - - (24,107) - - - - (24,107) (918) (25,025)
Total comprehensive loss 2EGREE - - - (55,990) - - - (182,006) (237,996) (46,320) (284,316)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) HERBAT (i) - - - - - 213,797 28,199 (28,199) 213,797 (168,795) 45,002
Divided paid to non-controlling shareholder  F—RH B AR FEER

of a subsidiary BEKARE - - - - - - - - - (35,570) (35,570)
Lapse of share option BB = = (7,090) = = = = 7,09 = = -
As at 31 December 2024 HZB-mE

+=A=+-B 32,076 2,275,710% 17,224* (105,651)* 35,949* 10,166* 356% (846,506)* 1,419,324 (419) 1,418,905
* The reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserve of HK$1,387,248,000 (2023: @ DEHEROEEOMBEYRRRTAZESEE
HK$1,411,447,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 1,387,2480008 70 (ZE =4 : 1,411,447,000% 7T) °

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ BB sE B AL Sz B M FERER 2 —2 7 °
statements.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/-F EE@/)ILE%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZT_MNFE+_"_FA=+—HILFE

2024 2023
& — ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Operating activities REEE)
(Loss)/profit before taxation — continuing PRIRAT (B518) ad) —HERE
operations e (95,592) 10,774
Loss before taxation — discontinuing operations  FRFR AT ET 18 — 4R LE 4R 2 35 (120,840) (143,955)
Adjustments for: FEEIEE
Bank interest income RITH B WA (5,121) (4,967)
Fair value loss of investment property KREYEEEEZEFER 17 121 266
Impairment loss of property, M MR B R E R EEE
plant and equipment 15 73,054 2,107
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEERERIE - 1,792
Impairment loss of intangible assets E B ERERE 19 - 46,345
Impairment loss of completed properties FEREZERT
held for sale MEREEE - 51,701
Impairment loss under expected credit loss TEHRfE B ERE
model, net recognised/(reversed) wesR, () ﬁfﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁié}gﬁ
—Trade receivables — B SRR 9 13,617 (5,801)
— Other receivables —HMEWRIE 9 950 (66)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAB 2 K18 8 89,334 =
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #J3 ~ BE KRR HITE 15 12,164 14,955
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREESETE 16 7,449 13,204
Amortisation of intangible assets B ERH 19 10,641 7,737
Loss on disposal of property, HEMERE R&E 2B
plant and equipment 33,948 -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Wﬁ! EN k] 15 - 6,522
Gain on termination of lease contract KIEFEEHN 2 W= - (504)
Finance costs Eﬂ‘?%ﬁkzli 8,030 5,550

Operating cash flows before movements RetEEESEHFZ

in working capital KERERE 27,755 5,660
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =8 (gm e (3,545) 8,131
Decrease in completed properties held for sale 15 A RS EE T Y EE > 172,969 42,081
Increase in trade receivables B 5 AR FIE 0 (17,851) (40,452)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits BARIE BUEEK
paid and other receivables H g W= IE 73,724 134,815
Decrease in contract costs BHIR AR 716 2,849
Decrease in trade payables B 5 AR (17,725) (7,977)
Decrease in accruals and other payables FESH & AR R EL A FE AT 7R IER (73,487) (75,038)
Decrease in contract liabilities aHa/EELD (13,710) (23610)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to related  FE{IREZE A AIEE AN, GRLZLY)
parties 15,847 (19,028)
Decrease/(increase) in net defined benefits EREEN BEREE
liabilities L, (8 hn) 373 (190)
Cash generated from operations 4Rk B TR ERIE S TN 4 165,066 27,241
Income tax paid BEER (8,448) (15,755)
Net cash generated from operating activities #&& EENFT1F 2 IR & EE 156,618 11,486
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
l|‘7|_ =M Eﬁ:ﬁ/}ll.i%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

2024 2023
—E_NE — ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Investing activities BREEE
Bank interest received BUERITH]E 5,121 4,967
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVXE BEKREE (52,528) (13,130)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERZBRS
equipment 9,803 -
Purchase of intangible assets BERTEE 19 (1,003) (170)
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBRABEEZ
W MAFER 44 73,220 =
Net cash outflow on an acquisition WiE—ENB AR EE
of a subsidiary RE M FER - (379,853)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KRB EEFRE (FRA)
investing activities ZHREFEE 34,613 (388,186)
Financing activities LB ES
Interest paid [SENEl! ,%'\ (8,030) (5,522)
Repayments of principal portion of lease BEREaEAEHD
liabilities (2,804) (13,991)
New bank borrowings raised FIGIRITER - 112,869
Repayments of bank borrowings EERIBTTER (1,974) (55,479)
Repayments to non-controlling shareholders of 1B 1& {8 A B FEIE AL AR SR =R 1B
subsidiaries (2,121) (11,267)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders M IEFERR AR BRI AZ B (35,570) (6,341)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (FRH) FRfg
financing activities ZIREFEE (50,499) 20,269
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERIFEEFEEER LV FEE 140,732 (356/431)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FMRERREEEIEE
of the year 201,745 554,705
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of ¥ B IR ERPRIINE 2
cash held in foreign currency EXEE 2 15,291 3471
Cash and cash equivalents at end of theyear FEKRIRERINEZLEIER 357,768 201,745
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash RERREEHEEBERIN
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHEERRIRE 357,768 201,745

BT ERZS R aMBRERZ—ED

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nv-F

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZT_MNFE+_"_FA=+—HILFE

1.

MmN

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability and its issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange’). Its immediate parent
is Macro-Link International Land Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong, and its ultimate parent is Macro-Link Culturaltainment
Development Co. Ltd.,, a company incorporated in The People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC").

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding company.
During the period, the Group was principally engaged in (i) development
and operation of integrated resort and cultural tourism in South Korea;
(i) distribution of wine in Hong Kong; and (jii) provision of property
management in the PRC.

On 11 June 2024 and 21 August 2024, the Group entered into a sale
agreement to dispose of subsidiaries, Megaluck Company Limited
("Megaluck”) and Huaxia Winery Holding Company Limited (‘Huaxia
Winery") which carried out the Group’s entertainment business and wine
business, respectively. On 19 December 2024, the Group exercised its
redeemable right of preference shares in Macrolink Australia Investment
Limited (“Macrolink”), which carried out the Group’s real estate integrated
resort and cultural tourism business. The disposals were effected in order
to generate cash flows for the expansion of the Group’s other existing
businesses. The disposals were completed on 24 June 2024, 31 October
2024 and 19 December 2024, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
("HKS"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HKS$'000) except otherwise
indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E_ZE_ME+_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and

related amendments to Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 (2020)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
Amendments to

HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

The amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosure set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS"”) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5(2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to
HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current
year. The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current
should be based on rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period. Specifically, the classification should not be
affected by management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months.

clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a transfer of cash,
goods or services, or the entity’s own equity instruments to the
counterparty. If a liability has terms that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s
own equity instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date which are conditional on the compliance with covenants, the 2022
Amendments specifically clarify that only covenants that an entity is
required to comply with on or before the end of the reporting period
affect the entity’'s right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date, even if compliance with the covenant is
assessed only after the reporting date. The 2022 Amendments also specify
that covenants with which an entity must comply after the reporting date
(i.e. future covenants) do not affect the classification of a liability as current
or non-current at the reporting date. However, if the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with covenants
within twelve months after the reporting period, an entity discloses
information that enables users of financial statements to understand the
risk of the liabilities becoming repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period. This would include information about the covenants,
the carrying amount of related liabilities and facts and circumstances, if
any, that indicate that the entity may have difficulties complying with the
covenants.

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has applied the
new accounting policy to the classification of liability as current or non-
current retrospectively. The application of the amendments in the current
year had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E_ZE_ME+_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS"”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards - Volume
172

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these new and
amendments to HKFRSs, which are not yet effective, will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS"”) (Continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements, which sets
out requirements on presentation and disclosures in financial statements,
will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. This new HKFRS
Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the requirements
in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements to present specified categories
and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures
on management-defined performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements and improve aggregation and disaggregation of
information to be disclosed in the financial statements. In addition, some
HKAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor
amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings
per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early
application permitted. The application of the new standard is expected to
affect the presentation of the statement of profit or loss and disclosures
in the future financial statements. The Group is in the process of assessing
the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment property, which are
measured at fair value.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment’, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets'"

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

WMo B Xk AR A B € FERS 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of business are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an
asset and a liability in the “Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements"
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes"
and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits" respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date;

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS
16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the lease
term ends within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets
are recognised and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with
market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Business combinations involving entities under common control
are accounted for by applying the pooling of interest method. The
assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their
carrying amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
of the controlling holding company. Any difference between the
consideration paid and the share capital of the “acquired” entity is
reflected within equity as merger reserve. The statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income reflects the results of
the combining entities for the full year, irrespective of when the
combination takes place. Comparatives are presented as if the
entities have always been combined since the date the entities had
come under common control.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group's and the non-controlling interests' proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

BASIS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL =
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU") (or groups
of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

On the disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the
group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the CGU (or a
CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of
is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation (or
the CGU) disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the groups of
CGUs) retained.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, that is, when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met.

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

- the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

- the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Contract costs
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (for example, sales commissions)
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer
of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

Sale of completed properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the
contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the asset may be transferred over time or at a point in time. If
properties have no alternative use to the Group contractually
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment from the
customers for performance completed to date, the Group satisfies
the performance obligation over time and therefore, recognises
revenue over time in accordance with the input method for
measuring progress. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of the completed

property.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to
the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to
the contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

For property development and sales contract for which the
control of the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is
recognised when the customer obtains the physical possession
or the legal title of the completed property and the Group has
present right to payment and the collection of the consideration is
probable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Entertainment revenue

Entertainment revenue represents the aggregate net difference
between wins and losses and is recognised in profit or loss when
the amounts are received or paid out. There may be a difference
between the timing of cash receipts from customers and the
recognition of revenue, resulting in a contract or contract-related
liability. The Group's outstanding liabilities under entertainment
business, are generally expected to be recognised as revenue or
refunded within one year of being purchased, earned or deposited
and are recorded within “accruals and other payables” in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Commission paid to
promoters is recorded as a reduction to entertainment revenue.

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer accepts and takes the
control of the products. Revenue represented the sales value of
goods sold less returns, discounts, rebates and value-added tax.

Service fee for property management

Revenue from provision of property management services is
recognised in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered. Revenues recognised over time when the Group
transfers control of the services over time, based on the actual
service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion
of the total services to be provided, because the customer receives
and consumes the benefits simultaneously.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any identified impairment losses.

The cost of buildings is depreciated using straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of fifty years or, where shorter, the
period of the relevant leases on which the buildings stand.

Construction in progress includes properties in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative purposes
and are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
their intended use. No depreciation is provided for these assets
which still under construction. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Freehold land, including golf land, is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the allocation
of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) less
their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

3.33%
20% or over the period of the relevant

Hotel properties

Leasehold improvements
lease

Plant and buildings over the period of the relevant lease

10%-25%

109%-50%

10%-25%

10%-33%

Facilities appliances 20%

Machinery

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are property held either to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All reqular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit— impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, deposit paid, other
receivables, short-term loan receivables and cash and cash
equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessments are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0]

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument's external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, for example, a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0]

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iif)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(0 the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over three years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

3.

D
id

I8

FEMBBRRZEUEBEEREKX
SEERENR @

32 BEAREHRER @
ERITE #@)
THEE (8)
SREERE @)

(iii)

EERETHMEE
TREBETHE-BAULEHZ
TREBEMGHRREEZRELE N
A ENEBNEHRERES
ME - TRMEERXEEEREN
REEEAMTIEHNAHE
i

@ BETAREBERABRIEKX
FA R B

b)) EREGHN WMENHERE
)5

© BERNERARERBMER
A B HEEESHSH
EhRmmEERALEER
ATERTEBNEE ; K

d) BERAFTERENEAH
i EsE AR -

EREHBETREETFHRBRAR
R B B B T 3 AR PR T U [E]
AR BINERXZHFHRA
BREEAREEZFRHR (E
ZRBERMES) 2EREEA
HEZFEULE UREEEES
) AEEWHEZEREE-E
BN EREEPEEBEE R
TRERERZBRELAEEN
W [B132 e 45 $R B 58 11 17 Bh o # 85
BARRIEEREF - ERERY
B9 E P

NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2024



3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FEMBHRRZEBUEBEREKX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHHERER @

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

32 BEXEHHEEREN ®

Financial instruments (Continued) ERTE #@)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (1)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TRHEERE @

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (that is, the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability— weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

Past-due status;

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit- impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables, other
receivables and short-term loan receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables,
amounts due to related parties, loans from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, bank borrowings, lease liabilities
and loan from immediate holding company are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories is determined on a weighted average basis
and comprises materials, direct labour and an appropriate portion
of production overheads. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to sale proceeds received after the year end date less
selling expenses, or by management estimates based on prevailing
market condition.

Costs of completed properties include acquisition costs,
development expenditure, interest and other direct costs
attributable to such properties. The carrying values of properties
held by subsidiaries are adjusted in the consolidated financial
statements to reflect the Group’s actual acquisition costs where
appropriate.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit/(loss) before taxation”as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary differences arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

3.

D
id

FTEMBEBRRZEHNEEREKX
SEERER @

I8

32 EAREFHEKRER @

RIE @)

BB AR ZREEMZERRYG
FERERABRLERIBAE RIERE
ESESN I G ERE 2 DI MERE
BEATERKRKRAISEFZOE > BB
BISh o B FIRE MR AR 2 A0
LREHEMELA ZREERESEER
AEERHERR N T UFEHEE R
EZrzAmBFESIR Y RERKA UE
B TEES

BEMBEEZ REERSREHR
wa WRENBAER BHMERNE
FLANRPr B SNER D B E R LE

BEMBEEREBEZBHBERR
BEEBRNEREENBZRE  RiE
RERREERIARLEBHZIREK
(ReiRi%) st8-o

REMBEREREEZFERBLR
A& ETEH RS B R LART U Bl 5008
BHEEKRBEZREELDNFEM
RHZMBER -

RAEERIACAREEREFAEER
BEZEEXRSFEBRIEREAMNS &
SEgECEERBHRACSSREE
RREEENHEAR-

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024

143



144

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
Wk 3

3.

R 75 ¥Rk R Bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
‘Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition
and over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non- monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (that is,
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Employee benefits
) Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return
on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately
in the consolidated statement of financial position with
a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in accumulated losses and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest
is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning
of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service costs,
past service costs, as well as gains and losses on
curtailment and settlements);
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

()

(ii)

(ii})

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)

net interest expense or income; and
remeasurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined
benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘employee
benefits expense”. Curtailment gains and losses are
accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plan.
Any surplus result from this calculation is limited to the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form
of refunds from the plan or reduction in future contribution
to the plan.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when the entity recognises any
related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the
Group in respect of services provided by employees up to
the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FAMBEBRRZEHEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHHERER @
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

32 BEXEHHEEREN ®

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv)  Share-based payment arrangements
Share-based payment transactions of the Company

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in share option reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Intangible assets
Farmland development

Farmland development represents deferred expenditures including
farmland expenditures and cost for preparation works. Farmland
development has been capitalised as assets where the costs are
identifiable and the ability to use the asset will generate probable
future economic benefits.

Farmland development are amortised over the period in which
the related benefits are expected to be realised. Farmland
development is reviewed annually to determine the amount, if
any, that is no longer recoverable and any such amount is written
off to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year of
determination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)
Trademarks

Trademarks acquired in business combinations are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date which is regarded as their cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, trademarks with definite useful
lives and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
impairment loss. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.

Subsequent to initial recognition, trademarks with indefinite useful
lives are not amortised but are tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired, by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
technical know-how incurred on a clear-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant asset is
amortised on a straight line basis over its useful life of 5 years.

Entertainment licence

Entertainment licence has no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the Group can use to generate net cash flows.
Entertainment licence with indefinite useful lives is carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, contract costs and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful lives and contract costs to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, intangible assets and contract costs are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group assesses
and recognises any impairment loss on other assets related to
the relevant contracts in accordance with applicable standards.
Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised as contract
costs is recognised to the extent the carrying amounts exceeds
the remaining amount of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for related goods or services less the costs
which relate directly to providing those goods or services that
have not been recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as
contract costs are then included in the carrying amount of the CGU
to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment of
that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

WMo B Xk AR A B € FERS 2024

BMBHRRZGREEREX

@E‘l‘ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ ()
32 BEXEHHEEREN ®

ME-BERRFE ERAEEE-§
WA REREE (BRI ZiREE

REBSHAR *EBRTEYE KB
hx#E EREEE -BEERIEA
FHZBTLEERGHORETZREE
NEEREAPRRAREEED D
RAEBE - HEEEABARBTR A
& 5t AE R & & = 7J Y [o] & 28 DUE R
BEFEE WA BE -EREHAFHNE
WEEKREAFEANETLEERSE
DEERNRATRERAERERE
TRERE -

ME-BERRE EAREE BT
EEKRGHRAZAIREE R EG
st MEEZEBLFEEZ I WEE
B RAERGHEEMBRSEELE
fiz eI ElE5E -

RHIREEEBNETRERNZR 4
AR EE—BNOREE AIATE
ENEEEBREEEEMN XDRE
HEEFEMURNARIEGE D
HENR/NER - aJ Bl £ 3ERATE
EfBRESELBENNIRSEELESN
BREE THAMMRBESESBMUNIR
SEABENARMNIREEETLEER

FEBRERBEBMBREERE S
EMER R TOMENE EFREDH
BEEER > FiRIEERRENERES
HEMANARMNEMEEN TR
BEEE -EHR HEREEBHAEERR
HATR WL 4 B AR R & o 30 AR 755 T W B BY
B SRR H AR E MR
BY Bk A B AH R B AR R HERD 7 S AY
Az =2 RIS EACR TN
FNEERNRERE WH) - BEXLS
BHRAENEERSFARMBREE
FEMUNREE UFTERREEEE

UBRERER

FI U B 88 2 A A BB R & a4 B
FEREEZRSE EIAEREE
By ErRRIREREGHAMAIALIR
KR EHIRE > ZIRATAEIR R R AR
HERFBEENRITH SN G RZ
EE ARSELEW HANEAR Gk
ARG RRFEERE) ©

149



150

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
i 3

3.

R 75 ¥Rk R Bt 51

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, contract costs and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount
of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is
that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent assets

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected
events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic
benefits to the Group and they are not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. The Group assesses continually
the development of contingent assets. If it has become virtually
certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the Group
recognises the asset and the related income in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in which the change
occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the
part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits has become probable.
If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic
benefits will be required for an item previously dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in which the change
in probability occurs, except in the extremely rare circumstances
where no reliable estimate can be made.

3.

D
id

ms

I8

BMBRRZGREEREKX

=
=]

BEEE @

32 BEAGFEBREN @

HARBRIAEE

HREE

E 5t Bl LIS S E M FRHA LASN 2 F 1 PR
EE PJEERAEREENDTRAZ
FARBE > WANEGRE B RRFES o
FEBEFE T EAREEZER HH
FEESAGENDZARA  AEEER
BESE REABM GV HTRE
FEEDE E RARRIA ©

HAEE
HREBRIEBEFEMELEZRAEES
F R SEEBER N SR EENER
BERUENEEMA TR -

MAERERARENEHREESEE
BoRHAEMALTREERZEDEE
TR A—ERAEE REEHHRE
RARFHES

FEEFENERAREBEUETS

RENZNERRHESERA A B
HEREREM—HEERMERIAE
BREZTEE ARG ER > AR
FIEHIREH T RERAZMHFEH N
REE EEETEMFRTEERAT
B 2R A i R AR TR PR B S o

NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2024



3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 “Lease”
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed. As a practical
expedient, leases with similar characteristics are accounted on
a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably expects that the
effects on the consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of office premises that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

3. REMBBRRZGREEREKX
B BREN @

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

32 BEXEHHEREN ®

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group that

is preparing its financial statements as follows:

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(if)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
the group of which the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group s itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

3.

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the group or the parent of the Group.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or
obligations between the Group and a related party, regardless of
whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(a)

Impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful

life

Determining whether intangible assets with indefinite useful life
are impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which intangible assets with
indefinite useful life has been allocated, which is the higher of
the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU (or a group of CGUs) and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a material
impairment loss or further impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite
useful life as at 31 December 2024 was HK$50,425,000 (2023:
HKS$145,613,000). Details of the impairment test of entertainment
licence with indefinite useful life are set out in note 19.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives
and contract costs

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible
assets with finite useful lives and contract costs are stated at costs
less accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the assets belong. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets with finite
useful lives and contract costs are HK$517,885,000, HK$ 1,064,000,
HK$85,361,000 and nil (2023: HK$742,604,000, HK$47,902,000,
HK$97,632,000 and HK$755,000), respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(9

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL individually. In addition, the Group uses practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables which are not
assessed individually using a provision matrix. The provision rates
are based on aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors
taking into consideration the Group's historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered. The provision of ECL
is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about the ECL
and the Group's trade receivables are disclosed in note 45.2.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives
are estimated at the time the asset is acquired based on historical
experience, the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as
well as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the market
demands or service output of the assets. The Group also performs
annual reviews on whether the assumptions made on useful lives
continue to be valid.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Intangible assets except for those with indefinite lives are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly
in order to determine the amount of amortisation expenses to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are based
on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets and taking
into account anticipated technological changes. The amortisation
expenses for future periods are adjusted prospectively if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Determination on incremental borrowing rates of
lease contracts

In determining incremental borrowing rates of lease contracts, the
Group applies judgment to determine the applicable rates, taking
into account the nature of the underlying assets and the terms and
condition of the leases at both the commencement date and the
effective date of the modification to calculate the present value
of lease payments. The incremental borrowing rates of the Group
applied significantly affect the amounts of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(9

Write-down of inventories

If the costs of inventories fall below their net realisable values,
write-down of inventories is recognised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale. The Group bases the estimates
on all available information, including the current market prices
of the finished goods and raw materials, and historical operating
costs. If the actual selling prices were to be lower or the costs of
completion and other distribution costs were to be higher than
estimated, the write-down of inventories could be higher than
estimated.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2024, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses HK$379,519,000 (2023:
HK$318,530,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are less or more than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which result in revision of future
taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or further recognition
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.

Impairment of completed properties held for sale

Management assessed the recoverability of the completed
properties held for sale based on an estimation of the net realisable
value of the underlying properties which involves, inter-alia,
considerable analysis of current market price of properties of a
comparable standard and location. If the actual net realisable value
of the underlying properties are less than expected as a result
of change in market condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development costs, material provision for impairment
losses may result.

No impairment loss for the completed properties held for sale
was recognised in the profit or loss of the Group in respect of the
current year.

WMo B Xk AR A B € FERS 2024

4, {HETFRABARAZRZEFERKIE @

(9)
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RIEIRIEE
RIE_WNE+"BA=+—H > BHRE
V5 TR R 2R v F TE [\ » BRI I 36 48 I 23 B
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. (L3 FEABAEZZFERE &

(Continued)

NABEFE
KEEMEENNAZERENERY
TR AFE BEURREBAK.
NABEZEH AEGT NS EMK
FEERE  AEEBFEILGEMU
EEAEEREYEZ ARBE KE
EREMEZGEDSREEYESD
B ELERIEER S (M5 E))
ML -RNETHERBEMELRABE
WA ZER > EERAMHENTIEHEE
A BIRE Do

(j)  Fair value measurement (J)

The Group's leased office investment properties are initially
measured at cost, and subsequently are carried at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recorded in profit or loss. The Group
engages independent valuer to determine the fair value of the
Group's investment properties at the end of every financial year.
The valuation of the Group's investment properties is derived
by making reference to recent comparable sales transactions
available in the relevant property market ("“Market Approach”). In
determining the methodology for the measurement of the fair
value of investment properties, the directors are of the opinion that
Market Approach has less unobservable inputs.

BMERFETHFHEREEREH &
ZRRRBR (BEHSEE ME-

The valuations were dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgement, including market
selling price.

REEZZ-_NONFE+ZA=+—H81
FE > AABEEELN121,0008T (T
T =4 126600058 70) RizEEE

R BRAREMEZGEZHEMERN

During the year ended 31 December 2024, a fair value loss of
approximately HK$121,000 (2023: HK$266,000) was recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Further information about
the valuation of investment properties is provided in note 17.

BN
5. REVENUE 5. W
An analysis of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers for the FARERKEEHT 2 XR a2

year is as follows: T s

2024 2023
—E-mE =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET
(Restated)
(E7))

FET

Continuing operations

RHEEEER

Revenue from contracts with customers RKEEREHZKE

Distribution of wine DHEEA 89 84

Provision of property management services R ESIERY 432,482 337,656

Total revenue recognised [SEER s 432,571 337,740

Revenue from contracts with customers REEREHNZWES

Disaggregated revenue information DN E R}

Timing of revenue recognition Uy 2 B 58 2 R

Goods transferred at a point in time RE RER 2 R 89 84

Services transferred overtime RTS8 432,482 337,656
432,571 337,740
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from contracts
with customers in existence at the end of the reporting period:

Distribution of wine

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS
15 to its contract for production and distribution of wine such that the
Group does not disclose information about revenue that the Group will be
entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance obligations under
the contract for production and distribution of wine that had an original
expected duration of one year or less.

Service fee for property management

Revenue relating to the properties management services is recognised
over time. Advance consideration allocated to the properties
management services is recognised as a contract liability and is released
over the period of services.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting framework,
the Group has identified operating segments based on its products and
services. The operating segments are identified by senior management
who is designated as “Chief Operating Decision Maker"to make decisions
about resource allocation to the segments and assess their performance.

The Group has three reportable segments for continuing operations,
namely (i) development and operation of real estate, integrated resort and
cultural tourism; (ii) distribution of wine; and (iii) property management
business. The segmentations are based on the business nature of the
Group's operations that management uses to make decisions.

Megaluck, Huaxia Winery and Macrolink consitiute a major line of
businesses in entertainment business, wine and real estate, integrated
resort and cultural tourism business respectively. Upon the completion
of the disposal of Megaluck, Huaxia Winery and Macrolink, the segment
information reported below does not include any amounts for the
discontinued operations, which are disclosed for more details in note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

5.

W
BN BERAEECER
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BRFFEEZR

DEEEA
AEBEREBMBRSELFISHEI121E
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NEH REAERREREEN W /EREK
FAstHIR A —F U TNEERDFLALES
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MEEEREE
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RIERS RS AN EE ) LERGHHERER -

7 ERE
RiEAE PR ISR SR AEEIEH
B R IR AT E D o M E DI E S
TEBEERRE CERERERE LR
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R (D HEEEE; RINVMEEEER-
EEBUAEEESE XX MERERRS

#B o

Megaluck ~ 2 B JB 2 K Macrolinks Bl 2 18 24 £
BB AMBHE & ERNKRXEIRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by
reportable segments for the current and prior years:

Real estate,
integrated resort and cultural
tourism
EHE:
FEERNK
XAk

2024

- 113
HK$'000
FHET

6.

Wine

HEER

2024

“E-mE

HK$'000
TR

DEPER =
DERN R A

TR EFERBEFELERZ RO
Z W R EE DT

Property
management

MEEE
2024 23 2024
“E-mE “E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR

(Restated)
(B51)

Continuing Operations FHEIRE
SEGMENT REVENUE AEKE
Revenue from external customers ShEbE R as - - 89 84 432,482 337,656 432,571 337,740
Segment (loss)/profit D (518 /A (117,429) (14016) 26 6 44,220 40507 (73,183) 26497
Unallocated corporate income RDBEARBA 626 691
Unallocated corporate expenses RPEARTH (22,905) (16,187)
Finance costs Bk A (130) (227)
(Loss)/profit before taxation from BB 2 7 IR IRAT

continuing operations (&8 /&7 (95,592) 10774

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during the year.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group's accounting policies. Revenue and expenses are allocated
to the reportable segments with reference to sales generated and the
expenses incurred by these segments or which otherwise arose from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to these segments.
Segment results represented the loss incurred or profit earned by each
segment without allocation of central administration expenses and
income including directors’ emoluments, government grant, other
income and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

FHERZ AR @R BB ES W@ F
PO 5 53 B el 2 SH S o

ERDSBZEABRESERE 5T HRA
B Wm A& AZRDBHRSZIHE
REEZRAXHZEOBREGEETEN#
HEDEREERDE - DA EEIRR DA
EEZBEEATE 28 R ED B RITH
X RBA - BEESME  BFHEE - Hi
WA BRA IR EEBREERRER
MBS UDEERMFFEDEIRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E_ZE_ME+_A=+—HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
reportable segments:

31 December 2024

Real estate,

DEPER @)
NEEERERE

TR AEFZ2HR DB 2EERERD
#r

—E_mE+-RA=+—H

integrated
resort and
cultural Property
tourism management
BitE-
REERN
R AbhiiE BEEE MEEE Hazt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FT#ET F#ET FET THET
Segment assets DEEE 564,360 257 795,668 1,360,285
Unallocated ROEC 312,902
Consolidated total assets GAEEERE 1,673,187
Segment liabilities NEEE 1,249 - 251,138 252,387
Unallocated KNEC 1,895
Consolidated total liabilities REafdRE 254,282

31 December 2023

Real estate,

TET-F+"RA=+—H

integrated Assets related

resort to

and cultural Property  discontinued

tourism management operations

EihE - B

GREERN EBEMZ
Rz BEEE MEEE BE “ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET F#ET FTHET FHET
Segment assets DEEE 746,153 232 731,158 780,066 2,257,609
Unallocated RAOEL 32,926
Consolidated total assets REBEEE 2,290,535
Segment liabilities NBEE 2,943 = 277,803 309487 590,233
Unallocated KN 6513
Consolidated total liabilities REEEEE 596,746
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEF @
Other segment information Hit o ZER

Real estate, integrated
resort and cultural

tourism Win Property management Unallocated Total
BHE BABEBRE
b *AE @it
2024 2024 2 2024
fut- Sl .3 B —mE =
HK$'000 ( HKS000 HKS'000
Fin BT #T ; FHR FHR
Continuing operations FELEEH
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit orloss or - HASBEHANHEE
segment assets: SIEZHE
Additions to non-current assets (note) REERBEE (1) - 210 - 6 50,220 708 - - 50,220 216
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %%\@E&ﬁﬁ?ﬁ% 3,096 2617 4 = 1,378 963 - - 4,478 3580
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREENE - - - - - - 2,446 2528 2,446 2528
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EERY - - - - 10070 6979 - - 10,070 6979
Impairment loss on trade receivables recognised in profit or loss, 1B m AR & BEMEAERE
net recognised/(reversal) (NBxR) - - - 1177 - (6,978) 10,327 - 10,327 (5.801)
Impairment loss on other receivable recognised in profit or loss, ENEEE@%Z&TMEW%KIE
net recognised/(reversal) AR (038 - - - - - (84) 950 - 950 (84)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment nEs Fﬁ%&é‘zﬁmﬁﬁs}a 73,054 - - - - - - - 73,054 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets - = - = - = - = - =
Impairment loss of intangible assets EREEAGRE - - - - - - - - - -
Fair value loss of investment property RENEBEEDEE - = - = 121 266 - - 121 266
Amounts reqularly provided to the Chief Operating Decision EHELELEFRERBBTHA
Marker but not included in the measure of segment profit or PHER A NEEFEZHE
Joss 0/59g/7’7€/7[355€[53
Interest income FISHA (125) - (U] - (505) (332 (4155 (4415 (4,786)  (4747)
Finance costs EIEIEN 27 - - - - 65 103 162 130 27
Income tax expense/(credit) Frigfmsy/ (E%) (13,772) (98) - - 7,675 8,086 - - (6,097) 7988
Note:  Non-current assets excluded those relating to discontinued operations and Kiat: RS EEAEREEMRLECEXERNEER
excluded goodwill, financial instruments and deferred tax assets. TEERE - EHIAREBLERESE-
Information about major customers BERAXERFER
No customer which individually accounts for 10% or more of the Group's B E2024%F12831HK20235F12831HIEF
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. o W AR R P B RS A& B U A BI10%3K
I
Geographical information & & il
The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC (including Hong AEBZEBFEZUNRPE (BFESH) &
Kong), South Korea and Australia. 58 KB o
The following is a geographical analysis of the Group's revenue from TREVNAFERBEFELAEEIILES
external customers (based on where the goods are sold and the services W (REE RHE RIRFEIREMNAE]) K&
are provided) and non-current assets (based on the geographical location FERBEE RBEEENMEME) 2 & o
of the assets) for the current and prior years: #r
Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
SMERE B Wt zs FEREBEE
2024 2024
“ElE 2 ko 11 3
HK$'000 HK$’000
T 5 5
The PRC (including Hong Kong) HE (BEEH) 432,571 424371 547,167 657,933
South Korea [ - 1,178 483,217 735,180
Australia B - 43,632 - 522
432,571 469,181 1,030,384 1,393,635
Note:  Non-current assets excluded those relating to deferred tax assets. Wit ERBEETEIERRIERNBEEERME
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

OTHER REVENUE, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

7.

Hth A ~ Wz R G5 1873 88

2024 2023
111 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET
(RESE]e))
(E7))

FHET

Continuing operations FEREER

Government grants NRgiSE ) 711 1,288

Rental income HAEWA 1,115 1,169

Bank interest income IRITHBUA 4,786 4,747

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BEMRREZER (33,948) -

Others Hih 1,756 2308
(25,580) 9,512

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Operation representing a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operation disposed of in the current
year

On 11 June 2024 and 21 August 2024, the Group entered into a sale
agreement to dispose of subsidiaries, Megaluck and Huaxia Winery
which carried out the Group’s entertainment business and wine business,
respectively. On 19 December 2024, the Group exercised its redeemable
right of preference shares in Macrolink, which carried out the Group’s real
estate integrated resort and cultural tourism business. The disposals were
effected in order to generate cash flows for the expansion of the Group’s
other existing businesses. The disposals were completed on 24 June 2024,
31 October 2024 and 19 December 2024, respectively.

The loss for the year from the discontinued entertainment business, wine
business and real estate integrated resort and cultural tourism business
are set out below. The comparative figures in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income/statement of profit or
loss have been restated to re-present the entertainment business, wine
business and real estate integrated resort and cultural tourism business
operation as discontinued operations.

RIEEEXRT

RAFEFRHEBBIITFEXHRN
REMIE &2 EF

RIZEZOFEAE+—HRZZZHEFENA
“t+—H XxEEFIHEBREUHE DA
HEXAEERLEBEREGEBRET Z2HBA
BMegaluck REEBEX R T MNF+ =
B+hB  A&EETHEERMacrolink BEEBAER
EBE2EMESREEBRNKRXXICIRE 2=
ZEBERBELOE ETSHEZENARE
EREMRGFEER ZERELERERET
HERIR T -_MOEAB-+HEE-ZF
“_HE+ABA=+—BRZZZNF+ZA
+HhBZMe

RIEREREEB AR EEFTREMER
AF‘(E%?H&XTE#%E%?‘ZEEWI&?%%Z@JZYD
TeoraEakHAMEERER THEmK
ZHEBRUFEEEY LU REEER %ﬁ*ﬁ/@
EBREMELGRSERN KX CREEFF
PR IEEREFERZT o

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

8.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 8.

Operation representing a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operation disposed of in the current
year (Continued)

31 December 2024

IHEEEF @)

EAZIKEF;F)?&%}%?%EIE%?%.‘.?%EE
REMBRINZEFR @

—E_mE+-RA=+—H

Real estate
integrated
resort and
cultural tourism Entertainment
business business
EHE
BEBNKR
N AG ki 75 o S 2 32 BEESE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET FET
Loss for the year FAEE (30,870) (9,586) (8,325) (48,781)
Loss on disposal for the year FRHERIE (44,998) (32,647) (11,689) (89,334)
Loss from discontinued operations 4R | |- 4% 4% 2 32 45 (75,868) (42,233) (20,014) (138,115)

31 December 2023

Real estate
integrated
resort and
cultural tourism
business

BHE
FEERNK
XAC RS

HK$'000

FET

FABE

Loss for the year (62,729)

i ==t =

Entertainment
business

IRGETS
HK$'000
TAT

BEER
HKS$'000
TAT

st
HK$'000
TAT
(59457)

(3544) (125,730)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 8.

Operation representing a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operation disposed of in the current
year (Continued)

The results of the entertainment business, wine business and real estate
integrated resort and cultural tourism business operations for the period
from 1 January 2024 to 24 June 2024, from 1 January 2024 to 31 October
2024 and from 1 January 2024 to 19 December 2024 which have been
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income/statement of profit or loss, were as follows:

31 December 2024

IHEEEF @

EAﬁKEEFﬁ&%}%%ﬁigﬁﬁﬁﬁi
REMBRINZER @

BREMEBR B BEBERBHERSERN
MXIERFEEFN _E_NEF—B—HE_
EEANBtTHEA-ZE_OME—F—
El:t—v—lmﬁ_f—ﬁ +—HKRZZEZmF
—A—HEZZZHEF+ZBE+hHBEZ
*%E (B qu)k,%?é% mAkHMEERGER
BEm&) W !

—E_mE+-RA=+—H

Real estate
integrated
resort and
cultural tourism  Entertainment
business business
BitiE
REERNK
MACHRE %S JRGEEETE BEBE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT FHT
Revenue Wi 181,066 804 55,572 237,442
Cost of sales HHE A (176,091) (8) (34,232) (210,331)
Gross profit EA 4,975 796 21,340 27,111
Other revenue, gains and losses, net ELAUTA ~ L&
o SR be 166 2 2,465 2,633
Selling and distribution expenses  #H& K3 #HFE (6,489) = (15,767) (22,256)
Administrative and other operating 17 EUR EL fth & 3@ 5%
expenses (12,465) (5,979) (12,650) (31,094)
Loss from operating activities RS TE 7 B518 (13,813) (5,181) (4,612) (23,606)
Finance costs AR ID N (57) (4,405) (3,438) (7,900)
Loss before taxation FRIR ARS8 (13,870) (9,586) (8,050) (31,506)
Income tax expense FTiSiRfEs (17,000) - (275) (17,275)
Loss for the year FAEIE (30,870) (9,586) (8,325) (48,781)

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

8.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

8.

Operation representing a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operation disposed of in the current

year (Continued)

The results of the entertainment business, wine business and real estate

integrated resort and cultural tourism business operations for the period
from 1 January 2024 to 24 June 2024, from 1 January 2024 to 31 October
2024 and from 1 January 2024 to 19 December 2024 which have been
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income/statement of profit or loss, were as follows:

31 December 2023

IHEE X @

Fﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁigﬁﬁﬁﬁ
REMBRINZEFR @

BEEE - BEBAEBERBHERSERN
R EREE£HENR _S_NE—RB—RBZE_Z

ETHEANBFTHEA-ZE_OMFE—F—
El:t—v—lmﬁ_f—ﬁ +—HKRZZEZEF
—A—HEZZZHEF+ZBE+hAHBEZ
*%E (B aJr)\,%?é EmREMEEml GRS
BEm&) W !

“ET-fF+"RA=+—H

Real estate
integrated
resort and
cultural tourism Entertainment
business business
BHE
meERNK
MACHREZETS YR 2 2 32 BEES imEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET BT FHET FET
Revenue W@ 43,632 1,178 86,631 131,441
Cost of sales HEMRA (44,202) (12) (51,254) (95,468)
Gross (loss)/profit E (3B FI (570) 1,166 35377 35973
Other revenue, gains and losses, net ELfthiit A ~ W& K
518848 286 (975) 11217 10528
Selling and distribution expenses ﬁ’% VS&axi=li5a (6,115) = (27,512) (33,627)
Administrative and other operating 1T & & ER S
expenses (14,843) (15,285) (18322) (48,450)
Impairment loss on property, plant 42 » &% = K 25 & A
and equipment BE51E - (2,107) - (2,107)
Impairment loss on right-of-use FHEEEERERE
assets - (1,792) - (1,792)
Impairment loss of intangible asset A2 & E R E 18 = (46,345) - (46,345)
Impairment loss on completed EEEFEZET
properties held for sale MR RERIE (51,701) = = (51,701)
Impairment loss under expected FEHR = EEEEn
credit loss model, net recognised  FEETR(EES 1B ,glga - (18) (1,093) a111)
Losses from discontinued activities 4% |48 2 5%~ F5ig (72,943) (65,356) (333) (138,632)
Finance costs BAFE A2 (143) (721) (4,459) (5323)
Loss before taxation RIS EIES 18 (73,086) (66,077) (4,792) (143,955)
Income tax credit FRiSIRIE % 10357 6,620 1248 18225
Loss for the year FREE (62,729) (59,457) (3,544) (125,730)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=.AH
e

RA 55 ek R Pt 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

Operation representing a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operation disposed of in the current

year (Continued)

8.

Loss for the period/year from discontinued operations includes the

following:

31 December 2024

Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment loss on trade
receivables, net recognised

ERRERZFENE

B EESH

L EN Y E =i
-3

ERREETE

B 7 IR
R ERIEFER

Real estate
integrated
resort and

cultural tourism

business
BiE
REERNRK
NGk 75
HK$'000
FHET

RIEEEER @

RAFEFMLEBBILEEXZFHRN
REMBRINZER @

RIEREEB B FRNEREBEUTS

A :

/,

/

—E_mE+-RA=+—H

Entertainment
business

IR HEES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FET

- 29,591 29,591

- 314 314

975 6,706 7,687
3,660 2,264 5,003

- 128 128

31 December 2023

Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment loss on trade
receivables, net recognised

Impairment loss on other
receivables, net recognised

Impairment loss on completed
properties held for sale,
net recognised

ERBREXZFENE

B AERH
ENEAZYSE L
B
ERREENE

B 5 BUER™
SRR ERRFER
H A AEWRIR
HERRERRFE
BRRAFELRTY
EREREFER

Real estate
integrated
resort and
cultural tourism
business

B E
REERNK
XAC RS

HK$'000

147
2,458

51,701

—EC=F+ZA=+—H

Entertainment
business

YR L2 L G 4ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BT FE7T FE7T

- 46,544 46,544

- 758 758

4,881 6,347 11,375
5,503 2715 10,676

- 1,093 1,093

18 - 18

- - 51,701
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

9.

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

EHZHR

2024
—E_E
HK$’000

FHET

2023

HK$'000
FHET
(RESE]e))
(E7))

Loss for the year from operating FEREXEZ

activities from continuing REEBEFEREE

operations has been arrived at Bk GtA) U TFEIE .

after charging/(crediting):
Staff costs, including directors' emoluments BT (BIEEEE)

— Salaries and allowances — ¥ KRR 40,397 33,806

— Retirement benefits scheme contributions —IRIRfEF ST EIERR 7,454 2,974
Total staff costs WE TR 47,851 36,780
Auditor’s remuneration Z BB &

— audit services —BIZRFE 1,530 1,800

— non-audit services —IEBIZARTS 354 1,225
Amortisation of intangible assets# I E EE i 10,327 6,979
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME-BEREREBITE 4,478 3,580
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESEITE 2,446 2,528
Impairment loss on trade receivables, B3 EWARREESR, ()

net recognised/(reversed) AEBIRFEE 13,617 (6,894)
Impairment loss on other receivables, HAhrE T IBmER,~ (#(E)

net recognised/(reversed) REEEFE 950 (84)
Impairment loss on property, ME--BERHEEZ

plant and equipment ERETE 73,054 -
Gain on termination of lease contract KIFRESH 2 a - (504)
Fair value loss of investment property KREYXEEEEEFER 121 266
Write-off of property, WEEY 2 ~ BB R ek

plant and equipment - 6,522
* Included in administrative and other operating expenses in the consolidated Bt AGREEmRNITEB R EMEERET AN

statement of profit or loss.
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

y= A
17177 R |

RA 55 ek R Pt 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E_ZE_ME+_A=+—HIEFE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Directors'and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

10. EE - THEHKESME

(a)

EERITH

mEME

REBEEBLTRAUREB R RAIE

T

ENEREFhkEsTHAEMEY

BE_E_NFE+_A=+—HLEE

Salaries, Retirement
allowance and Performance benefits scheme
Fees benefitsinkind  relatedbonus  contributions Total
& V2R BRIER
ik BUIEH  EMAERTEA BEGEN st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
Executive directors HiTES
Ma Chenshan Bl 120 - 494 - 614
Zhang Jian Gt 120 800 110 - 1,030
Hang Guangyu nEF 120 - 330 - 450
Liu Huaming 2R (K222 W
(Resigned on 13 June 2024) AAT=HEE 54 = 110 = 164
Wang Gengyu IEF RZZNF
(Appointed on 13 June 2024) NET=HEZD 66 - - - 66
Zhao Bin i 1=
(Appointed on 13 June 2024) NATZHEZD 66 - 33 = 99
Liu Yuzhen 2% (RIS WE
(Appointed on 13 June 2024) NAT=BESZE 66 = 110 = 176
Independent non-executive BuFRTES
directors
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE 360 - - - 360
Tse Kwong Hon HEE(M_T-mE
(Resigned on 13 June 2024) AAT=HEE 81 = > = 81
Cao Kuangyu EMY (R_E-mE
(Resigned on 13 June 2024) NBT=HET 81 - - - 81
Chow On Kiu BZf (RS -mE
(Appointed on 13 June 2024) ~NET=BEZD 99 = = = 99
Wen i XE (R_E_ME
(Appointed on 13 June 2024) NAT=BESZE 99 = = = 99
1,332 800 1,187 - 3,319
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. EF - THEZKREESMN=

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) (a) BEBEKRTHEZMNE @)

RIBFEA TR KREB QB EHE
ENENEZTARESTHRAENEW

Directors'and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong

174

Companies Ordinance, is as follows: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

IRt/

BE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—BHLEE

Salaries, Retirement
allowance and Performance benefits scheme
Fees benefitsinkind  relatedbonus  contributions Total
& V2R BRIER
ik BUIEH  EMAERTEA BEGEN st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
Executive directors HiTES
Ma Chenshan Bl 120 - - - 120
Zhang Jian R 120 - - - 120
Hang Guangyu nEF 120 - - - 120
Liu Huaming 2R (K222 W
(Resigned on 13 June 2024) AAT=HEE 120 = > = 120
Independent non-executive BuFRTES
directors
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE 360 - - - 360
Tse Kwong Hon HEE(M_T-mE
(Resigned on 13 June 2024) AAT=HEE 180 = > = 180
Cao Kuangyu EMY (R_E-mE
(Resigned on 13 June 2024) NBT=HET 180 = S = 180
1,200 - - - 1,200
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=.AH
e

RA 55 ek R Pt 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) (a)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group, while the independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

During the year, no amount was paid by the Group to any of
the directors and the chief executive, or any of the non-directors
and the non-chief executive, or highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2023: None).

Employees’ emoluments (b)

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year did
not include any director (2023: Nil), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 9(a) above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining 5 (2023: Five directors) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the

Company are as follows:

EF-THHESKREEME @

EERTTHABHME @

EXRTRATEEIMET MK EFE
BARARRFEBEHRHENREM
AT ML X PRI IE 1T E S BI
ENMKEEEEIRADEFRENR
M fi o

FABEEFHATHBIHBRABE
R AIR AN 2 25k

RAFE FEBRMEREAESRT
BB ERIFES  FFITEAA R
ReHEEXNEAFEEMAK
MAEEENEBRBER - HBE (CF

T=F Mmoo

EEmME
EFRNEERRLLRSHNEERNEE
EREE (CT_=F: )  HilEH
EEH T £ EE9() fﬁm,ﬁ\aﬁﬁ%(

TT=F ﬁ%i%) S iESE Gk
ARBERHITEAE) ZMEF1EW
T

2024 2023

—ETME BT =
HK$'000 HKS'000
FAET FET
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e 2 REYEF 4,720 4719
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BIREHN FT B HER 137 18
4,875 4,737
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

10. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. EF-TTHAERKREEME @
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEME ®
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the MeENTIUTEEBZESFHMES GF
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the KABEER) ABAT .

following bands is as follows:

2024 2023
—E_mE 2=
Number of Number of
employees employees
BE A EEAH
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 25 1,000,00078 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 78752 1,500,00078 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 75 2 2,000,00078 7T 2 =
5 5
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. Bl E
2024 2023
—ETmE BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR TR
(Restated)
(E73)
Continuing operations HEREER
Interest on loans from non-controlling FREVNREERFE
shareholders of subsidiaries 27 28
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 103 199
Total interest expenses on TR A ARBEFFAERZ
financial liabilities not at fair value Gt =N = bud
through profit or loss FERZ AR5 130 227
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E_ZE_ME+_A=+—HIEFE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 12. FR{S#R (I8%) B
2024 2023
“ETE .
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(E%))
Continuing operations R g5
Current tax: BPEATRIE !
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ZEFTER 13,881 11,985
Over-provision in prior years: B .
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FRE 1 2 PSR (402) (3,835)
Deferred tax IR I8 (19,576) (162)
(6,097) 7,988
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PE R ERER
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law’) RIEREEEMESRE (REFRESRE) &
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC EEMEBRIABHMGEG > P EME QB R M
subsidiaries is 25% for both years. BEENREGA25% o
Other jurisdictions HthE)E#&
Taxation of overseas subsidiaries (other than Hong Kong and the PRC) are BN BAT (FEEEAKRFE) ZIRIET
calculated at the applicable rates prevailing in the jurisdictions in which BB ABKEFRE A EIRTERR
the subsidiary operates. KEt&o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FRGM (%) B @
Other jurisdictions (Continued) HthEz#& @
The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled to the FRMER (KR SZHEGSEERKE
loss before taxation from continuing operations per the consolidated FEREXB ZBRMAIBESERANT

statement of profit or loss as follows:

2024 2023
11 -2 BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THET
(Restated)
(€2
Continuing operations R E 275
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrIRAT (B518) mF (95,592) 10,773
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% AR ATRZE165%tEH 2 RIB
(2023: 16.5%) (CEBE-=%:165%) (15,770) 1,778
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operatingin ~ FRE Mt B A & &K= EFE 2 1B
other jurisdictions REZFRAREZ 28 4,749 3,354
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEBEZNETE 19,985 2,857
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised B ABEREE 2 NSRS 31 =
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose ERBERRWMAZRERE (1,318) (761)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose  NEIRFEEA RIS 2 INFEE 3,411 3,063
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised REREREEE R E (16,783) 1,532
Over-provision in prior years FEBEEE A (402) (3,835)
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year FRFRMK KR) (6,097) 7,988
The tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position NI ST R ERIF 2 EMREBNT

represented as follows:

2024 2023

—ETmE =

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHET TFHET

(Restated)

(&5)

PRC s (6,097) 7,988

13. DIVIDEND 13. RS2
The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year EEgEETRNEBEE_S-NF+ A
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil). —+—BLEEEZEARKRE (T2 =%f
) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE . BREHE
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from continuing FERSEER 2 BREAREEEEIZUT
operations are based on the following data: HiEstE

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to

2024
“E-mE
HK$'000

FET

KRABER ANBEER

2023

HK$'000
TFHET
(restated)
(&7)

owners of the Company (F518) /%A (42,667) 6,473
Less: Loss for the year from RIS EE 2 FNEE

discontinued operations (139,450) (88,728)
Loss for the purpose of basic and FEHEREAREEERK

diluted loss per share 518 (182,117) (82,255)

Weighted average number of shares

Number of shares

RISEB

2024
—FMEF

SESREAREESR

2023
BT =F

for the purposes of basic and BN Rn e B
diluted loss per share 3,207,591,674 3,207,591,674
From discontinued operations BRI EFS

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued operations is HK$4.35
cents per share (2023 (restated): HK$2.76 cents per share), based on the
loss for the year from the discontinued operations of approximately
HK$138.1 million (2023 (restated): HK$125.7 million) and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

The computations of diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 do not include the adjustment in respect of a
dilution from share option as the exercise price of these share options was
higher than the average market price of the shares for both years.

The basic loss per share and diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023 were the same as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares for both years.

RIEREXF 2 EREAREBESFEAS
fRa3sEBM (ZEZ=F (B : 52768
ll) o THE AR A 2R 2 N 1E 491381
BEBT (CE=F (F%) 11257888
o) R EXFR I EREAREEEEZ D
ISR

SAERE_S_MER_T_=F+"A4
S+ -HLEFESRBEEEREFIRA SR
ERIZREBRENEERE  KAAMERE
ZHTEELESRRMEMEFEENFEH
Eo

BE_Z_NME+_A=+—HRZZEZ=
F+R=t—HLEEUEETHEETLR
% WM EFENSRER RGN BER
#1AE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_NFE+_A=+—HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ap
HRIR

Golf Land
BEXLH

Hotel
properties

Leasehold
improvements
8

HKG

15. ME - -BEKR&HE

Plantand
building
BEREF

Machinery

Office
equipment

HAZRE

Furniture
and fixtures

i RRE

Motor
vehicles

¥

Facilities
appliance

Cost [
Asat 1 January 2023 RZFZ=4§-A-R 523712 174574 98,629 2701 104,167 98,895 7,209 3497 6236 3338 1,023,018
Acquisition of a subsidiry (note 43) K BAT (s43) - - - - 8 - 1352 12633 308 - 1433
Addition HE - - - - 109 209 04 704 598 9206 13130
Disposal HE (6421) - - = = (259 (5 (603) (579 = (7903)
Transfer a5 (6653) - - - - n 144 24 - - (5962)
Exchange realignment ERER (1881) (2947) (1665) (17 (1,761) (1669) (184) (40) (103) 9 (10856)
Asat31 December 2023and 1 January2024 =B -=£+-F=+-Ak

—2-mE-A-A 508,817 171,627 96,964 2,684 102,558 99,589 8,690 16,035 6464 12535 102593
Addition RE - - - - 853 2902 308 666 129 - 52528
Disposal HE (46243) - - - - (868) %) (1,050) - - 48254)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) HERBAT (Hiu) (77139 - - (%65) (101,746) (99902) (6796) (2684) (4909) (11789 (305,930)
Exchange realignment ERER (73%) (3230 (1.665) (19 (1624) (121 (359) ) (64) (746) (17,09)
As at 31 December 2024 RZB-mE+ZA=+-A 378,039 168,397 95,299 1,700 am - 1,750 12,695 1,620 - 707,211
Accumulated depreciation and i Bt ERHERE

losses

Asat 1 January 2023 RZB-=%-F-A 88,256 - 14,074 2395 51,199 87,886 6817 3226 5692 1313 260,858
Acquisition of asubsidiry (note 43) INEHRAT (H34) - - - - 1) - 1102 9229 297 - 10670
Provide for the year EREE - - 2574 26 439 1468 %1 95 w 4787 14955
Disposal HE - - - - - o) (44 (569) (557) - (1381)
Impairment loss recognised! R HESE - - - - - - - - - 2107 2107
Exchange realignment ERBE (657) = 257) (16) (%01) (1460) (169) 318 0 18 (3850)
Asat31 December2023and 1 January2024  H=FZ=F+-F=+-Hk

Z2-mE-A-A 87,599 - 16,391 2,645 54,732 87,683 7967 12,553 5,564 8,225 283,359
Provide for the year EREE - - 3055 - 3757 2753 1% 1267 21 95 12164
iminated by disposal HEMHEH (2484) - = = = (954) ) (1013) = - (4503)
Impairment loss recognised in the year FRBIHESE 51226 21828 - - - - - - - - 73054
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) HERBAZ () - - - (930) (57901) (88818) 6.29) (2664) 4299) (8799) (169,707)
Exchange realignment ERHBE (2368) (32 (333) (15) (512) (664) (333) (0 (53) (381) (5041)
As at 31 December 2024 RZ¥-WE+-A=+-H 134013 21,506 19,093 1,700 76 - 1,382 10,103 1453 - 189,326
Carrying amounts REE
Asat31 December 2024 RZB-mE+ZA=+-A 244,026 146,891 76,206 - 47,635 - 368 2592 167 - 517,885
Asat 31 December 2023 RZBZ=5+-A=+-A 9118 Mg 80573 £ 47826 11,906 m 348 %0 4310 7460
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR o MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The construction in progress golf land represents the costs incurred for
a development property project in Jeju District, South Korea held by a
subsidiary, Macrolink Glorious Hill Co,, Ltd. (“Glorious Hill"), a subsidiary of
the Company, which comprises cost of land acquired and development
expenditure incurred. On 31 August 2021, the Jeju District court, South
Korea judged that Glorious Hill had not fulfilled the requirements
in relation to the property project development, accordingly, the
development project was suspended. During the year ended 31
December 2024, Management had conducted impairment assessment of
the development project and based on the valuation of fair value of the
underlying land relating to the project, impairment loss of construction in
progress and golfland of approximately HK$51,226,000 and HK$21,828,000
were recognised for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil
and nil) respectively as the estimated fair value of the land was higher
than the carrying amount of the project, comprising the land cost and
development expenditure incurred.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the directors performed
impairment assessment on the Group's entertainment business. The
recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a value
in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period,
and discount rate of 13%. The cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 2% growth rate. The growth rate used
are based on the estimated growth rate of the CGU taking into account
the past performance and management expectation of future business
performance and prospect of the CGU. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the past performance and management's expectations for the market
development. Based on the above assessment, the directors concluded
that impairment loss of HK$2,107,000 was recognised in respect of
facilities appliances which arose from the expected resumption of the
Group's entertainment business due to keen competition.

Assets pledged as securities

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's has no property, plant and
equipment (2023: HK$14,451,000) were pledged as securities for the
Group’s bank borrowings (note 32).

15. ME - -BERRE @

FRITESBRAIMAEAATDENB LA
MERBSS LITMERA T (THE WU
) RENBEEMNMEEYEXBEBEEEN
A AR g TR BB A AR 85 2 ) o
RIE_—FENB=1+—8 E&EEMN&%
PR B LT EEAR S MEEBREN
ER ZHEBERALEFE #H#E-Z2 M
F+A=Zt+—HLEEE - SEECHRR
EEETHMENG LU EBEE AR L
NABEGEAER REEZ_ZT_-_0OF
+ZB=F+—HIEFESRERERETRER
BRI 2B EREA51,226,0008 T &
21,828,000 Byt (ZEZ=F : EKE) > RHA
AZEENAABESREENEREE &
EEEEMN T A ANBEEZ H o

REE_E_=—FE+_/F=+—HILEE"
EENAEEBAEERETRET G ZE
Ttz A B BEE R EFERTPEEEE
Zt BB EEEEEIN A ERMEE
B BITIRERRETRE RSB MIEL
ZAEHZENRE RN ERA29NEBE
MREERETHE -MEANERETLENRR
TEEBAZHFERER Kt RBEES
REEBEEBHREELSBUZRRERRER
AMSMNER BEFRERA S THERZ
AEERREBEZHEMEITERREIEREEH
EBRENE BRAMGIIUBERRERE
BEAHIBZERZEHAEE RIE LT
O BEZERANRESREEDRERIE
#2,107,00058 7T 0 Jh A E B R 5 F g FEE R
DR S IR 2EFE P EE A o

BEEFAIRER
A_E_NE+_A=+—H AEETE
ME - -BMEREKRE (T =4 14451,00078
70 EAREBRITERZIER (FaE32) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EAEEE
Office premises Farmland Land use rights Total
YN E S Bttt Tt ERRE et
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHEIT TR TR
As at 31 December 2024 e 11
+-B=+—H
Carrying amount fREfE 1,064 = = 1,064
As at 31 December 2023 RIE-=F
+ZA=+—H
Carrying amount fREfE 7,694 33619 6,589 47,902
For the year ended BE_S-NFE
31 December 2024 +=ZB=+—H
LHEE
Depreciation charge ESZH 5,185 1971 287 7,449
For the year ended BEZZT=fF
31 December 2023 +ZA=+—H
LEE
Depreciation charge ES 10,489 2397 318 13,204
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
‘E_ﬁ_lﬁ HE—_Z_=fF
+=ZB=+—H
IFFE
Expense relating to short-term leases FHRTE SRR 3,044 3,708
Total cash outflow for leases HEREMEARER 15,064 20,728
Additions to right-of-use assets REGHRAEEE - 4,254

182 NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases various offices, farmland and land use
rights for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 6
months to 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has no land use rights were pledged
as securities for the Group's bank borrowings (2023: HK$4,574,000) (note
32).

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$1,111,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of HK$1,064,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
lease liabilities of HK$48,652,000 and related right-of-use assets of
HK$47,902,000). The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for its operations.
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease
expenses disclosed above. As at 31 December 2024, no outstanding lease
commitments relating to the short-term leases (2023: no outstanding
lease commitments relating to the short-term lease).

16. FRMEE @

RmEEE AEREESERLAE Btk
THEREFEERR - HEGHRERE
SOERYETE HMR 5T 12 o 1 E R RTL 12 B8 5] &
HEER > WE BT ERR R E M - R EERR
RGBSR RER  ~EBEER
BN ERILEE S AR R HI TR -

ACE_ME+_A=+—H AEETE
THEAEEARNEBIETERZIER (2
T =4 1457400058 7T) (MTsE32) °

THEPRH X 228

s > RZB2ZOMFE+ZA=+—H" B
HRHEEE&E1,111,0007 75 K A8 BE 16 F3 4
BHE1,0640008 T (CE_=F  HEEE
48,652,00078 7T K2 A8 BE 6 FB # & EE47,902,00078
70) cBREBEARENAEEETNIRFESR
b HERZE T EIEAZE - AEEER
BREEBRIER

AEEERTIEREAEFEERRKR KN
TTMERZZFE_=F+"/A=+—H'"&
HEEEGR EXRERAHEERX AR
ZREPEEEERE- R -MF+_4
=+—H - REAMEHBEEZHARTHE
ExECE=F:8)

WMo B Xk AR A B € FERS 2024

183



184
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. KREWE
2024 2023
—EE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
Fair value, at beginning of the year REVNZARERE 8,541 -
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary (note 43) BB EBEH B AT RE (MzE43) - 9,070
Fair value loss recognised in consolidated statement R 4R S Bm KRR L
of profit or loss BEEZHEIE (121) (266)
Exchange realignment fE R AR (159) (263)
Fair value, at end of the year RERZAFEE 8,261 8,541

The Group's investment properties consist of commercial properties in
Mainland China, which are held under medium term leases. The directors
of the Company have determined that the investment properties are
commercial assets, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the
properties.

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2024 and 2023
on market value basis by Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited
("Vincorn”), an independent valuer, who has appropriate professional
qualification and relevant experience in the location and category of the
investment property being valued.

AEENKREYESREUNTEANMBEA
ME > BHHANTE - ERNYENMEE S
BRFIARNER  ARBEERREYEE
EmEREE-

A MER-B-=F+-A=+-0
REMECHATENRFEERAR (T3
55)) BHIBEELES R LA R SRR
SR R AN E L (B RELES
RS TR T EAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE @
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value REMEZ ARBERE=ZGEEUEL2AE
measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value BetE - FURFERANDEBEGRR ZHIRW
balance is provided below: s e
2024 2023
k11 -2
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FHER FEZRKENE
RAEE 8,541 =
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary (note 43) EBWEKHIB AT HRE (HI5F43) = 9,070
Fair value loss recognised in consolidated statement ~ R4R S B KR ER L
of profit or loss EBEEHEE (121) (266)
Exchange realignment fE R AR (159) (263)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FRER (EoREEE
RAEE) 8,261 8,541
Change in fair value for the year included Mm+E_A=+—BMIFEETA
in profit or loss for assets held at 31 December BRZFRAAABEZE (121) (266)
Fair value is determined by applying the market approach, based on the KEMENGEDFRBATSE AL BEELER
direct comparison method with reference to the comparable sale prices 2 IR AR E ] LS S ERTER B
in the relevant locality, adjusted for a premium or discount specific to the EMAEEYEBE 2T RENITE (B
quality of the Group's properties compared to recent sales of comparable FARJLEBREHE R 5 LLERFATS) fEHAEE - R
transactions. A higher discount for lower quality properties will result in a BENEZRSITEFERNREBEZANEBE
lower fair value measurement. FrE#E

Significant unobservable Inputs BEARTHESY

Gross unit rates (RMB/sq. m.) MEEE
AR/ §FHK 35,200 35673
Gross floor areas (sg. m.) WEmmaE (FA K 217.53 21753
No investment property has been pledged to secure the bank borrowings AT NER_E_=F+_B=+—0H"

MEKLEMESRRBUERETEAERZ
SRITIETR °

granted to the Group as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

18. GOODWILL 18. HE
Entertainment Property
busmess MEET [T Total
JRELETS YMEER 4ast
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHTT THTT FHT
Cost 7%

As at 1 January 2023 A TE=F—HF—H 199,478 - 199,478

Addition through acquisition of FRWE—ENEABRE
a subsidiary - 323,720 323,720
Exchange realignment PE R eREE (1,453) (9,459) (10912)

As at 31 December 2023 and RIE_=F+"B=+—H

as at 1 January 2024 rRRZEZNFE—HF—H 198,025 314,261 512,286
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AT (195,345) = (195,345)
Exchange realignment FE R AR (2,680) (5915) (8,595)
As at 31 December 2024 RIE_NME+"HA=+—H - 308,346 308,346
Accumulated impairment RHetREEsE

losses
As at 1 January 2023 ’3: E_=F—H—H 199,478 = 199,478
Exchange realignment O (1,453) = (1,453)

As at 31 December 2023 and RIEZ=F+"B=+—H

as at 1 January 2024 ERZEZNFE—HF—H 198,025 - 198,025
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR (195,345) = (195,345)
Exchange realignment PE R AT (2,680) - (2,680)
As at 31 December 2024 RZIEZmWE+=-A=+—H - = =
Carrying amount IREME
As at 31 December 2024 RZZ-_NE+-H=+—H = 308,346 308,346
As at 31 December 2023 R TEC=F+"A=+—H - 314,261 314,261

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the directors performed
impairment assessment on the Group's property management business.
The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
perlgd, and dlscgunt rate ‘of. 13.6% (2023:14.9%). The cash flows beyond 14.9%) EATES 7 B EATEL 0 2 5 £ 4
the five-year period (2023: five-year) are extrapolated using a steady 2% (Cm—=f EEEHH) D
(2023:2%) growth rate. The growth rate used are based on the estimated == ALEE

growth rate of the CGU taking into account the past performance and EM2% (CTTT=4F 1 2%) NIRERRFE

management expectation of future business performance and prospect THE -FIERANEREXRTENRBEEESS
of the CGU. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate Iz BB R K RBFEEREEE

REE-_ZT-_NF+-B=+—HIFE"
EENAERYESEERETREN G
ZBETza b BEERAHEERREE
BT ZtENREESEERINESEH
MEEE BITRE13.6% (ZTE_=

186

to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales
and gross margin, such estimation is based on the past performance and
management's expectations for the market development. Based on the
above assessment, the directors concluded that no impairment loss of
was recognised Group's property management business.

HRESELEBEUZRREFTRRE RSO
HR -BEFRERAMEARZHEE
AhEEzHMEIERREEREHER
RENR BRAGHDUBERENEERE
MR ERZBHAEE - RIE LT HE
EFZEmA I E R RESRERS
Be
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

mE M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

BEEE

Customer
relationship

R

Computer
software

R

Technical
know-how

?im%ﬂﬁ

Farmland Entertainment
development license

Emﬁﬁ

Trademarks

Cost: B
Asat 1 January 2023 KZE-=%—-B—H 14,869 407461 2,140 584 = - 425,054
Addition g 133 - - - - 37 170
Addition through acquisition of a ZRKE—EHEARR
subsidiary =1 = = = 52,988 104,139 1,118 158,245
Exchange realignment ERAE (234) 8571) () (1559) (3043) (90) (13,502)
As at 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=%+ZRH
asat 1 January 2024 =+-Bk
RZZEZME—-B—H 14,768 398,890 2,135 52013 101,09 1,005 569,967
Addition g - - - - - 1,003 1003
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) HEKBATR (fizF44) (13,589) (395,830) (2,135) 614) = = (412,168)
Exchange realignment BRBE (1,179 (3,060) = (974) (895) (34) (6,142)
As at 31 December 2024 AZEZME+ZA
Sar=f = = = 50425 100,201 2034 152,660
Accumulated amortisation and Rt R
impairment:
Asat 1 January 2023 AZEZ=F—F-H 12,115 263,609 1,886 584 - - 278,194
Amortisation for the year Emﬁﬁ 7 = 47 = 6,795 184 7737
Impairment loss recognised for the year  EFIREERRERS 12 - 46,345 - - - = 46,345
Bxchange realignment ERBE (192) (5:237) 0] () (55) (59) (5554)
As at 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=%+ZR
asat 1 January 2024 =+-Bk
R-2_mE—-F—-H 12634 304717 1932 573 6,740 126 326722
Amortisation for the year FREH m - Iy) = 10068 259 10641
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) HEKBATR (fizF44) (12315) (304,717) (1.973) (568) = = (319,573)
Exchange realignment BRBE (591) = (1) () (275) (44) ©16)
As at 31 December 2024 AZEZME+ZA
=+-A - - - - 16533 341 16874
As at 31 December 2024 RIBZME+ZA
=+—-H = = = 50,425 83,668 1,693 135,786
As at 31 December 2023 RIZ2Z=F+"A
=q=[g 2134 94173 203 51440 94,356 939 243,245

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

19.

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the directors performed
impairment assessment on the Group's property management business.
The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period, and discount rate of 13.6% (2023:14.9%). The cash flows beyond
the five-year period (2023: 5-year) are extrapolated using a steady 2%
(2023:2%) growth rate. The growth rate used are based on the estimated
growth rate of the CGU taking into account the past performance and
management expectation of future business performance and prospect
of the CGU. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales
and gross margin, such estimation is based on the past performance and
management's expectations for the market development. Based on the
above assessment, the directors concluded that no impairment loss of
was recognised Group's property management business.

9. ELEE ®

RBEE—_Z_ME+_/A=+—HIFE"
BENAEAYESEERETRE G-
ZEBrxz o Bl BRI EFERAPEERE
EeoZ B IRBEEERIAN A EHME
ﬁ%i&ﬁﬁxmwe_v_fﬁ 149%) 3

TREREBAMEL ZEEH CE=
-EE R 2BHNIESRENERY (T
TZE %) NEEEERETHE FE
%mwéﬂﬁﬁ#ﬁ%éiﬁﬁZﬁﬁﬁé
TR RBTEEREEBHREELS
2 RREHERIBLRASHTEL - BE1R

EHRAREBREZAEERPEEZHMt
IE% BIEEEHEBERENE BRMG
SALBARENEEEBYMIBEER2FER
AEE R LM G EE2ERA T E
TR A3 B SR R E RS 18 o

A=

INVENTORIES =8
2024 2023
—E@mE 25
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Raw materials R = 67,145
Work in progress F B - 113,499
Finished goods B AY A 27,766 36,744
27,766 217,388

Included in raw materials of HK$55,585,000 were unprocessed wines for
the year ended 31 December 2023. The directors of the Company have
assessed the net realisable values and condition of the Group's inventories
as at 31 December 2023 and have no impairment loss was recognised.

HEWN _E_=F+_B=+—HILEE">
55,585,000/ 7T Z FUBAR ERET A B R o
K@Jé% ME\_V__EH— ﬁ +—
%%J\;‘)ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁéo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E_ZE_ME+_A=+—HIEFE

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 21

Completed properties in the Australia held
for sale, at cost

¢35y

UFSEMZ FERTYE

. FAEGERIME

2024 2023
—E_ME “ETF

HK$'000
FTAT

HK$'000
TR

- 173,315

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the directors of the Company
conducted impairment assessment of the completed properties with
reference to prevailing market conditions and the estimated selling prices
of the properties provided by an independent professional valuer and
concluded that the impairment of completed properties amounted to
approximately HK$51,701,000 was to be made as the estimated selling
prices of the properties are less than their carrying amount.

BE_ZT_=F4+_B=+—HLEEE &
NEBEZESEZRTHRKRBILFEEER
Frietz EMGEE HBTITYEZRE
BETREN G SmARRYEGETER
BREREE QUIERMEB TYEEHESEYN
#551,701,00078 70 B (B FESD ©

TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. B EWERR
2024 2023
“EmE ==&
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAET FET
Trade receivables B 5 AR 175,617 165,026
Receivables from entertainment business JE AT R 8 2 T 2R T = 20,365
Less: allowance for expected credit losses B TR B EEE (39,054) (49,448)
136,563 135,943

The Group generally allows an average credit period of 180 days (2023:
180 days) to its trade customers. For receivables of entertainment
business, credit period is generally six months. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date and net of allowance for expected

AEE-—RETEHESZEATHI80H (2T
T = :180H) ZIEEHA M URIR S ETER
BZEEHR—WRABNER ANEBILEMZ
EHEBFETAERR-

REBERR > B 5 BRI E T B HEN
BRRAEEERERG ZREDTNT !

credit losses, is as follows:

2024 2023

—E-mE —-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 30 days 30HA 16,929 59,285
More than 30 days and within 60 days 30U EE0H A 6,374 11,455
More than 60 days and within 90 days 60H LA EZE0HA 12,163 6,813
More than 90 days and within 180 days 90R M EE180HA 24,688 15,168
More than 180 days and within 360 days 180H A EZE360H A 33,784 9,290
More than 360 days 3608 X £ 42,625 33,932
At 31 December nR+—B=+—8H 136,563 135,943

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS PAID AND OTHER 23. FAfAFRIE B R HMEYKRTR
RECEIVABLES I8

2024 2023
—E-mE —E=

HK$'000 HK$'000

TF#&T FHET

Prepayments (note (i)) FEATRRIA (i 5E3) 5,142 80,384
Deposits paid (note (ii)) BfIEE (HEE) 1,016 11,641
Other receivables (note (i) LA fEURRIE (= Gii)) 115,468 48,018
121,626 139,963

Less: allowance for expected credit losses of B B U RIETE R

other receivables EEBIERE (950) (80)
120,676 139,883
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS PAID AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(iii)

For the year ended 31 December 2023. Included in the year-end balance was an
amount of RMB63,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$69,337,000) relating
to an advance payment to an independent third party, Beijing Zhongtou Guoxing
Technology Development Co. Ltd. for the intended acquisition of a leased office
in the PRC pursuant to a letter of intent dated 20 December 2023. The transaction
was completed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Included in year-end balance was an amount of HK$nil (2023: HK$3,251,000)
relating to guaranteed deposits for construction of the property placed in

designated accounts in accordance with relevant government requirements.

Included in year-end balance was an amount of HK$4,000 (2023: HK$4,000)
relating to the amount due from related companies, which are held by Mr. Fu
Kwan ("Mr. Fu"), the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

Included in year end balance was an amount of approximately HK$80,138,000
relating to the consideration on disposal of subsidiaries. In subsequent to the
year ended 31 December 2024, certain amount was settled of approximately
HK$56,153,000.

As at 31 December 2024, deposits paid and other receivables (net of
allowance for credit losses) with amounts of approximately HK$38,085,000
(2023: HK$124,406,000), HK$194,000 (2023: HK$7,141,000), HK$693,000
(2023: 1,592,000) and HK$1,000 (2023: HK$6,602,000) were denominated
in RMB, KRW, CAD and AUD.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 45.2.

3. FEMITRIE - B3 #RE R H th B U

I8 1)

V=2

i) HE_E_-—F+_A=+—HILEE 5tA
FEREFSES AR63,000,0007T (HHERK
69,337,000 7T) TN RIE— S _=F+=
AZ+HMERZ S RABILE=FIERF
KEENEERARAT BRWEREERA
EARMZANBESR ZRZERBEEZS
THE+ZA=t—HIEEERHK-

(ii) HFAFRGEHREERASBEL (TS I=F
3,251,00078 75) B9 B {112 & 832 BR AR RABUR 23k
ARESMETEREEERENRERESE
B o

(i) STAFREREEER4000ET (TS Z=F:
4,0007870) BYFEUS BEEG A B A IE © 2% BB A B BB
BELE (MELE) FE BEEAFATR
RGPS ER o

Bt Ak 45 BR < 28 23 4980,138,00078 7T B9 H & Bt
REARKEB-REE_Z_NFE+B=+—
HIEEEZ% AT &%4956,153,0008 T B4

=
A

AZE_MNE+ZB=1+—H &BNE
38,085,000 75 (ZZ — =4 | 124,406,000
7T) ~ 194,000 (ZE =4 © 7,141,000

7T) ~ 693,000/ 7T (22T = =4 1,592,000 7T)
F21,000%8 75 (ZE Z = £ :6,602,000%70) 2B
T2 & R EMEWRIE 0RE BB EE)
Th 3 AN R~ 82 [E ~ 07T RoB T H(E o

BRARET (L REF B E M 5E45.2 0
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

24. CONTRACT COSTS 24. SHRE

2024 2023
—E_E

HK$’000 HK$'000

Incremental costs to obtain contracts ERGHNEENES/M A
— current —mE)

FHET THETT

= 755

As of 31 December 2023, contract costs capitalised related to the
incremental sales commissions paid to property agents whose selling
activities resulted in customers entering into sale and purchase
agreements for the Group's properties which were under construction
and which was expected to be completed within next 12 months at the
reporting date. Contract costs are recognised as costs of revenue in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which revenue
from the related property sales is recognised. There was no impairment in
relation to the opening balance of capitalised costs or the costs capitalised
during the year.

25. SHORT-TERM LOAN RECEIVABLES

BE_Z_=F+"RB=+—H > &EF1EHN
BRRAEDREREYELENNHERES
(HHEERERANRARSHIILARA
AEBEEYE FRRANRKKI2E/ERT) B
BEEHE) - SN AREMY EHEE
RN GG REDRER AWM -
¥ E AAE B A 45 BR 3 N B A5 1B A A 3 S OR
(EE

FEURFEHR & 7R

2024 2023
—E_mE —E =
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET AT
Unsecured loan IR ER - 65
Less: allowance for expected credit losses B TEHAE EEEEE - (10)
- 55

Loan receivables are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
All of the loan receivables are denominated in KRW.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 45.2.

ERERAREIR - R EREREREERE
EDBFELI T}\fjJ'/{ﬁn.@”E"

BRABET (L REF IS E I I 5E45.2 0

NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2024



26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

IRITHEEBRRIRE

Bank balances and cash

26.

ReEKkHFEEFHEEE

2024
k11 -2

2023

HK$’000
FAT

HK$'000
TAT

357,768 201,745

As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents with amounts of
approximately HK$104,616,000 (2023: HK$56,866,000), HK$7,351,000
(2023: HK$1,357,000), HKS$9,125,000 (2023: HK$109,553,000) and
HK$165,371,000 (2023: HK$23,578,000) are denominated in RMB, KRW,
CAD and AUD.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and
the remittance of such foreign currencies out of the PRC are subject to
relevant rules and regulation of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which ranged from 0.1% to
1.15% (2023:0.001% to 0.350%) per annum.

TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables at the end of the reporting period,
based on the invoice date is as follows:

27.

A ZEWNEFE+ZB=+—H 2 BOA
104,616,000 75 (ZZE = £ ! 56,866,0007%8

7T) ~ 7,351,000 7T (ZE =4 © 1,357,000
78) 9,125,000 75 (ZE =4 109,553,000
B7T) F165,371,0008 7w (ZE - =& ¢

23,578,000 7T) 2REMIRESEEEE D
AN R 52BN BRIy E -

MANRBINEZ B F R R INE R F N
Bt A B 15 S - 78 52 A B BT A 6 BY AR R S
EE R AR B BERIRIR

BTEHRETHEENENTF01%ET15% (=
T~ =4F : 0.001%ZFE0.350%) 5t B o

=R NN

REERFR BERANRNREZBHZE

e

2024 2023

—E@mE —E =
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT FHET
Within 90 days 0HA 24,053 110,678
More than 90 days and within 180 days OHMU EZE180HR 15,746 1,928
More than 180 days and within 360 days 180B B EE360H K 20,186 2,104
More than 360 days 3608 M £ 27,957 11,906
87,942 126,616

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. BEERZ FHEERA0H -
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are repayable within credit BSRNERTRARE  BBEREERRNEE

periods.
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iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. Bt E AR HEMEMRIE
2024 2023
—E_mE B =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#T FAT
Accruals FEst & A 28,899 42,463
Construction cost payables PE(T R A - 1,649
Dividend payable to non-controlling FE(S M@ AR IEER IR B
shareholders of subsidiaries - 3,604
Amount due to third parties (note) S =708 (D) - 101,471
Other tax HAthiR1E 1,019 6,306
Others HAth 22,470 57,410
52,388 212,903
Note:  The amount due to third parties were unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on Wizt ERNE=ERBEAEKTR At EAREKRE
demand. Bo
As at 31 December 2024, accruals and other payables with amounts AR _NEF+ZA=+—H &HLA
of approximately HK$965,000 (2023: HK$28,854,000) and HKS$nil (2023: 965,00078 70 (T & — = : 28,854,000787T) &
HK$1,956,000) were denominated in KRW and AUD. TET (CTE =4 11,956,00087T) ZFEST
&Rk EMEARRIATY 5 5 AR E KR T
He
29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. X8 E
Contract liabilities represented the advances received from customers in EHEEEAEENEEEEBRETR I
relation to the Group's wine business. Customers obtain control of the BNz BR BRI TE BENESEYNE
goods when the goods are delivered, and revenue is recognised at a point IR IR T F — R Rh ST o
in time.
Contract liabilities also represented the advances received from customers SHNEENTIEAERMYESEERRNER
in relation to the Group's property management business. The property FEWE Zz BHR o FAAMINYEETIERBT
management services billed in advance for which revenue will be EIEE Gk PN

recognised at point over time over the contractual period.

2024 2023

—E_mE “ET-F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

TF#T FHET

As at 1 January iR=F—E 62,240 29,989
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FRREFVSAZEHNEE

recognising revenue during the year FWAEHENEERLD

that was included in the contract liabilities

at the beginning of the year (61,983) (24,511)
Increase of receipts in advance from customers B FFEWERIEIE 10 64,775 623
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary EBWERBASRE (15H43)

(note 43) - 57,448
Exchange realignment BE B AR R (942) (1,309
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMWRB AR (16,391) =
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 47,699 62,240
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. They
comprise amounts due to the following related parties:

30.

FEAIRAE TS RR

ZRARERT R AREREER  HEE
FEAT LU RAZE S R

2024 2023
—ENE e
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET
Beijing Macrolink Land Limited (note (i)) FERIEMEMBRAT (f:H) 718 722
Changsha Xinhualian Tongguanyao International RO EREEZEBERERERRAT
Cultural Tourism Development Co, Ltd (note (i) (GhE0) 3,852
Hunan Jindong Wine Industry Co, Ltd. (note (i) MEERBXERAD (k) - 2339
Beijing Xinhualian Conference Center Co, Ltd. (Note (i) TRFEREETLERAR () 6 7
Beijing Shuibajiao Trading Co, Ltd. (Note (i)) FrkEEEERRAT () 33 14
Tibet Changji Cuttural Tourism Co, Ltd. (Note () BEEENXCIERRAT () 14,038 14307
18,647 17,389
Notes: Mt -
0] Mr. Fu, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, is the substantial 0} RABRBERBRREEERZEATNZEE
shareholder of these companies. [
(ii) Mr. Fu is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wu Xiangdong, who is a substantial shareholder (i) BRERZEATZEIERRRERLENE
of these companies. xo

As at 31 December 2024, amounts due to related parties with amounts of
approximately HK$17,930,000 (2023: HK$16,667,000), HK$717,000 (2023:
HK$457,000) and HKSnil (2023: HK$265,000) were denominated in RMB,
KRW and AUD.

LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Included in loan from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries of
HK$796,000 (2023: HK$784,000) which was unsecured, bearing interest at
4.6% per annum and repayable within one year, the remaining amounts
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand (2023: repayable
on demand).

As at 31 December 2024, loan from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries with amounts of approximately HK$796,000 (2023:
HK$2,931,000) was denominated in KRW.

31.

ATE_WNE+"_B=+—H &BLE
17,930,000/ 70 (ZE =4 : 16,667,000/
7T) ~717,00088 70 (ZF = = : 457,0008 7T)
Ez%%m (TZ - =% 2650008 7T) Z &S
RAEA XA DA UARE S BE KBTS
fEo

Bt B A B IFEHIARRE R

796,000/ 70 (ZZF Z =4 : 784,0005%8 7T) 2 Mt
BABIEEGFIREERASEIRIE IRFER X
46%xt BERABR—FEAREEIN HEFHIES
ERF -REEREBEREE (CE_=F 1
EREE) ©

ﬁ’::i_mfﬁwL_ﬁ_Jr H>3EN5
796000%75( =TT =4F 1 2,931,0005TT) Z Mt
BATIEEHIR R ER T UERESIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

32. BANK BORROWINGS 32. $RITfERR
2024 2023
—EME —E=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Secured (notes (i) BIRA (HFEE6) - 55,029
Unsecured K| - 1,924
- 56,953

Bank borrowings are repayable as follows: U TERIRTTEM -

Within one year —F RN = 56,953

The exposure of the Group's borrowings are as follows: KEBZEBEWMT !

2024 2023

11 -2 =5

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Fixed-rate borrowings ESRSEI=EN - 1924
Variable-rate borrowings FEER - 55,029
- 56,953

Notes: Mt -

0} As at 31 December 2023, bank borrowing with amounts of approximately of 0] RZTB_=ZF+"HA=+—H ' 8HOR
HK$55,029,000 was secured by (1) the Group's buildings and land use rights 55,029,000 7T < $R1T 8 7R (1) 2= 52 B AL 5L R B
located in the PRC with carrying amounts of approximately HK$14,451,000 (note BBREE{E 2 B 49 7314,451,0008 7T (FFEE14) BY
14) and HK$4,574,000 (note 15), respectively, and (2) personal guarantee from Mr. T2 W) Fr4,574,00058 7089 + B FAAE (BEE15) »
Huang Fei, a director of the Group's subsidiaries and Mrs. Hu Pian, the spouse of ROAEBFARDESEREERERTLEER
Mr. Huang Fei. BRI TIRME A B RERR

The Group's variable-rate borrowings carried interest at 1.7% plus base AEBZFEGBRIDZ 7B MEEN XK

rate and the effective interest rate at 1.8% per annum. The Group's fixed- BREHNZF18%st B o NEBZERBRTS

rate borrowings carried an effective interest rate of 4.6% per annum. a6% 2 BEFEFNZEFTE

As at 31 December 2023, bank borrowings with amounts of N ZEZ=F+ZA=+—H ®&HOR

approximately HK$55,029,000 and HK$1,924,000 were denominated in 55,029,00078 7T 52 1,924,00078 7T Z $R1T &7 TS

RMB and in KRW. DRIUARE RERESIE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE
33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. fHE AR
2024 2023
—EE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
Lease liabilities payable: EEHEaE
Within one year —FRN 1,111 11,933
Within a period of more than one year but not —FBEMmFEANEARE
exceeding two years - 3,033
Within a period of more than two years butnot MR B A FER AR
exceeding five years - 6413
Within a period of more than five years BBAFEHR - 27,273
1,111 48,652
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months 38 : ENBE NERARI2ER A
shown under current liabilities ERMFIE (1,111) (11,933)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months EREmBaAETRERERIEAE
shown under non-current liabilities EERIB - 36,719
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease EREREAEaENNEFSEEERNES
liabilities was 4.13% (2023: 5.44% per annum). 4.13% (ZEZ=F | FFIZE544%) ©

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

34.

GOVERNMENT GRANT

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has recognised
HK$711,000 (2023: HK$5,730,000) in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss representing government grant received from various local
governments for the contribution towards the Group’s business in the PRC
(including Hong Kong), Australia and South Korea. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these government grants.

4. ELFT4HED

BEE_Z_MWME+_RBA=+—HILEEE">
AEBRGSIBERMER711,00087T (T
T =% :5730,000/87T) > A B ZEE BT
BENBE#E UEMAERRTER (81
FAB) RN B B E Y TS o W I B % E BT
AR EARERGERIATIE

35. g7

35. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares Par value
ieahiE 4= EfE
2024 2024 2023
“EmE —E_mE “EBT=
‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT TR
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each SREE0IETZ
ZER 16,000,000 16,000,000 160,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: BETEHE
At the beginning/end of RIREERH,/ R
the reporting period 3,207,592 3,207,592 32,076 32,076
36. RESERVES 36. f#ff
Share premium in = E
The application of share premium account is governed by Section 40 of ROREBRZERAS—HAN\—FEREAT

198

the Companies Act 1981 (as amended) of Bermuda.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value of services estimated to be
received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options over the
relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair value of
the share options at grant date. The amount for each period is determined
by spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant vesting
period (if any) and is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve.

% (MER]) H40iREE -

BREREAE
BREREEENROAMEBRERGSH
REERBHEARTZRBEZAREE
HBHBUEHEREMBREZANEE
REE-ENSRBZHE RIS ERE
REZANBEEABSBEHAB (HA) NiE
DEE NGRS RERER > WARRIRESA
R P 1 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

36. RESERVES (continued)

Translation reserve

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net assets of
the Group's foreign operations from their functional currencies to the
Group's presentation currency (i.e. HKS) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation reserve. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy of foreign
currencies set out in note 3.2. Such exchange differences accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the foreign operations.

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve represents the appropriation of 10% of profit after
taxation, calculated in accordance with the accounting standards and
regulations applicable to subsidiaries of the Company established in the
PRC. When the balance of such statutory reserve reaches 50% of the
entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation is optional.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents (i) the difference between the consideration
paid by the Company for the subscription of 2,707,848 shares of Macrolink
Glorious Hill Co,, Ltd. (“Glorious Hill") and the carrying amounts of its net
assets acquired; and (ii) the difference between the consideration paid by
the Company for the subscription of 104 redeemable preference shares of
Macrolink Australia Investment Limited (‘“MAI") and the carrying amounts
of its net assets acquired. As the Company, Glorious Hill and MAI are under
common control of Macro- Link International Land Limited before and
after the subscriptions, the subscriptions have been accounted for using
merger accounting.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid to
obtain additional non-controlling interests of certain subsidiaries and their
carrying amount on the date of the acquisition.

36. f#fE @

St
BEEERBIIEFEEFEREERRE
REEEEHNENE BB FEEZERE
BEEZEHEME2E RGP ERILEERHEE
PR R EBRBEN 2P E 2 SN E & 5
BURFRIE o HEIBINEF Ry > LIt IMBER
FEARSZERERHEIHED -

AEER

EEREREREAADETBEIKIIZHMEA
BIBAZ g5t ER AR A B Z R & IER
Z10% B AERBHEFEZBREME
2= 7 509%85 > Rl A] B M (F R R — 2 ¢

=+
o

B ERE

& BTS2 A BB 82,707,848 % FT EE R £
@l g g (MRELE) REZE
TREZENSFEERBDEZZEZ5 ; &)
NABRBHEREMNEERRAD (TFEE
BB 1) 104B& AT EREB AR 2 BT REHR
HERNEGPEERAEZEB HNAAT 18
48 R EE RN R SRR B BRI B I
EREEEMERASERES > BEEIE
UEaHashiAIRRe

Hethi# &
Hit# FHIs A EEE TWE A B g IR
MEEMXTZABRARBEERZREEZ
Bz ZEge
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

37. DEFERRED TAXATION 37. RERIE

REFERBETEE BHERE
BE/ (BB REZFHMT !

IEIEFR IR

The followings are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

Deferred tax assets

Defined

ECL benefit Impairment
provision obligation of PPE Total

BHEE T UE-BER
BEREE BHEE RiE ZHE 5t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THT THET TET TET
As at 1 January 2023 RZE”=F—FH—H 4481 1,287 = 5,100
Exchange realignment ERAEE (329) (13) = (338)
Charged to profit or loss ke ER 14,701 185 - 14,886

Addition of a subsidiary (note 43) Em—rEmE AR (HF3) 8,168 - - 8,168
As at 31 Decemnber 2023 and ﬁ\—v Z=f+ZA=1+—Hk

1 January 2024 “E-mE-B—A 27025 791 = 27816
Exchange realignment ERAEE (355) (51) (199 (605)
Credited to profit or loss st AET 2,59% - 13772 16,368
Set-off with deferred tax liabilities DURIER A & fRI53H (15510) - - (15510)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) HEWBAR (HizFa) (4,671) (740) - (5411)
As at 31 December 2024 RIB-_ME

+ZB=+—H 9,085 - 13,573 22,658

Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEI(R

Fair value
adjustment
on intangible
asset acquired

in business  Revaluation of
combination properties
RER
EHUREER
BLEE
NEEFE MEE wast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET 57T FHET
As at 1 January 2023 R-Z-=F—HF—H (24,978) (2,284) (27,262)
Exchange realignment e AR 1,671 124 1,795
Credit to profit or loss T AE = 8,231 11 8242
Addition of a subsidiary (note 43) EhN—REME AT (FEta3) (39,281) (1481) (40,762)
As at 31 December 2023 and ATEB =4
1 January 2024 +-A=+—H8&
—ZE_mFE—/F—H (54,357) (3,630) (57,987)
Exchange realignment PE R AT 1,435 277 1,712
Credited to profit or loss T AR 2,985 (17,052) (14,067)
Set-off with deferred tax assets DURIERIEE E KA = 15,510 15,510
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) HERBAT (EE44) 16,422 3,447 19,869
As at 31 December 2024 MZEZME
+=B=+—H (33,515) (1,448) (34,963)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

37. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$379,519,000 (2023: HK$318,530,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to
the unpredictability of future profits streams. The unrecognised tax
losses in Hong Kong (2023: Hong Kong and Australia) amounted to
HK$339,328,000 (2023: HK$86,720,000) which can be carried forward
indefinitely. The unrecognised tax losses relating to the subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC and South Korea can be carried forward up to five
and fifteen years, respectively, from the year which the loss originated and

will expire in the following years:

37. IREIE )

FIERIBEE #)

REREHAR A2EBERBERIEBEEIE
379,519,000 7T (ZZ Z=4F 318,530,000/
70) Al EIKEH R AR T o S R BEfE 5T R 2
%IJ@’;%“ﬁiﬂ%ﬁﬁ&wEﬁLUﬁLﬁéﬁE 5B
(CEZ=F . EBKEBEN ZRERRIEE
$8339,328,0007 7T (ZZ Z=4F : 86,720,000/
7T) B $E BB BA 45 65 o 5O AP B e 7 58 5 M AR AL BY
B Az RERRIBREER D EEEE
SEERBEERZEERTRAE UHRU
TEEEM

2024 2023
“ETmE —E=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT
Year of expiry BEmEE
2024 —EUE - 16,552
2025 “ERAE - 33,101
2026 TETRE - 5,746
2027 B AF - 7,194
2028 —ECN\E 264 10,279
2029 —EAE - -
2030 TE=FE 6,785 8811
2031 =5 3,040 16,681
2032 TE=4F - 33,669
2033 —E==fF 11,716 24,944
2034 —E=uE 15,793 34,540
2035 “E=-REF 2,593 15,600
2036 TE=NE - 13,219
2037 TE=tF - 11,474
2038 TE=NE - -
2039 —E-NE - -
40,191 231,810
Under the EIT Law, a withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared BBECEMRBREZ BZEENFE—HF—

in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. At 31 December 2024, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was HK$89,309,000
(2023: HK$66,850,000). No deferred tax liability has been recognised in
respect of these differences because the Group is in a position to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

HiE > 4P B M & A B P BB 2 i M Bk
ZREABKBENR R _-_NE+Z
B=+—H BXRERDELREBEEBENKN

BRBEK KRR mAER YT EZEREER

789,309,000 7T (ZE =4 : 66, 850000?%

7T) © AR AN 52 [ AE S0 10 1) HD B 2= BB 2 Bl 3 B
F'Eﬁ’ﬁéz%%gﬁﬁjﬁﬁ/_fﬁﬂ_l%%)&@%%’aﬁz
FIERIBE (& ©

3 HE A 5% 3 A ER R ST
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

38. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
(i)  Plan for employees in Hong Kong

The Group participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in
the future years. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the plan
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income (subject to a ceiling of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000).

(i)  Plan for employees in the PRC

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

(iii)  Plan for employees in South Korea

The Group operates a defined benefit retirement scheme (the “DB
Scheme”) to its subsidiaries in South Korea. The defined benefit
retirement scheme is funded by monthly contributions from the
Group at average salary of the final six months multiplied by the
number of years vested. The pension costs are assessed using
the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the cost
of providing pensions is charged to the consolidated profit and
loss account so as to spread the regular cost over the service
lives of employees in accordance with the advice of the actuaries
who carry out a full valuation of the plans on an annual basis.
The pension obligation is measured by discounting the expected
future cash flows. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the group changed
the DB scheme to defined contribution retirement scheme (the
“DC scheme”). The DC scheme is con-tributed by both employers
and employees and the retirement benefits depends on the
accumulated contributions and investment returns. The employer
must contrib-ute at least 1/12 (about 8.3%) of the employee’s
annual salary.

The provident fund schemes for the Group's staff in other regions follow
local requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there were no forfeited

contributions included in retirement benefits schemes contributions
(2023: nil).

NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED €

38. RIAEFETE
(i) BEREEZFE

AEEAHERREAEREES R
BEINMEATES B (RESEE) 032
BeHtcEERAEBNEELS
USHAZS TAEEE  AEEHR
o E > ST EAREHEELFR
o {27 o 36 4 3R UL 22 2R T P VR 0 56 R 2
EEEMER RBRESHET &
INEESHBESHIUNREF 2
(ERABBFIEBTNAFS) o

(i) FEESZE
ROTEERZREESTERFEFZ
B REERAREBFEHBIFIRE o T EHT
BRrEAREEHFZETEDLEAR
PRAEF 5 B R o A& HH IR KRB 51
B2 EEERRBFBFHARMHR

(i) FIFE{ES Z5tE
FEBRDEBEZNBLAREFERRS
FARRETE) (TDBETE)) - EERBHIRIK
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

39. NET DEFINED BENEFITS LIABILITIES

The Group operates a retirement benefits plan for the employees in South
Korea. Under the plan, the employees will be paid their average salary
amount of their final six months of employment multiplied by the number
of years'service.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2024, the actuarial valuation
of plan assets and the present value of the retirement benefits liabilities
were performed by reputable actuaries, Actuarial Insurance Company
Sejong Corporation and KEB Hana Bank. The present value of the
retirement benefits liabilities, the related current service cost and past
service cost were measured using the project unit credit method.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial
valuations were as follows:

39. ERRBEHEEFE
AEEAHBERESRARNENFE R

BEtE BEEREXNRERNERRE/E
BT RURFERZRIA-

BE_Z_=HK_ZT_MFE+_A=+—
BIEEE stEBEEZHEEGERRKET
BEZIREBEHNZBEEBMACtuarial Insurance
Company Sejong Corporation/ZKEB Hana Bank
AT RNEH BB/ IRE  HERITARBE A
REBIERBR AT ERATES BUas A

Eo

BELEMBZEEZRKRNT :

Discount rate IR
Expected rate of salary increase TEfFT IR R

4.79%
2.00%

4.92%-5.76%
2.00%

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial position
arising from the Group's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans
were as follows:

ERrEBEERENABEEMS ALGERH
BARMRZZEHWMT -

2024 2023

—EmE TEC=F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHET FHET

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation BEMtFNEZERH EEZIRE - 8958
Fair value of plan assets HEEEZ AANEER - (5,004)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation EZEEASEEEZ EEPE - 3,954
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

39. NET DEFINED BENEFITS LIABILITIES (Continved) 39. TG AEFRE®

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as EfREEGNEERELZENT -
follows:

2024 2023
“EE =
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
As at 1 January = e = 8,958 8,198
Current service costs BRITIRFE A 561 951
Interest cost on benefit obligations BRHEEMNERE 150 432
Benefits paid during the year FAZ(TEF] (231) (1,417)
Remeasurement gain recognised R E M2 E N S FE R Y
in other comprehensive income B EWE 190 963
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT (6,664) =
Change of pension scheme BHERAKEE (2,437) -
Exchange realignment [E R HEE (527) (169)
As at 31 December n+ZA=+—H - 8,958
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets were as follows: FEBEZANBEEEWT
2024 2023
—E_MmEF “EB=HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#T FHET
As at 1 January w—HA—H (5,004) (5,098)
Interest income FMEUWA (167) (266)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans B2 EEMNE 61 140
Contributions by the Group 7R EE B R (362) (523)
Benefit paid by plan assets BEIEESZNEER] 151 637
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWRB AR (2,396) -
Change of pension scheme BERAREE (2,645) -
Exchange realignment BE 2 A 2L 280 106
As at 31 December R+ZB=+—H - (5,004)
The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk, FEBFTAZZFAR 2 EERE  NFH R
investment risk, longevity risk and salary risk. b B R RERM AT RRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

39. NET DEFINED BENEFITS LIABILITIES (Continued)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined
obligation are discount rate and expected rate of salary increase. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably
possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of
the relevant periods, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher (lower), the defined
benefit obligation would be decreased by HKSnil (increased
by HKSnil) (2023: decreased by HK$1,000,000 (increased by
HK$1,115,000)).

- If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 1%,
the defined benefit obligation would be increased by HKSnil
(decreased by HKSnil) (2023: increased by HKS$1,128,000 (decrease
by HK$987,000)).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the
actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some
of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value
of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same
as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing
the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

The weighted average duration of the benefit obligation at 31 December
2023 is 7.2 years for Megaluck and 2.75 years for Glorious Hill.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group expects to make a
contribution of HK$1,147,000 to the defined benefit plan during the next
financial year.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, all the balance from the DB
scheme is transfer to the DC scheme due to the change of scheme.

39. EHEENEEFE @

EEEHEEMAZEARERRBITER
Riast#F R THMRED TR FAA
HitRREFAE 2R T RIFBRHE
REBROGEAEELEZEHMET

—  EITIRE LA (FFE) 100EE 2 E 48
BHEERBELZEET (EMEET)
(ZTE =4 #F/1,000,000% 7T (80
1,115,000 7T) ) ©

—  {(HTEHRF B GRL) 1% EEE
BHESTHENEET RLDEET)
(ZTEZ =4 #101,128,000%8 7T (R
987,00037T) ) ©

MRS BRRTETANE ARBRTA
TETERAREEMBRR BRI RESR
1 » B it b 1) SRR EE 3 47 ok 8 BT A R E 2R AR
FIEES BRIt

5> 25 BB E DT PRI EHR
ZEREEMNEERET WA B EBUES
B EABREMBRRIRABER ZERRE
MEEaEMERAZ AR -

MU EEZHRREDNTHABZHER

A B =FE+_A=+—H ESLNE
MECWIMELHESRA7 25 BHELUES
2758 0

HE T+ _"HA=+t—HLEEE X
EEEEN T —MBEEREREEF T EI(E
1,147,000 75 2 7 o

E_E_MEF"_A=+—HILEEE @R
5t8)28) > D5t BIRIPR A G ERII B ADCEH &l

WMo B Xk AR A B € FERS 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group pledged the following
assets to secure the borrowings granted to the Group:

AL STATEMENTS

40. BEEKE

RREHAR AERBRUTEEFREE
EER R

2024 2023

—EE “ET=F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

TF#&T TET

Property, plant and equipment (note 15) Y2~ RS Fes& B (M95E15) - 14,451
Right-of-use assets (note 16) FAEEE (izhe) - 4574
- 19,025

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

41.

B EE

2024 2023
111 5 —E=
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAET FET
Contracted for but not provided for TAMERN GRS FRE

in the consolidated financial statements: T’Fﬁéﬁ :

In connection with acquisition of lands AU R T3 AE RS 7,995 9,075
42, SHARE OPTION SCHEME 42, BERGHEETEY

On 23 August 2012, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the 2012 Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
its directors and eligible participants. The 2012 Scheme was valid and
effective for a term of 10 years and expired on 22 August 2022.

Under the terms of the 2012 Scheme, the Board is entitled to grant
options to selected eligible participants (including employees of the
Group, business or joint venture partners, consultants, advisers, customers
and suppliers etc) as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group or any invested entity.

NEW SILKROAD CULTURALTAINMENT LIMITED €

RTE-—"FENBZ+=H' A RERMN
BRESE (T2 —_F5t8)) 5EERH
EERGERSUEREERH T ——F
STEAMMRAIE TR - "F)\A

—+Z"HEH-
BE_ZE-—_FHEZHRFT EFTTAERA
RERENRSEE BREAEEZEE ¥

BREEBH B EAABRREER
F) REBRE FRAREBEXFIEEAE
ESEAIREBREFHEMZ B OIR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit"). As approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 16 June 2017 (the “2017 AGM"), the total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme Mandate Limit was refreshed to 320,759,167 shares, representing
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the 2017
AGM and the date of this report. The total number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to each eligible participant (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any twelve-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue unless shareholders'approval
is obtained in general meeting. As the 2012 Scheme has expired on 22
August 2022, no further options were available for grant at the beginning
and the end of the reporting period.

There is no specified minimum period under the 2012 Scheme for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised. Options granted must
be taken up within 30 days from the date of grant with payment of HKS1
per grant. Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant
up to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. In each grant of options,
the Board may at their discretion determine the specific exercise period.
The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and (jii) the
nominal value of the Company's shares.

On 4 July 2016, a total of 151,000,000 share options were granted to
the directors, employees and other participants at an exercise price of
HK$2.00 per share under the terms of the 2012 Scheme. The exercise
price and the number of share options have been adjusted to HK$2.0381
and 148,176,300 respectively upon completion of the open offer. Details
of which were set out in the Company's announcement dated 9 January
2017.

On 31 March 2017, a total of 13,000,000 shares were issuable under
options granted to eligible participants at an exercise price of HK$2.00 per
share under the terms of the 2012 Scheme.

42.

BRIRHEETE @

BE T ——F A REREMEER TR
BZFrAEBREMETZROBASETRT
BERRAN _ZE——_F5E8EHE R 2

BEITIRAZ10% (M5t ZBEREE]) o KA A
BRER Tt EANB+AHERTHRE
BEARG ((TE—TERBEFAG)) £t
BB RIEEIRERBIE D ERE R
D HEAB B B #7320,759,167R2B& 1D » (5 — &
—tERRBEFAGEARARSBIHEER
BB TIRAZ10%  FAMER -+ 1@ B #i R aJ
RY¥SUGERSEEZERE (BEET
ERARITHEZ BRE) MEEITZ RIDEEF
BRBEETRMBE Z 1% ERKRERS
FEREMER SR AR S —ZF
AFEIER TSI TENB T HBE K
TR 3R SRR R D B AR f 4 — 5 Al IR T 0
FERR#E o

TR EHEETZBRELRAREN
FIRIABLUERIT R E R R IR E Y
AR RS0 NEMI BB BT
BRETAFEHAEEREESE10EF IR
EMEMEEITE - NIRHBRER > EFEH
@’\J’%/’%Eﬁ@,ﬁﬂ%ﬁ°??@1%EEE§$§FXTE’ﬁ]f
AMERMREBERRB RO ZWHE ; ()R
TgftljEIEﬂﬁﬂ**%EIZIK’AﬂHﬁTﬁZﬂ?i’JWHE
B RiiAAB RN ZEHE URSESE)

A CE—RNELtAEH AXATRE
—ZEFFHEZBRRETEES R oo;%rcl‘j
EEEERHMBEESGHEH151,000,000
Tﬁ}ﬁﬁﬂﬂé BRETEERBEENRARE
SEE % 9 Bl A EE £32.038178 7T K2 148,176,300
Tﬁ},ﬁﬁﬂﬂé BRZBENALEIAEAZE
—tE—BhAHZAE

N ZE—t+tE=A=+—H ' AAFREZ
T F B 2 ERRIRITEBER2.008 T
mEEK2EEGHEH13,00000015 7 217
FERR#E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 42. IERESE @
Details of the outstanding share options during the year ended 31 BHE_Z_NF+A=+—HBLEEFE'H
December 2024 were as follows: RITEBREZFBUT -

Number of shares issuable under options
REBRETZTRVEE
Exercisable Outstanding
price  Outstanding Lapsed asat Lapsed Outstanding
per share asat during  31.12.2023 during asat
Name of category of participants Dateofgrant  Exercise period HK$ 1.1.2023 theyear and1.1.2024 theyear  31.12.2024

1
ZECME
+ZA
BRTER - SisH
SRERLRER hi=) 171 BT K17 f HARITE
Directors
Bz
Mr. Zhang Jian 472016 472016 t0 3.7.2026 20381 7,850,400 - 7,850,400 - 7,850,400
RESLLE ZZRE IS RE
tAmA tAmEE
“TTRE
tA=H
Mr.Hang Guanyu 472016 472016 t0 3.7.2026 20381 7,850,400 - 7,850,400 - 7,850,400
MEF5RE ZZRE  IEF
tAmA tAmEE
“TTRE
tA=H
Other employees or participants 472016 472016 t0 3.7.2026 20381 44,158,500 (2,943,900) 41,214,600 (17,633,400 23,551,200
HitEEH28% ZZRE  IERF
tAmA tAmEE
“TTE
tA=H
3132017 3132017 10 30.3.2027 20000 13,000,000 - 13,000,000 - 13,000,000
“E—t§ 2—tE
=B=+—-H =ZA=+—B=%
TETtE
=A=+H
Total 72,859,300 (2,943,900) 69915400 (17,663,400 52,252,000
st
Exercisable at the end of the reporting period 72,859,300 69,915,400 (17,663,400) 52,252,000
RIREHARATE
Weighted average exercise price 20313 20381 20310 20381 20286
MEFHTEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E_ZE_ME+_A=+—HIEFE

43. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

WL TREEEZ
REME PR -

Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of:

43. EE—RHEBAE

2024
—E_E £

HK5000
TET

HK$000
FAT

— Beijing Chaolaichaowang Culture —IERERBEEER N/A
Media Company Limited [EYN=] (b) RiER 379,853
Notes Kzt
@) The Group has not acquired any subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December (@) BHE_ZE_=F+_-_A=+—HLEHFE &x&
2023, E IR EERME AR -
(b) Acquisition of Beijing Chaolaichaowang Culture Media Company Limited during (b) HE_S_=—HF+_B=1+—HILEE -5

the year ended 31 December 2023 is as follows:

On 4 January 2023, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Beijing Yunhe Zhangji Investment Limited, which is ultimately wholly-
owned by Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Limited (“Macrolink
Culturaltainment”) for the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Beijing
Chaolaichaowang Culture Media Company Limited (“Chaolaichaowang”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Chaolaichaowang Group’) for a
consideration of RMB430,000,000 (equivalent to HK$487,495,000). Completion of
the acquisition took place on 30 April 2023.

Chaolaichaowang is principally engaged in investment holding in the PRC and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property management business in the
PRC. The acquisition of Chaolaichaowang would allow the Group to diversify its

property management business.

In the opinion of the directors, the acquisition of Chaolaichaowang is considered
as a business combination as it enriches the operations of the Company to
finance the business development and expansion of the property management
business in the future. The trademarks from the acquisition can expand its
network of a trading of wines and the property development business in oversea
operation. Accordingly, the management concluded that the acquisition of
Chaolaichaowang generated more economic benefits to improve the operating
and financing activities of the Group and has been accounted for using the
acquisition method.

Acquisition related costs are insignificant. Such costs have been excluded from
the consideration transferred and have been recognised as an expense in the
current year, within “administrative and other operating expenses’ line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024

W B I BB E S EBE AR AWM T ¢

AT =F—FMNA > A% E R ERK SR
ERBRMDABRLE (THEMNIK) AEATR
KERRRE2EFANLEREIRERERR
NBEIMEBEHE W EItmE R ESE
BEERART (THRBE) REWBAR HiE
TER BT EMm ) 59100%MR 1 RIEBAARKE
430,000,0007C (F8E 12487,495,0005 7T) ° NS
BHIE=FMBA=+H5%EM"

HMRBETEZNRERFREER MEKWB
AEEERPEREYEEIEER  WEHR
HMERCEAEBS T EEMEEERET

EEIR WEHRHNERE A —REB A
EARHEBETAABNER HRKYEEE
EHENEBERRFEREHERE - R WEH
FHMENERTUBAKEAEEE 5 EHELE
RBIMESER B ER T - FiIt > BEEREE
RRWEARATEELEESKEND > AF)
REEAEENCERBETD  SRBUHE
EETEEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

43, WE—RMMB AT &=
REORARR s SERaRE

HK$’000
FET

Assets BE

43. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition:

Property, plant and equipment (note 15) YE - B Rk (HI5E15) 3,666
Right-of-use assets PREEE 1,480
Investment property (note 17) LEYE (fsE17) 9,070
Intangible assets (note 19) mEEE (WH5E19) 158,245
Deferred tax assets (note 37) EIERIEE E (M95E37) 8,168
Inventories 78 10,981
Trade receivables B EWAR™M 89,553
Prepayments, deposits paid and other receivables FEIIE B S K E MBS 8,292
Amounts due from related parties [EUR BRI 75 R R 144,390
Cash and cash equivalents REKRIREEREEE 33,371
Liabilities =R
Trade payables B SRR (107,935)
Accruals and other payables FESHE R E I RIE (68,750)
Contract liabilities (note 29) aHaE (WsF29) (57,448)
Amounts due to related parties FE{S R /5 RER (21,068)
Lease liabilities (note 33) HEaEA (5E33) (1,928)
Tax payables B HRIE (5,550)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 37) IRERIBS G (MI5E37) (40,762)
Total identifiable net assets acquired BRI # A E E S EREE 163,775

R UEE HERA 1B {E#%7158,245,0008 T2 B
WHEBETEEZBSHSEEAA1,119,0008
ToBMEXRERELEENGNRESREE

The intangible assets acquired with a fair value of approximately
HK$158,245,000 at the date of acquisition had gross contractual amount
of approximately HK$1,119,000. No contractual cash flows from the

completed properties held for sale are expected to be irrecoverable. RN EIS
Goodwill arising on acquisition KWEELENEE
HK$000
F#T
Consideration transferred REEE
- Cash —RE 413,224
— Assumption of debt —RIEETS 74,271

Recognised amount of identifiable net assets acquired BWEAHNEEFEZ ERIEEE (163,775)

WEEEE M EZE (HfsE18) 323,720

Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 18)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 43. WEE—HEBAE @
Net inflow on acquisition of Chaolaichaowang W B R 2R B AR RU TR AR BB
An analysis of cash flows in respect of the acquisition of Chaolaichaowang BRAWESHENREREDMUWT :
is as follows:
HK$000
F#ET
Consideration paid in cash RELEREELN (413,224)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Wi 2 & KRIREEREER 33,371
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents RWERIREERIEE M FEE (379,853)
Included in loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 REFREBEMEENEIINZEBNENOA
is profit of HK$37,487,000 attributable to the additional business 37,487,000 T ESF AXERHE-S _E
generated by Chaolaichaowang. The Group's revenue for the year +ZA=+—HIEFEBE -FAERHE
ended 31 December 2023 includes HK$337,656,000 generated from EF+A=+—HIEFEXREEH
Chaolaichaowang. TR B BT B £ Y337,656,00078 7T ©
Had the acquisition of Chaolaichaowang been completed on 1 January HRBHRAEN _E_=F—HF—H5%
2023, revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 of the Group would o AEEEE_ZE_=F+"A=+—H
have been HK$488,860,000 and profit for the year ended 31 December IFFEN K Hé_’r #975488,860,00058 77 » M A5
2023 of the Group would have been HK$46,510,000. The pro forma @é}zi_ T —F+"HBA=1+—HILEFEN
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an w49 746,510,000 7T © ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ@
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually ERBRR RO EEARMBER 2=
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 30 FMA=+THTERAEBEEREIN Wml
April 2023, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results. REEXGENIER TR RAEEBREEN
TER] o
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 44, HEMBAR
As referred to in note 8, on 24 June 2024, 31 October 2024 and 19 Wk sksprai > RZEZMWERBZ+ M
December 2024, the Group completed disposed of subsidiaries, B ZE2ME+A=+—HERZZEZMNF
Megaluck, Huaxia Winery and Macrolink, which carried out the Group's +ZRAThAB AEETREEWE QT
entertainment business, wine business and real estate integrated resort Megaluck ~ # B /B % KMacrolink > 2 = ‘A &)
and cultural tourism business respectively. The net assets of Megaluck, DR E R EBIRSLER A ERAEB E
Huaxia Winery and Macrolinkat the date of disposal were as follows: H EE AR & FE B AT Ko S AB BR3E 25 #5 0 Megaluck
BB KMacrolinkiX H & BN E E 3 E
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

212

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 44. HEMBAT =
a) Disposal of Megaluck a) HEMegaluck
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: HEEETENEEL BN DN !
24/6/2024
—EmME
ANAZ+mAB
HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment Y BB Rk 3,050
Right-of-use assets EREEE 801
Intangible assets mLEE 91,113
Deferred tax assets RERIAE E 4,471
Inventories =78 648
Prepayments, deposits paid and other receivables FETRIE s B 12E R E B RIE 8,545
Short-term loan receivables FEWEEAE ™R 51
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEREEE 453
Trade payables B SRR (9,490)
Accruals and other payables FESt & B R H g RIE (6,881)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEIERM B AT KR (83,479)
Amounts due to related parties FE{S R /5 Rk (11,946)
Bank borrowings RITRER (2,526)
Lease liabilities HE&E (3,379)
Tax payable FEIIRIA (125)
Net defined benefit liabilities TR B EEEE (4,268)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIES G (16,422)
Net liabilities disposed of BHESEFEE (29,384)
Consideration received and receivable: B R FEUREE - HK$’000
FAT
Cash received and receivable B EWEIRE 28,425
Loss on disposal of Megaluck H EMegaluckZE 4 2 518 HK$'000
FHET
Consideration received and receivable B EWRRE 28,425
Net liabilities disposed of BHESREFEE 29,384
Non-controlling interests JEPES R (8,814)
Waiver of amounts due from Megaluck and its subsidiary EA S FE WiMegaluck & E I B A Bl 7B (83,479)
Release of remeasurement of defined benefits obligation BT EEERNEENRER 2,142
Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve upon H H E MegaluckBF By R 51 B R & &
disposal of Megaluck to profit or loss BN BEEER (305)
Loss on disposal HEEHB (32,647)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Megaluck £ MegaluckE £ HIRETTRAFEE HK$'000
FAET
Cash consideration RERE 28,425
Less: consideration receivable B EWRE (23,985)
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B BHERENIBESEREIER (453)
3,987
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E_NE+_B=+—HILFE

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

b)

Disposal of Huaxia Winery

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

44, LEMBAT =
by HEFEHE
WA TN EERG /NN

31/10/2024

a1 5

+B=+—H

HK$’000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment M~ R B st 133,079
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 38,128
Intangible assets mILEE 1,482
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEE &= 940
Inventories F&8 192,006
Trade receivables B Z IR 1,234

Prepayments, deposits paid and other receivables FETRIE s B2 E R E B RIE 9,901
Amount due from related parties [ UK B 75 I8 16
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEREEE 9,277
Trade payables B S EMAIRN (9,926)
Accruals and other payables FE ST & F & HA (I RIE (72,154)
Amounts due to related parties &1 BAEE 75 KR (2,318)
Contract liabilities BHBRE (16,391)
Bank borrowings IRITER (54,542)
Lease liabilities HEaR (38,055)
Tax payable FEIHRIE (920)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIES G (2,208)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 189,549
Consideration received: ERRE : HK$’000
FHET

Cash received and receivables B EBERE 141,878
Loss on disposal of Huaxia Winery HEESBEELZEIE HK$'000
FAT

Consideration received and receivable B EWARE 141,878
Net assets disposed of BHEBEETFE (189,549)
Non-controlling interests JEAT M R 7,340

Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve upon RHEEEBERN RS ERFEES

disposal of Huaxia Winery to profit or loss MoEEER 28,642
Loss on disposal HEEIE (11,689)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Huaxia Winery HEEESBEEFLNRESRASRE HK$’000
FHET

Cash consideration BE2RB 141,878
Less: consideration receivable B EWRAE (56,153)
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B BHERERIREEREIEE (9,926)
75,799

M E XK A RRQA
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 44. HEWBAT &
c) Disposal of Macrolink o tHEMacrolink
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: HEEETENEEL BN DN !
19/12/2024
—EmE
+=B+AiHBH
HKS$’000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment M~ R B st 94
Inventories =7E8 346
Prepayments, deposits paid and other receivables TR RIE s B 12E R E MBI RIE 6,542
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEFRIER 6,566
Accruals and other payables FEST & A & HA (I RIE (7,180)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIES G (1,239)
Tax payable FE(IHRIE (158)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 4,971
Consideration received: BUHEE : HK$'000
FHET
Cash received BUERE -
Loss on disposal of Macrolink HEMacrolinkZE 4 2 518 HK$’000
FAT
Consideration received and receivable B EUAE -
Net assets disposed of BHEEETFE (4,971)
Non-controlling interests FERES R 170,270
Relase of merger revenue ERa s (213,797)
Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve upon 1 H & MacrolinkBS By 2 510 R =6 &
disposal of Macrolink to profit or loss B BEEER 3,500
Loss on disposal HEEIE (44,998)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of Macrolink H EMacrolinkE £ RIIRE T FEE HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration HELE =
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B BHERERIREEREIEE (6,566)
(6,566)
The impact of disposal of subsidiaries on the Group's results and & M8 A B ¥ A4S & B AN HR R 7 R
cash flows in the current and prior periods is disclosed in note 8. BEELAHRERENEERN K sE8IF
Zo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR o MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZE_MNE+"A=+—HILFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

45.1

45.2

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets ERIEE
Amortised cost R EH Pl A
Financial liabilities ERAE
Amortised cost R EH Pl A

45. TRTH
451 SR T B4E5

2024 2023
—E_E T -fF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET

609,866 397,322

159,341 310,674

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade receivables,
deposits paid, other receivables, short-term loan receivables, cash
and cash equivalents, trade payables, other payables, amounts
due to related parties, loan from immediate holding company,
loans from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the management policies remain
unchanged from prior year.

Market risk
(@  Foreign currency risk management

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC, South
Korea and Australia and is exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from fluctuation in RMB, KRW, CAD and AUD. Foreign
currency risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations.

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024

452 HAF A EEBEREEK

FEETETHITIAGEEZE SRR
% BN &S HAEWBRIE - BUE

AEM - RERRTEHER - BHE
ﬁ% CHAREA IR B RRE S W
E-EERZERATDER - WBARZIE
ERKRRERRBITEE WESHT
AR BEN AN ERE - BILE S/
IEW%MHﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ(f%ﬂ

gRAEXRAR - EERRRABES

ﬂwﬁﬂﬁfﬂﬂm&ﬁﬁmeo
Eﬁ% BRERILERRE  URERK

RAMERNBEERE ZFETMIAZ
HARRREERREEF—Heo

1% A B2
@) SERMEERE

FEBIEREE TEH MR
RENEEES AMEERAR
B BRE T AORTTRBIMAEE
BSMERRE - SNERPER B2
BRZ CHEINBEEREER
BN EFZIREFEMESE



216

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

45.2 Financial risk management objectives and

policies(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(@  Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

There is no material foreign exchange risk noted for the

Group as:

- the transactions of the Company are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company, and

- the operations and customers of the Group's
subsidiaries are located in the PRC, South Korea
and Australia with most of the operating assets and
transactions denominated and settled in RMB, KRW
and AUD, respectively, which are the functional
currencies of the Group's subsidiaries.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
variable-rate bank balances and bank borrowings which
carry at prevailing market interest rates. The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent of

changes in market interest rates.

The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
management will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arises.

45. TRT A »®
452 BMFE R EIEBZERIEE @

WiZERE &)

(a)

(b)

S EER R ETE ()

FERTEETEERNEAIE
EBg o TR

- ARENRZEEUETT
SHE LA RBININES
%5 &k

- FTEERBARNEBX
ERANPE - mER AR
M RBHEEEENRS
DHUARE RERRTT
SHERGEE MARKE 28
BERRTHAEBWEAQ
BRI INEEE -

RERBRARBEFFEARE
i3

7 & B [ bR B2 B TE M KR 1T X
REEEEAMNARBENEX
RRE e REETARIBITH SR
KR BT BIRITEFRRIBITE
MEVIRTT T B A FOR B M E ERIR
TREMNEEAR - AEEZ WA
REEREREL TR HHH X

= B, 4
EER o

AEBRKITEEREATET
BEEhR R AT B
BRNEEREBHEIMEAMNEK
J& Bz o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR o MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
45.2 Financial risk management objectives and

policies(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(b)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk management
(Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates of variable-rate bank
balances and borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of bank balances and bank borrowings
outstanding at the end of each reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been increased or decreased by 50 basis
point with all other variables held constant, the Group's
profit/(loss) for the year ended 31 December 2024 would
increase/decrease by HKS$nil (2023: increase/decrease by
HK$554,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are primarily attributable
to trade receivables, other receivables, deposits paid, short- term
loan receivables and bank balances. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits and
credit approvals. Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
once a year. Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on trade balances
individually or based on provision matrix based on share credit
risk characteristics by reference to repayment history for recurring
customers and current past due exposure for the new customers.

45. TRT A ®
452 ARG EIEEIERIEE &)

WiZEE &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

45. TRT A »®
452 BAEREGEIEBE R &

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
45.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

218

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal
credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed once a year. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the management
considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk as at 31
December 2023 on trade receivables from the Group's largest
customer and the Group's top five major customers which
accounted for 7.39% and 16.53% of the Group's total trade
receivables, respectively. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model on trade balances individually or based on provision
matrix except for items that are subject to individual assessment,
the remaining trade receivables are grouped under a provision
matrix based on shared credit risk characteristics by reference
to repayment histories for recurring customers and current past
due exposure for new customers. No impairment loss reversed of
(2023: HK$5,801,000 net impairment loss recognised) is recognised
during the year. Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out
below in this note.

EE R KRBENE @
EREHNELHE S EWIRL
REMERTE R A AEBRAA
ERADRMRAEBEERRNERE
B UREFEEEERBE - TRHR
BRADEBERT—R-AEEEFE
HMEERER U FREINERETE
ClEAEH RIS  EEERAE
EENEERBEARBRE-

RIEZ=F+ZH=1+—H &%=
AREEAERRATEARAERR
AFTERLANEZREWERTNESE
BRE AEBRAFARAEERAKN

TR DRMEAERE S EWER
HAZEMY7 39% % 16.53% AR EMREEE
A ~EEEEBEEREKASE
/ﬂ:. SREE R s E Rt o

o AEBMIREBEHREEFBEERA S
B 5 45 R E 1T @ B R (E 5T 1 AR HR 5
& TR E S M@ B TR IE
BN R TEZEBBRRTI2ELE
MEANEREELRHELNER A
MR REXREERRSRRES
BRI DM FRNERRRERE
BOo (CE=F . EEINEHBES
%85,801,000787T) - BRIEEHRBEERH
EBEHNRAMET o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NE+_BA=+—HILEE

45. TRT A ®
452 ARG EIEEIERIEE &)

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
45.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Other receivables and deposits paid

For the other receivables and deposits paid, the management
makes periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables and deposits paid based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL. As at 31
December 2024, the balance of loss allowance in respect of other
receivables HK$950,000 (2023: HK$80,000).

Short-term loan receivables

The management estimates the estimated loss rates of short-
term loan receivables based on historical credit loss experience
of the debtors. Short-term loan receivables with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection are assessed
individually for provision for impairment allowance. As at 31
December 2024, the balance of loss allowance in respect of these
individually assessed receivables were HK$nil (2023: HK$10,000).

WMo B Xk AR A B € FERS 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

45. TRT A »®
452 ARG EIEBIERIEE &)

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

45.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

EERMRKRREFNG @

RITHEER

IRITHAGNEERRER RAREF

FRERREERERETREETR

NEERFIRT - AEE2EIBEES

TR EEmNEREETIRERE

FENMERENBRENER &

IRITEERIN12E B FRRERBE

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit agencies. The Group assessed 12m-ECL for
bank balances by reference to information relating to probability of
default and loss given default of the respective credit rating grades
published by external credit rating agencies.

FEBNABEERRTDFEEE
LUR 4R

The Group's internal credit risk scoring assessment comprises the
following categories:

Trade receivables Other financial assets

Internal credit rating Description

REMEE T4 et B 5 FEULER R HittSREE

Low risk The counterparty has either a low risk of default and  Lifetime ECL — not 12m-ECL
does not have any past-due amounts or frequently credit-impaired
settles after due dates but usually settle in full

ERR HFEFNENRRREE L EEFMARE 2HEREEHE- 2ERRREEHIE
BN REE BEETHEE BIEERE

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not
risk since initial recognition through information credit-impaired credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources

BI&E BHZEBAESIINEERBENER TS SHBEHRES SHATEERGE S
MR EE R ERBEE B8 — |5 e — &5

ERE SRE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL — credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired impaired impaired

PN BERBETEELRESRE LHATRHAE EEE- 2HTRIGEERE-

EERE EERE

Written-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in  Amount is written-off ~ Amount is written-off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

24 BERBRATEBABRRNBRENTBEE & MHRIE W EE TR IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB &R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E_ZE_ME+_A=+—HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
45.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

Financial assets at amortised cost

=
hn

452 BAF5 A

Internal 2024

creditrating  12m or lifetime ECL

ABEETR 12ERR2BRAEEHE

HK$'000
FAT

45. TRT A ®
SEEEREKREE @

faz

Gross carrying amounts

—E_MEREAE

HK$'000
FET

EERREKRE G @)
TERFINAERRETHRAGEEBE
SHENEREENEE R

2023
Gross carrying amounts
T -FRESE
HKS$'000 HKS'000
THET TER

REHERAENESRHER
Trade receivables 21 Note'l Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 175,617 165,026
- Provision Matrix
EGLEEA {hEal LHEHREEEE ®EERE)
— R EERE
Loss Credit-impaired - 175,617 20,365 185,391
BE EERE
Other receivables and deposits paid 22 Lowrisk 12m-ECL (note 2) 23,985 59,659
EtEBTIERB RS RER 18R BHEEEE ()
Short-term loan receivables 24 Loss Credit impaired (note 2) - 65
FEUIZHER BE EERE (i)
Bank balances 25 Lowrisk 12m-ECL 357,768 201,745
RITHRER RER EAEHEEER

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

45.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Note:

m

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in
HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors
with significant balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the
ECL on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by past due

status.

Provision matrix - debtors’ aging

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group uses debtors’
aging to assess the impairment for its customers in relation to its wine
operation because these customers consist of a large number of small
customers with common risk characteristics that are representative of
the customers' abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed on a
collective basis by using provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired). Debtors with credit-impaired with gross carrying amounts
of HKSnil as at 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$20,365,000) were assessed
individually.

Gross carrying amount

45. TRT A »®
452 ARG ESIEBEREE @&

EERREKRET G @)

V=2

(1)

MEZEBERME  AEEERAE
BUBHREERFRNEEH EREH
RAEEREEHEER - RABE
AEFAEERENEFZ AN £EH

fER B RE D ME B BB FE [ 7 B &
FIHEMRAEEESE-

13517 5B P — FE LU RR IR AR Y

ERFAEREERREERN —&2 &
EEERBRWRERETEEDEEE
BHBAERNRE REAAZERERE
BEAEBEEHAARBENNERR
ZERBAREPRESOERZA
FRAEZISIMENE - TRIZHAME
ZRVEERNEERRER ZFEH
EREBREAEESR (BEERE)
ANEHEEMEEEREEFNG - KT
“mE+ZA=+—H RERKERT

BT (TZT =4 20,365,000 7T) BI15
BRERRZIBEETERTE
IRE4AE

2024
—ETmE
Average loss rate  Trade receivables Average loss rate Trade receivables
FigpsiaER B 5 EURARTR TR EE B EUERTR
HK$,000 HKS,000
FHT TFHT
Current (not past due) BPHEA (GRiuEH) 3.9% 62,570 0.1% 47,195
1-90 days past due #HA1Z90H 3.9% 35,141 3.0% 49,846
More than 90 days past due B AREBE0R 45.3% 77,906 40.6% 67,985
175,617 165,026
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed EetEEXRLEREBARTERERN

default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward- looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure

relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group provided
HK$13,617,000 (2023: HK$5,801,000 net impairment allowance) net
impairment allowance reversed for trade receivables based on the
provision matrix. No net impairment allowance (2023: Nil) were made on

debtors with credit-impaired debtors.

BEERASNENXRMG  LREH
TEBE B E R4~ 5055 1 Bl p 15 B Al BE 14
BERMFHAE -BEEE TSRS DA
NRAMIEEEBANERENEE
o

HE-_Z_HWE&E+-A=+—HIF
B AEBEREEEEREE SRR
et IR R B E B [)F 8813,617,00078 7T
(ZEZ=F : BE#EEFE5.801,000
A7) cEMHREEREBREANES
A RBERERREAS CT =%

") o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E_ZE_ME+_A=+—HIEFE

45. TRIT A =
452 BRI ESIEEEREE @)

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
45.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERR KRR ET G (@

Note: (Continued) Wiz (48

) The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been ) TREREME ZEBRREZNEH
recognised for trade receivables. THEREE BB EE -

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
ZHFEREERE 2RAEEHR
i (EERE) “act
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
As at 1 January 2023 WZEZ=%—H—H 1,712 20,802 22514
1 January 2023 T =F—HF—H (253) (437) (690)
Exchange adjustments FERREE 33425 - 33425
Addiitons through acquisition of ERWENBATRE
a subsidiary 2,091 - 2,091
Impairment loss recognised BERREEE (7,892) - (7,892)
As at 31 December 2023 and AZEZ=F+ZHA=+—HK
1 January 2024 —E-WE—HB—H 29,083 20,365 49,448
Exchange adjustments PE R 2L (822) (1,212) (2,034)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMWBAE (2,952) (19,153) (22,105)
Impairment loss recognised ERREEE 13,745 - 13,745
As at 31 December 2024 RIZ-NE+ZA=+—H 39,054 - 39,054

TRI T EMEYRIE BV RS R
FEWCE R E MR M S IR B R o

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances that has
been recognised for other receivables, deposits paid and short-term loan

receivables.

RIS E AR
HK$'000

12m-ECL

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
2HTERAEERSHE
(EERE)

HK$'000

THET

12{8A

As at 1 January 2023 WZEZ=%—HF—H 147 12 159
Exchange adjustments P A 2 O] ) (3)
Impairment loss recognised BERREREE 18 - 18
Impairment loss reversed B LR ERE (84) - (84)
As at 31 December 2023 and WIEZ=%+ZH=+—HK

1 January 2024 —E-_mWE—HF—H 80 10 90
Exchange adjustments P A 2 (3) = (3)
Impairment loss recognised BERREREE 950 - 950
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR (77) (10) (87)
As at 31 December 2024 R-B-OmOFE+-RA=+—H 950 - 950

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR o MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE _WE+_B=+—HILEEE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
45.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to meet
liabilities as they fall due. The Group consistently measures and
maintains a prudent financial policy and ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group's financial
liabilities, which are based on undiscounted contractual cash flows
(including interest payment computed using contractual rates) and

45.

EHMTEH®

452 BHFEREZEEZRER @

RBEZAKRER

nPETRBRASEEIMANKES
BN Z B - & EF—EEiE
REFBEMFRRUBFRERERER

UM RBESPIE

TERETAERZEHEBNRSH
RZEBTNERARMR DR RIFTIR
GNRERE BREBRSOANERHAEZ
MENR REEERFAX M Z A

the earliest date the Group can be required to pay: g2
Liquidity risk tables B E Z EfE R
Weighted Total
average Less than Between 1 Over undiscounted Total carrying
interest rate lyear  and5years 5 years cash flows amount
fnte RTRRE
Tl DME  NFIESE HBiA5E MERE BEREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET THET THET
As at 31 December 2024 RZTZME
+ZA=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTELHEE
Trade payables B3R - 87,942 - - 87,942 87,942
Other payables HitE [T - 51,956 - - 51,956 51,956
Amounts due to related parties eI RAE A FIB - 18,647 - - 18,647 18,647
Loans from non-controlling shareholders [t B /A & FEIZ AR AR
of subsidiaries &N - 796 - - 796 796
Lease liabilities HEER 413 1,123 - - 1,123 111
160,464 - - 160,464 160,452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E_ZE_ME+_A=+—HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 45. EMT A @
45.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 452 MFRAMEEEEREE @
(Continued)
Liquidity risk management mEEEEEEE
Liquidity risk tables (Continued) BB T EEFR (7

Weighted Total
average Less than Between 1 Over undiscounted Total carrying
interest rate lyear  and5years 5 years cash flows amount

L FTRRE

FIgFE LE AFIESE BiEsE  REME  AREE
) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FER FER FER

As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=
+ZB=+—H

Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTtEHEE
Trade payables B3R = 126616 = = 126616 126616
Other payables HitE[FIE = 164,134 = = 164,134 164,134
Amounts due to related parties eI RAE A FIB - 17,389 - - 17,389 17,389
Loans from non-controlling shareholders [t B /A & FEIZ AR AR

of subsidiaries =6 460 784 = = 784 784
Loans from non-controlling shareholders [ff B/A B 3EEEAR AR

of subsidiaries & - 2,147 - - 2147 2,147
Lease liabilities HEaE 544 14367 17,130 44371 75,868 48652

325437 17,130 44371 386938 359,722
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46. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for equity holders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Group's overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

In order to maintain with industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis
of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total
capital. Total debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and
non-current borrowings, loan from immediate holding company, loans
from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and lease liabilities
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) and total
equity, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

46.

BEXmEEERE

REBEXK  rERSERFREIERARE
DUFBEEEERBEE UAEERA
ARBEHR KRS HMRERE AHEN
TRFREBRRBLUR D E R A o RE
B EERRE L —EEEMERTE-

RREREREE  AEERERBLEEXEE
BRI EERTYIZEFHBEF R E X5
H - EBBENZRER (OEGRSMHBRR
KM ZRBEIERBER ERIERAT
ER-NBRAFERKRRERREEER)
SR MBEBERNRGEMBRRERARZ
MEm stH e

BREEE
A—E_NER-_E_=F+_-_A=+—H
ZEEEEDNT

2024 2023

—EomE ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#T TET
Total borrowings HfERR 1,907 108,536
Total equity MR 1,418,905 1,693,789
Gearing ratio =L e 0.13% 641%
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Group has entered into the following significant transactions and balances

47. FAERRZ

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the EN =

with related parties, which in the opinion of the directors of the Company, BEERAHRER
were conducted under commercial terms and in the normal course of the IR EARFEIT ©
Group's business.

Transaction with related parties @ FMEFRS

Sales of goods
Yunnan JLF Trading (note (i)
Ningbo Rongsui Industrial Co. Ltd. (note (i))

Guilin Xiangshan Winery Co. Ltd. (note (i)

Income from property management
Macrolink Culturaltainment and
its related parties (note (i)

Purchase of goods
Jinliufu Yitan Haojiu Trading Co,, Ltd. (note (i))

Guizhou Zhenijiu (note (ii))

Expense relating to leased office
Macrolink Culturaltainment and
its related parties (note (iv))

Expense relating to security service
Macrolink Culturaltainment and
its related parties (note (v))

HEEM

EmEAEES (i)

BENMEEXRERRAT
(P =EG)

EMRLEESRAT (HEE0))

REVMESEERHWA
HEER SRR ELRRE S (B EEain)

BEEm

ERE—EEFEESERAD
(BF5E0))

EMEHE O %)

REHERAENZH
HERSOR R ERREH S (iEEY)

KERZRBHZH
MER SRR E T (EEV)

2024
—EmE

HK$'000
FET

18,364

88

1,844

827

MHBRREMEBOPTIKEI  BE
BT TIERRELR G R N AF
SERAERZEEMERE

2023

BS
—_—<——

HK$'000
THET

525

38

9,755

236

291

327
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_WNE+_H=+—HILEE

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Transaction with related parties (Continued)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

v)

Itis a related party of the Group as Mr. Fu is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wu
Xiangdong, who is a substantial shareholder of these companies.

Itis a related party of the Group as Mr. Fu is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wu
Xiangdong, who is a substantial shareholder of Guizhou Zhenjiu.

On 13 September 2021, Diging Shangri-la entered into the 2021 Zhenjiu
Agreement with Guizhou Zhenjiu, pursuant to which Diging Shangri-
la has agreed to purchase Zhenjiu wines from Guizhou Zhenjiu with an
annual cap of RMB8.3 million (equivalent to HK$9.96 million) for each of
three years ending 31 December 2023.

It is a related party of the Group as Mr. Fu is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Macrolink Culturaltainment.

On March 2023, Sichuan Silkroad Data Technology Company Limited
(“Sichuan Silkroad”) entered into the Master Services Agreement with
Macrolink Culturaltainment, pursuant to which the subsidiaries of Sichuan
Silkroad have agreed to provide the property management services to
Macrolink Culturaltainment and its related parties with an annual cap of
RMB52 million (equivalent to approximately HK$58.76 million), RMB54
million (equivalent to approximately HK$61.02 million), and RMB56
million (equivalent to approximately HK$63.28 million) for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025.

It is a related party of the Group as Mr. Fu is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Macrolink Culturaltainment.

Sichuan Silkroad entered into the Master Services Agreement
with Macrolink Culturaltainment, pursuant to which Macrolink
Culturaltainment and its related parties has agreed to lease the office
premises to the subsidiaries of Sichuan Silkroad with an annual cap of
RMB2.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.28 million), RMB3
million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.39 million), and RMB3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$3.39 million) for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025.

It is a related party of the Group as Mr. Fu is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Macrolink Culturaltainment.

Sichuan Silkroad entered into the Master Services Agreement
with Macrolink Culturaltainment, pursuant to which Macrolink
Culturaltainment and its related parties has agreed to provide security
and guarding services to the subsidiaries of Sichuan Silkroad with an
annual cap of RMB4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$4.52
million), RMB5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$5.65 million), and
RMB5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$5.65 million) for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025.

47. FAERR

(a) Bﬁ@?‘i % #)

et -

(0]

(i)

(iii)

HRBEERZERTNZEIERRERM
RAEERER  WAEEBBRRESS -

HREEERBENEETERREAR
FAERER MR R EBBIRRET -

NI —FEhA+=H BEERE
FEENEBEITI S _—BERS
Bt RBE_E_=F+_/F=+—
BE=BFE gaEERBENRERE
MEBRBRELE SEFEEHE LRA
Ri&83E &t BER.96BE A IT) ©

AR EBEERMERIRREERR
R ARERBNREES -

RIS =F=F WI#BREERE
ABIRATE (M)A E8]) ﬁi%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ‘ﬂ
4&!5&?‘%&%%% RBE_Z =
F TE_NERZSEARETZ H
=+—HIE=BFE > MI#4BKKEBA
BlAFER IR RERAB S RUEMES
BREzYEEBEE SERSEEL
RBoBBARKS  IBET WERBE
5876EETT) * ARHS4EE T (WER
BE61.02B8 8T » ARMS6EE T (1
LNHB328FHETT) ©

R DR E B R R AR IERR
R MBAEBENEES -
| A4 B8 B2 2 Bk SO 5T AL AB AR 5 173

mo#ﬁt RBEE_E-_=6£-"2_-H0
FERIBEZRAE+A=1+— ElJt—fl
B AR B L RAEG 5 M09 )1 44
%WE@a?%féi\ﬂ%%m%ﬁﬁ%zm%
2EERSFEELRANIABARK29T
Bt (WENRBE3I2868T) AR
BET WERBEI30FET) ' AR
SEHETT (WERABIE39EETT) °

AR EEE RN ER SRR EIERR
RoHAANEEBRRES -

VO ) 1| #4 B& B2 37 2= B SR 57 37 42 BR 75 1%
el REE_S-_=F-"T-N
ERZEZRAE+ZA=1+— EIJt_ﬂE
FE MR R R H B S m )|
E%Mﬂ% 1&1#1??)1&?‘2%%2@&

BREFELRAIIAARBIEET (B
%ﬁé%ﬁm,szﬁ%ﬁ) P NRMESHB T
(WERBES6SEET >  ARESHE
7T (WERBIES 65T B TT) ©
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Balance with related parties

As at 31 December 2024, prepayments, deposits paid and other
receivables in note 23 above included amounts HK$21,000 (2023:
HKS$21,000) due from related companies which are controlled
by Mr. Wu Xiangdong. The amount was unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

Compensation of key management personnel

Remuneration of directors and other member of key management

personnel, during the year was as follows:

FAERRS &

(b)

REE 5 45 B

R-EBE_NE+-_B=+—81 EXK
HE2FrEEMRIE B e REMAE
WA B IEEWREIH A S (BREEL
) %XIEM 0008 (T2 =4
21,0003 70) c ZRIEA BRI Tt B
BB RMEE-

FEEEASHM
FRESERTEZEEEBEASHMBEDN
BT

2024 2023

“E-mE
HK$'000 HKS'000
FAET FTET
Short-term employee benefits ySEEN = F =l 3,683 2,200
Retirement benefit scheme contribution BIRER FT B HER 18 18
3,701 2,218

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

Personal guarantee is provided by Mr. Wu Shui Lin, a director of the
Group's subsidiaries for the bank borrowings disclosed in note 32.

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024

EFRIETHABZHFMEHFNE
EEREBEAARRERTSBARE

):EO

BAEFRHEAEENBATNEEFR K
M ST & w MY 5E3 2P 2 BB RV SR 1T B R IR
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48. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flow were, or
future cash flows will be classified in the Group's consolidated statement
of cash flows from financing activities.

48. BEMBEEHEEZBREHK

TRIBERAEEBEREIHELEZEE
bk (@%fﬁ@&#fﬁ%ﬁéﬁ) FlE-BmME
EEEEZEEBEENAFRNAER LGSR
TRMERANDEAMETIELEZREMNS
FARKREREZEE

230

Loans from
non-
Bank and controlling
other shareholders Lease
borrowings of subsidiaries liabilities
Bfit B8 2 =
RITR FEFEH]
HAth &R RRE™ HEAaE “act
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHETT FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—H—H = 14,290 59,469 73,759
Financing cash inflows MERESRA 112,869 = = 112,869
Financing cash outflows REIRE M (57,972) (11,267) (17,020) (86,259)
New lease entered sl E - = 4,254 4,254
Additions through acquisition of FERERBARRE
a subsidiary (note 43) (FFE43) = = 1,928 1,928
Termination of lease contract RIEHESHN - - (1,952) (1,952)
Exchange adjustments b 2 S EE (437) (120) (1,056) (1613)
Finance costs W5 A 2,493 28 3,029 5,550
As at 31 December 2023 and RIEZ=F
1 January 2024 +ZB=+—HRK
—E-HE—H—H 56,953 2,931 48,652 108,536
Financing cash outflows MEIREMH (5,381) (2,148) (7,400) (14,929)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRB AR (54,542) - (41,434) (95,976)
Exchange adjustments BE 2 R EE (437) (14) (3,303) (3,754)
Finance costs A FE RS 3,407 27 4,596 8,030
As at 31 December 2024 m:g_ﬁ-l—_ﬁ
=+—H - 796 1,111 1,907
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49. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
General information of subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 were set out below:

Place of

incorporation/

registration and Registered/
Name of subsidiary operatlons paid up capital

HEARRE £ it BERE

49. MBATBFE

M B A —iRER

R TE_MER—E_=F+"F=+—H
FABZEEMB AR FFEHRIMT ¢

Proportion of equity interest
and voting power held
by the Company Principal activities

FRRFAZREED KR RELA EEE3

Di

2024

irectly Indirectly

Hi% %
2023 2024 2023

“ECNE ZEI=E ZETME ZEI=E

Shangri-la Winery (note (i)) The PRC RMBS56,560,000
EREAEE (H520) f A E 565600007
Shangri-la (Qinhuangdao) Winery Company Limited The PRC RMB40,000,000
(“Shangri-la(Qinhuangdao)”) (note (i)
BREN (RES) AEEARAD e NE¥#40,000,0007C
(FEREH (FE8))) (z)
Diging Shangri-la Economics Development Zone Tinlai The PRC RMB8,200,000
Winery Company Limited (note (ii))
BEEREMCAREBRAERBRA hE B 58,200,0007C
(Bi=Ea)
Qinhuangdao Shangri-la Grape Plantation Company The PRC RMB2,000,000
Limited (note (i)
REEERENAHREBRAT (FE0) F AE#20000007T
Yantai Shangri-la Masang Chéteau Company Limited The PRC RMBS50,000,000
(note (ii))

EREUBRELARAR (H5H6) f AE 5000000070
Diging Zimi Trading Company Limited (note (ii)) The PRC RMB2,000,000
BERNEZERAR (i) f A 1200000070
Megaluck South Korea KRW2,000,000,000
eSS L 2,000,00000082 ]
Glorious Hill South Korea KRW44,792,729,280
L L 44.792,729,280%% 8]
Macrolink Australia Development Pty Limited Australia AUD100

D) 10087T
Macrolink & Landream Australia Land Pty Limited (‘MLAL)  Australia AUD100
BN 100278
Beijing Yuehao Property Management Co, Ltd The PRC RMBS50,000,000
TRRENEEERRAR s B #50,0000007%
Notes:
(0] Shangri-la Winery and Shangri-la (Qinhuangdao) were formed as Chinese foreign

equity joint venture companies in the PRC under joint venture agreements dated
17 May 2005 and 3 June 2005 respectively.

(i) These entities are registered as wholly-owned enterprises with limited liability
under the laws of the PRC.

55.0

- - 950 Production and distribution of wine
and investment holding

LERDEREERRERR
- - 963 Production of winery products

LERER

- - 950 Distribution of winery products

DEREE

- - 963 Procurement and distribution of grape
RERIHEE

- - 950 Production of winery products
LEREH

- - 950 Production of winery products

LEREA

720 - - Operation of entertainment business

BB

550 - - Development and operation of real
estate and cultural tourism
BRREERMERXICIRE

£%

= 100.0 1000 Development and operation of real
estate and cultural tourism

FRREERHERCIKE
£%

= - 80.0 Development and operation of real
estate and cultural tourism
BRREERMERUCRE

£%

= 100.0% 100.0% Provision of property management
service

REMEFEERY

0] EREBABEERERENL RES) 25RER
AR —TERFRR+EtEKR_TTHERA
ZHZEEWHERRERIATIEGERT

(i ZEEBRREBETEZZIMABEAREE-

WA B XK AR S FERS 2024

231



232
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49. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, result in particular of excessive length.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests

Place of incorporation/

49. B BEFE @

MEBAR—RER @
ARBEERR ER2JNZAEERBEA
AEEHAEEZEENEEATE AR
AEFBRARHUEMNBAT ZFBEEER
BB TR

BEEERFERIMERZIFEENE

NEFHE

establishment/ Voting rights held by Profit/(loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of entities principal place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
MBI/ B/ AEEFEFIEED
BieniE TEEEHE JEERIE R TR R i/ (§548) Rt EERI S
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
—EoME 2= —EoME ZgZ= —ZCME Zg§Z=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TEr
Megaluck South Korea -% 280% - (16,838) - (7,160)
eSS Bl
Glorious Hill South Korea 45% 45.0% (46,828) (4,165) (418) 37458
AL L
MLAL Australia -% 20.0% - (28,075) - 218463
|
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests - (8389) - 1,505
BRIt EE 2 BRIFEANB AR
(46,828) (40,689) (418) 250,266

Summarised consolidated financial information in respect of each of
the Group's entities that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised consolidated financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

FERBEEEAFEFMREERZAS
MHBERBEHI T -FeMBEREE
ThINEBABBIRIEA 2 £88
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49. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 49. B A EES @

Megaluck Ea s
2023
HK$'000
FHET

Current assets TMENE E 7,038
Non-current assets EREEE 108,976
Current liabilities V=R (118,278)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (23,308)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR NEEER (18/412)
Non-controlling interests FERES R (7,160)
Revenue W e 1,118
Expenses 52 (60,635)
Loss for the year FAEIE (59,457)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company NAB)HEE AFELEIE (32,701)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests FEFEHI MR PR (L 1R (26,756)
Loss for the year FAEIE (59,457)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to K@E%ﬁ)\ﬁgfﬁﬁﬂﬂiﬁ

owners of the Company Wz, (B548) 84
Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to 3FT°‘°?EJ MEREGEMEE

non-controlling interests @,/ (E518) B8
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year EREMEEEE S (EBB) 17
Total comprehensive loss attributable to owners of RABHEB AEEEERIBAEEE

the Company (32617)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to IR (2 E S IBAREE

non-controlling interests (26,723)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZEEIBAREE (59,340)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests FIEERIM RS RS -
Net cash generated from operating activities R EFFAT 2 FIRE 7,753
Net cash used in investing activities KERBFMAZ RS (714)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEPTREZ 2R E (5420)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ReRhIRSEEEHEM

CRiZL) 88 1619

M E XK A RRQA
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49. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 49. MIBARFE @
Glorious Hill fRAR L EE
2024 2023
“EmE B =4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current assets MENE E 39,671 53,375
Non-current assets FERBEE 483,217 598,377
Current liabilities nEaE (523,818) (548,395)
Non-current liabilities JERBAaE - (20,119)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NABHEB AEEER (512) 45,780
Non-controlling interests JEEFIERE (418) 37,458
Revenue m - 1214
Expenses 5 (104,061) (10,470)
Loss for the year FREE (104,061) (9,256)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company KABHEB AEGEEE (57,233) (5091)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests JEPER R S B (L S 1R (46,828) (4165)
Loss for the year FREE (104,061) (9,256)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable AAEEB ANERGEMEE
to owners of the Company W, (B518) 335 (12,026)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable FEEHIE R E M
to non-controlling interests W, (8518) 273 (9,839)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ERNEMEEERE S (EB) 608 (21,865)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to owners KABIHEB AEBLEmEEE
of the Company “aza (56,898) (17,117)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to JEFERIEE R B 2 A 18
non-controlling interests 48%E (46,555) (14,004)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZEEEERE (103,453) (31,121)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests EIEESI R R TR R - -
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBPTAZ 3 RE (48,248) (12,765)
Net cash generated from investing activities REZRHMEBEZ 3RS 9,302 490
Net cash generated from financing activities MEESME 2R RE - -
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents REKRIBEERBEE B FE (38,946) (12,275)
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49. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 49. MiBARFE @
MLAL MLAL
2023
—ET=F
HK$'000
FHET
Current assets TENE E 255,388
Non-current assets FERBEE 523
Current liabilities mEmas (11,811)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (222,525)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NABHER AEERER (196,888)
Non-controlling interests FEFEH R 2 218,463
Revenue W e 70,086
Expenses X (156,704)
Loss for the year FREE (86,618)
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company NABEE AEMN (B8) &5 (81,311)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests il e el ey OF = (5307)
Loss for the year FREE (86,618)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to AR ANE
owners of the Company Hihz2mzs, (5518) 20,754
Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to JEEHI I R 2 PR
non-controlling interests Hihzmmas, (518) 61,148
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FREMEEmNE (EBB) 81,902
Total comprehensive loss attributable to RABIHEE AELEEEELEEE
owners of the Company (60,557)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to RIS LRI S (6518
non-controlling interests “azE 55,841
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZEEIBREE 4,716)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests FIEERIM RS RS (22,768)
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBPAEZFRE 88,121
Net cash used in investing activities KREFHFMAZFRE -
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEPTRAZ 2R E (39,666)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents He KRS EHBRAEM
CRIZ) 7358 48,455
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50. AABMBRARRKHE

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2024 2023
“EMmE TE=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN =Y 12 16
Interests in subsidiaries BB A B 1,280,883 1,721,890
Right-of-use assets FREEE 886 3,013
1,281,781 1,724,919
Current assets MEEE
Prepayments, deposits paid and other receivables FENRIE BV EER
HAthFE USRS 80,804 1,042
Cash and cash equivalents ReKIReHREER 221,644 9,161
302,448 10,203
Current liabilities mEEE
Accruals and other payables FESHE B K H eI 7RIE 1,005 3,462
Lease liabilities HEaE 916 2,134
1,921 5,596
Net current assets MBEEFE 300,527 4,607
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTEAR 1,582,308 1,729,526
Capital and Reserves AR (15
Share capital f& s 32,076 32,076
Reserves G 1,550,232 1,696,534
Total equity R 1,582,308 1,728610
Non-current liabilities JERBAE
Lease liabilities HEaE - 916
- 916
1,582,308 1,729,526

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 March

2025 and signed on its behalf by:

Ma Chenshan
ERW
Director

=
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

51.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E_ZE_ME+_A=+—HIEFE

50. ZABMBRARRKR R @

Share Share option Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
B AR fE PR REtEiE #st
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2023 R-E-_=%—H—H 2275710 25,495 (588,750) 1,712,455
Lapse of share option BRI = (1,181) 1,181 -
Loss and total comprehensive loss FEBBEREEEBERREE
for the year - - (15912) (15912)
As at 31 December 2023 and RIEZ=fF
1 January 2024 +ZA=+—HkK
“EFE—-F—H 2,275,710 24,314 (603,490) 1,696,534
Lapse of share option RN - (2,090) 7,090 =
Loss and total comprehensive loss FEREREZEBERE
for the year - - (146,302) (146,302)
As at 31 December 2024 RZZEZIWE
+-B=+—H 2,275,710 17,224 (742,702) 1,550,232
The Company did not have any distributable reserves for both years. AN B TR R £ B M AT 0] 8] 9 )k 245
AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE 51. BEFIRESMBERER

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 14 March 2025
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LFEMBEE

RESULTS

Continuing and discontinued operations 348K 48 EAC & 275

2020

it . 72
HK$'000
FH7

e

For the year ended 31 December

#HE+-A=t+—HiLEE

2021

HKS'000
TET

2022

&

HK$'000
TET

2023
TET=F
HK$'000
FET

2024
—EuF
HK$'000
TAT

Revenue Wz 117,551 2,601,733 369,452 469,181 432,571
(Loss)/profit from operating activities ~ #&S&E X2 (B518) /&7 (116,243) 121,724 (135,134) (127,631) (95,462)
Finance costs BTSN (5852) (29,796) (5,945) (5,550) (130)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrFET (B518) /) (122,095) 91,928 (141,079) (133,181) (95,592)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigk Gix%) /1g% 7,785 (34,370) (30,662) 10237 6,097
Loss from discontinued operations BIEREEKEE - - - = (138,115)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (5518 /iaf] (114,310) 57,558 (171,741) (122,944) (227,610
(Loss)/profit attributable to: LUREIBRES (B518) /s |

Owners of the Company RRBEBA (92,028) 61,864 (112,474) (82,255) (182,117)

Non-controlling interests FEESI M (22,282) (4,306) (59,267) (40,869) (45,493)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (FBB) ah (114,310) 57,558 (171,741) (122,944) (227,610)
Dividend RE - - - - -
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMBRHE

BEEREE

As at 31 December
w+=ZB=+—H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2% T “ETCF TC=F “ZO@EF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

THT THT THBT THETT THAT

Total assets mEE 4370970 2,766,840 2,144,751 2,290,535 1,673,187
Total liabilities mar (2,303,036) (625,238) (334,524) (596,746) (254,282)
Non-controlling interests FEEES M (373,341) (332452) (253,896) (250,266) 419
Shareholders'funds REEE 1,694,593 1,809,150 1,556,331 1443523 1,419,324
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
E SIS

MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT BRPFTEYE

Expected date Gross Floor Group's

Location Intended use Stage of completion of completion Site area area interest

2 BERR &P, FEstEm A GER BEEE FEEED

(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAHK (FHK

Zone A, Hallim Eup, Integrated resort, Under development N/A 1,033,207 9,599 55%
Kumak-ri Jejusi, residential and

Jejudo, Korea commercial

BERRIEREEMNT REERN #EA ~ER

OMEtcERone AMIE ETEkE#E
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